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REPORT ON OPERATIONS

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Timeline di costituzione del GBCI
2018
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Start of the process to obtain authorization for the
Group from the ECB and the Bank of Italy through the
preparation and transmission of the related application
and supporting documentation.
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Start of the
process
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Issuance by the ECB to Iccrea Banca of the declaratory
finding pursuant to Article 37-ter, paragraph 2, of the
Consolidated Banking Act.
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Declaratory finding ‘
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Transmission to the Bank of ltaly and the ECB of the
Cohesion Contract and the cross-Guarantee Scheme
signed by the participating mutual banks, along with the
amended articles of association, attached to the
application for registration in the register of banking
groups.
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Cohesion contract and
cross-Guarantee
Scheme
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Registration of the Iccrea Cooperative Banking Group in
the Register of Italian banking groups effective January 1,
2019.
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Formation of the
ICBG
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ICBG in numbers

Leading national mutual banking group Capital ratios
The lccrea Cooperative Banking Group is the
leading Italian banking group owned entirely by
residents of local communities within Italy, with an
ownership structure encompassing about 814,000
member shareholders, nearly all of which are
either households or small businesses.

Focus on retail customers @

Capital strength demonstrated by a CET1
Q At June 2020 the number of customers with

ratio of 16.1% and a TCR of 16.9%, figures
that have been strengthening constantly
since the establishment of the ICBG
(respectively, 15.5% and 15.8% at June 2019
and 15.5% and 16.3% at December 2019).

Liquidity indicators

loans from the Cooperative Banking Group
amounted to about 1.3 million, of which 88%
retail customers (households and SMEs). The
number of depositors is equal to 3.2 million, of
which about 95% households and SMEs.

Sound and stable liquidity position
with LCR and NSFR from the Group’s
formation equal on average to 287% and
130% (compared with, respectively, 279%
and 132% at December 2019 and 212%
and 139% at June 2019)

®

Assets

Liquidity reserves at June 30, 2020
equal to about €33 billion.

The total consolidated assets of the lccrea
Cooperative Banking Group at June 30, 2020
amounted to €168.5 billion.
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MAIN INDICATORS AT JUNE 30, 2020, DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND JUNE 30, 2019

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (amounts in thousands of euros) 30/06/2020 31/12/2019 30/06/2019
STRUCTURAL RATIOS
Net loans to customers measured at amortized cost /total assets 50.9% 54.8% 55.1%
Direct funding from customers/total liabilities 64.4% 67.9% 65.3%
get;ito I)oans to customers measured at amortized cost/direct funding from customers (loan to deposit 80.6% 80.7% 80.0%
Equity (including profit/loss)/total liabilities 6.1% 6.6% 6.7%
Managed assets/indirect bank funding from ordinary customers 7.7%
PROFITABILITY RATIOS
ROE (Net profit)/net equity including the profit for the period) 1.2% 2.4% 1.77%
ROTE [Net profit/net tangible equity (Equity including profit — intangible assets] 1.2% 2.4% 1.21%
ROA (Net profit/total assets) 0.1% 0.2% 0.12%
Cost/income ratio 71.7% 73.9% 74.4%
Personnel expenses/gross income 41.0% 43.3% 42.2%
Net writedowns (writebacks) for credit risk/net loans to customers measured at amortized cost 0.5% 0.8% 0.3%
Net interest income/gross income 59.6% 59.9% 62.2%
Net fee and commission income/gross income 29.7% 32.3% 30.9%
Net interest income/Number of employees at end-period 54.6% 105.8% 54.7%
Net fee and commission income/Number of employees at end-period 27.2% 57.1% 21.2%
Gross income/Number of employees at end-period 91.6% 176.6% 88.1%
RISK RATIOS
Net bad loans/net loans to customers measured at amortized cost 2.1% 2.2% 3.0%
Writedowns of bad loans/gross bad loans 66.6% 65.2% 63.9%
Net non-performing loans/net loans to customers measured at amortized cost 5.9% 6.1% 7.7%
Net UTP loans/net loans to customers measured at amortized cost 3.2% 3.6% 4.2%
Writedowns of UTP loans/gross UTP loans 39.6% 38.1% 35.4%
Gross non-performing loans/gross loans to customers measured at amortized cost 11.5% 11.6% 14.1%
CAPITAL RATIOS - phased-in
Tier 1 ratio 16.1% 15.5% 15.5%
Common Equity Tier 1 ratio 16.1% 15.5% 15.5%
Total capital ratio 16.9% 16.3% 15.8%
Total own funds 11,465,493 11,619,277 11,309,169
of which: Tier 1 capital after filters and deductions 10,979,985 11,059,993 11,131,268
Risk-weighted assets (RWA) 68,172,398 71,123,849 71,848,046
INCOME STATEMENT, BALANCE SHEET, OPERATIONAL AND STRUCTURAL DATA
Profit/(loss) for the period 126,625 244,963 181,379
Profit/(loss) pertaining to the Group 122,123 238,478 178,619
Gross income 2,033,535 3,924,952 1,960,051
Operating expenses 1,457,800 2,901,822 1,458,416
Net loans to customers measured at amortized cost 85,766,612 85,240,858 83,424,929
of which: Net bad loans 1,836,150 1,854,432 2,471,327
of which: Net UTP loans 2,767,599 3,057,608 3,528,680
Net non-performing loans 5,017,923 5,208,573 6,426,320
Total direct funding from ordinary customers 106,444,437 105,439,547 103,603,779
Total indirect funding from ordinary customers 40,307,768
Total funding from ordinary customers (direct + indirect) 145,747,315
Equity pertaining to the Group (including profit/loss) 10,216,510 10,161,857 10,117,133
Intangible assets 150,459 146,462 134,312
Total consolidated assets 168,460,726 155,530,466 151,333,398
Number of branches 2,552 2,592 2,600
Number of Group banks 140 144 144
Number of affiliated Mutual Banks 136 140 140
Number of employees at end-period 22,196 22,219 22,260
Average number of employees 21,736 21,760 21,804
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Semi-annual developments in key performance figures (millions of euros)
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Composition of capital (millions of euros)
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REPORT ON OPERATIONS

2. THE INTERNATIONAL AND ITALIAN MACROECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT AND THE SITUATION IN BANKING AND THE
FINANCIAL MARKETS

The macroeconomic environment

In the first half of 2020, the international economy, already decelerating from the previous year, experienced a further sharp slowdown due to
the COVID-19 pandemic, which has generated one of the worst economic crises in modern history. The progressive spread of the pandemic
on a global level has forced many countries to adopt increasingly restrictive containment measures, with the closure of numerous economic
activities and the almost total closure of air transport and tourism.

Data released by the OECD show that as a result of the crisis, in the first half of 2020 global GDP contracted by 9.8%, the largest drop since
the 2008-09 financial crisis. Beginning in May, timid signs of recovery emerged, engendered in part by the expansionary monetary measures
of central banks, which helped ease tensions on the financial markets, and by the gradual easing of measures suspending economic activity.
However, despite the assurances of major political leaders around the world, the risk of new restrictive measures, which would inevitably
have a further negative impact on the economy, remain high. The number of new COVID cases continues to increase around the world,
particularly in the United States and Latin America, as well as in many other key emerging market economies (e.g. India and South Africa).

The extent of the impact of COVID-19 on public finances around the world is still very uncertain at this time and will depend not only on the
duration of the pandemic, but also on the speed of the economic recovery. In any case, the COVID-19 pandemic and its financial and
economic consequences will cause a sharp increase in the fiscal deficit and in the public debt/GDP ratio. Indeed, with the decline in output,
the International Monetary Fund expects tax revenues to fall sharply. At the same time, the health expenditure necessary to address the
emergency and the direct measures to support households and businesses, currently estimated at $3.3 trillion globally, will further
exacerbate imbalances in the world’s public finances.

Against this backdrop, the ECB expects global inflationary pressures to remain contained due to both falling oil prices and weak demand.

The latest forecasts released by the OECD point to a recovery in the global economy in the second half of 2020, closely connected with the
relaxation of restrictions. More specifically, the organization produced GDP growth forecasts for the end of 2020 based on two scenarios: a
"single hit scenario”, which expects for a reduction of 7.5% in GDP, and a "double hit scenario”, which shows a decline of 9.3%. The
recovery in 2021 is expected to be more gradual than initially expected, with growth of between 2.8% and 5.2%.

However, the uncertainty about the evolution of the pandemic makes it difficult to predict future developments.

United States: due to the restrictive measures adopted in response to COVID-19, the American economy registered a sharp contraction in
the second quarter of 2020: GDP decreased at an annualized rate of 31.7% as reported by the U.S. Bureau of Economic Analysis. The GDP
figures reflect the decline in consumer spending as well as the reduction in exports, investment and local government spending, which was
only partially offset by an increase in federal government spending. In the early weeks of March, the prospect of recession triggered a flight
of capital from the equity markets. In order to prevent the economy from seizing up, the Federal Reserve mobilized considerable resources
through unconventional monetary policies, eliminating the limits on quantitative easing and in just four months purchasing an amount of
securities equivalent to the annual GDP of France. Economic indicators reached their absolute minimum in April, when the industrial
production index fell by 16.2% (-19.5% for manufacturing). In the same month, the number of unemployed increased from 15.9 million to
23.1 million from the previous month, reaching an all-time high; the unemployment rate rose to 14.7%. After the lockdown, in June, the
reopening of American states enabled the start of economic recovery, with a significant improvement in labor market figures, an increase in
the consumer confidence index and the index of expectations of the purchasing managers of manufacturing and service companies.

European Union: beginning at the end of February 2020, the epidemic progressively spread in varying ways to all the Member States,
which adopted a range of restrictive measures starting from the second quarter of 2020. Consequently, according to an estimate published
by Eurostat, GDP in the euro area decreased by 12.1% compared with the previous quarter, showing that the effects of the pandemic on the
real economy are the worst ever recorded since the birth of the Union. In March 2020 this situation prompted the Union and national
authorities to adopt measures aimed at maintaining the necessary financial support to the real economy, facilitating measures to suspend
payments on installment loans and to maintain support for liquidity, especially for households and SMEs. These initiatives accompanied the
expansionary monetary policy measures ordered by the ECB to counter the risks associated with the spread of COVID-19.

Italy: Italy was the first European country to be severely affected by the pandemic and, consequently, one of the countries where the
economic impact of COVID-19 was most substantial, at least in the initial phase of the outbreak. The fall in GDP in the second quarter of the
year was estimated at around 10%, a consequence of the unfavorable developments in the economy during the total lockdown ordered in
April, which saw a sharp decline in domestic demand and a negative contribution from foreign trade. Considering the extraordinary need to
contain the negative effects that the COVID-19 emergency was having on the national socio-economic fabric, the Italian government
approved a series of measures - described below in detail — to strengthen the National Health Service and provide financial support for
households, self-employed workers and businesses in general.

In this context, analyzes released by the Bank of Italy show that industrial production - after the decline registered in the first quarter (-8.4%)
— contracted even more markedly in April (-19.1% compared with March) as a result of the measures to halt "non-essential" activities. With
the gradual easing of the lockdown, industrial activity resumed growth in May and June, although despite expanding by around 40%
compared with April, it remained almost 25% below pre-COVID-19 levels. Consequently, the volume of exports of goods and services also
decreased due to the closure of “non-essential” activities, which are the most export-oriented as they attract greater foreign demand. The
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construction sector also suffered a setback as a result of the measures adopted to contain the epidemic, especially in March and April: in the
first quarter, investment in construction decreased by 7.9% compared with the previous quarter, while in April sector output decreased by
more than 50% compared with March.

Trade in goods and services has been severely affected by the epidemic, especially in the tourism sector; sales in non-EU markets only
showed signs of partial recovery in May.

Household spending in the first quarter decreased by 6.6% compared with the previous quarter, mainly due to the decrease in the
consumption of semi-durable and durable goods as a result of the decline in real household disposable income (-1.7% compared with the
previous quarter), due above all to the contraction in income from payroll employment. Indicators also point to a drastic reduction in
consumption in the second quarter, especially for certain types of services and durable goods such as newly registered cars, the market for
which virtually disappeared in April and only partially recovered in May and June.

Due to the health emergency, average hours worked per capita fell sharply and the use of the wage supplementation mechanism increased
exceptionally in the first quarter of 2020: in the three months from March to May, the number of hours of wage supplementation amounted to
1,746 million (compared with 63.4 million in the previous three months).

Developments in the credit system and in financial markets

The persistence of the crisis connected with the pandemic also had major repercussions on the financial markets, fueling a climate of
growing uncertainty and reducing investor confidence.

Global financial markets have been affected by the progressive halt in economic activity starting from March 2020. Market tensions
culminated in the shock recorded in mid-March: the exceptional volatility in share prices caused the VIX volatility index,2 which had been
essentially stable for months, rose sharply in the first half of March 2020, hitting 80 points, an historically high figure if compared with the 60
points registered at the time of the collapse of the US financial services firm Lehman Brothers in 2008. However, the expansionary stance of
monetary policy adopted by the authorities on the one hand and the progressive relaxation of the restrictive measures aimed at containing
the effects of the pandemic on the other facilitated a reduction of tensions on the financial markets during the third quarter of the year. This
improvement was reflected in a decline in the VIX index, which stabilized at around 30 points between July and September.

90 -
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Source: Bloomberg

However, conditions on the financial markets remain fragile and extremely sensitive to developments in data on the pandemic. The
uncertainty observed on the financial markets triggered a spiral in sales on equity markets, with a consequent decline in the main equity
indices, which fell by more than 40% between February and March. In line with the gradual easing of the lockdown on economic activity and
the decline in tensions on the financial markets, beginning in April share prices partially recovered the losses recorded during the most acute
phase of the pandemic, benefiting from an increase in the propensity for risk of investors. Already at the beginning of July, some of the main
stock market indices had returned to levels just below those recorded immediately before the pandemic.

2The index measures the implied volatility of options, reflecting the variability expected by analysts for the main US stock index, the S&P 500.
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In the third quarter of the year, implied volatility significantly decreased both in equity markets and government bond markets. More
specifically, after an initial rise in the BTP-Bund spread, which in mid-March exceeded 300 bps, the yield differential between Italian
government securities and their German equivalents has decreased since mid-May, following the measures adopted by monetary and fiscal
authorities. The expansionary measures adopted by the ECB contributed significantly to this result.
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As underscored in Economic Bulletin 3/2020 of the Bank of Italy, during the lockdown and in the months immediately following it, which saw
numerous businesses reopen, the role of banks was key in supporting the recovery of the country. The volume of loans to firms increased,
mainly thanks to the interventions by the ECB and the measures taken by the Government, which sustained the capacity of credit institutions
to meet the huge demand for funds. The increase in loans to businesses in response to the growth in demand, associated with the rise in
liquidity needs, mainly came at the medium and long-term end. By contrast, lending to consumer households decreased (-2.5% in the three
months ending in May), reflecting their lower propensity to consume during the lockdown and the freeze in the real estate market.
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REGULATORY AND SUPERVISORY MEASURES TAKEN IN THE CONTEXT OF THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC

The spread of the COVID-19 pandemic has produced social upheaval and impacted production and aggregate demand in all markets,
posing unprecedented economic challenges. The deterioration in the outlook for growth caused a sharp fall in stock market indices and a
sharp rise in volatility and risk aversion. Concerns about the profitability of the financial sector have intensified further and the quality of
assets in the EU banking sector is expected to deteriorate overall. Moreover, projections of a continuation of the prolonged low interest rate
environment is weighing on the profitability and prospective solvency of financial institutions.

In response to the rapid evolution of events, the monetary and fiscal authorities of all major countries have implemented major expansionary
measures to support the incomes of households and businesses, ensure the flow credit to the economy and liquidity to the markets. At the
same time, European institutions (European Commission, European Council and Parliament), the national and EU supervisory authorities
(EBA, ESMA, ECB/SSM, Bank of Italy, SRB) and international standard setters (IASB, Basel Committee) have adopted a series of measures
and issued interpretative and application guidelines to help banks mitigate the economic impact of the pandemic. This swift and coordinated
response has helped to address and attenuate the impact of the health emergency for the EU financial sector and contributed to preventing
the fragmentation of the single market.

The following provides a summary of the main interventions.

Government, EU and national measures

As an immediate response to developments in the crisis, the European institutions promptly approved the activation of the general escape
clause of the Stability and Growth Pact, i.e. the set of rules on the compliance of the public accounts of the Member States.

Furthermore, as part of the supranational coordination actions taken to manage the economic fallout of COVID-19, on March 19, 2020 the
European Commission set out a series of temporary measures to support the economy for the Member States to adopt — measures subject
to specific monitoring and reporting obligations - deemed compatible with the overall regulatory framework on State aid (Temporary
Framework for State aid measures to support the economy in the current COVID-19 outbreak). This temporary framework, based on Article
107, paragraph 3, letter b) of the Treaty on the Functioning of the European Union essentially provides for five main forms of aid:

o direct grants, repayable advances or selective tax advantages to support those undertakings that find themselves facing a sudden
unavailability of liquidity owing to a reduction in turnover due to the emergency that has arisen because of COVID-19, in an amount
of up to €800,000 per undertaking;

o public guarantees for bank loans taken out by companies. In particular, Member States can provide government guarantees to allow
banks to continue lending in order to ensure sufficient liquidity for companies facing a shortage of cash;

e subsidized public loans to businesses. The Member States can grant loans bearing favorable interest rates to firms to cover
immediate working capital needs and to support investment. Premiums have been set for the guarantees, to be issued by December
31, 2020, at minimum levels that differ based on loan counterparty and maturity, distinguishing between SMEs and large enterprises;

e guarantees for banks that channel government aid to the real economy. Some Member States plan to leverage banks' existing
lending capacity and use them as a channel to support businesses, especially SMEs;

o greater flexibility with regard to short-term export credit insurance as regards the methods for demonstrating that certain countries
represent non-marketable risks, effectively allowing states to offer, where necessary, insurance coverage for such credit.

On April 3, 2020, the European Commission extended the Temporary Framework for State Aid adopted in March to allow Member States to
accelerate research, testing and production of coronavirus-related products, protect jobs and provide additional support to the economy. The
modification of the Temporary Framework also broadened the range of forms of support that Member States can provide to companies in
difficulty, for example by making it possible to grant — up to a nominal amount of €0.8 million per firm - interest-free loans, guarantees on
loans that cover 100% of the risk or to provide capital. These measures can also be combined with so-called "de minimis" aid (bringing aid
per firm up to €1 million) and other forms of support. These options, which will remain in force until the end of this year, are particularly useful
for responding to the urgent liquidity needs of SMEs with the necessary speed. On May 8, 2020, the European Commission adopted a new
amendment to the Temporary Framework, aimed at further facilitating access to capital and liquidity for companies affected by the crisis,
establishing the criteria on the basis of which Member States can recapitalize and provide subordinated debt to companies in difficulty, while
preserving a level playing field in the European Union. A third amendment to the Framework was adopted by the Commission on July 2,
2020, providing for (i) the inclusion of micro and small enterprises that were already in difficulty as of December 31, 2019, among the
beneficiaries of the aid schemes, provided that they meet certain parameters; (ii) the encouragement of new equity with a significant private
participation in the framework of public aid to support companies in difficulty; (iii) the exclusion of the subordination of aid to the relocation of
a production activity or other activity of the beneficiary from another country of the European Economic Area (EEA) to the territory of the
Member State granting the aid.

On April 14, the European Commission also approved - as part of the Temporary Framework for State Aid - an aid package to support the
Italian economy in coping the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic.
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Additional support schemes, totaling €150 million, were approved by the Commission on April 21 for the agriculture, forestry, fisheries and
aquaculture sectors.

On May 19, 2020, in addition to the aforementioned measures, the European Council established a temporary European employment fund
(Support to mitigate Unemployment Risks in Emergency - SURE), financed by the issuance of EU bonds, in support of employment and
workers. The fund provides financial assistance worth a total of €100 billion in the form of loans to support and complement national
unemployment funds.

On May 26, 2020, the European Investment Bank (EIB) allocated €25 billion to a new pan-European guarantee fund, supported by the
Member States, which now enables the EIB Group to activate a total of some €200 billion for the Union economy to limit the adverse impact
of COVID-19 on SMEs and other European companies. At least 65% of the loans will be allocated to SMEs, while up to 7% can be allocated
to support SMEs and mid-caps in the form of equity capital, growth capital and venture debt.

Finally, on May 27, 2020, the European Commission launched a comprehensive program for recovery - "Next Generation EU" - with funding
of €750 billion. Itis focused on three main lines of action:

o tools to support Member States' efforts to exit the crisis, overcome its effects and re-emerge stronger;
e measures to stimulate private investment and support companies in difficulty;

o strengthening EU strategic programs to make the single market stronger and more resilient, while addressing the lessons of the
crisis, and to accelerate the green and digital transition.

The plan was approved by the European Council on July 21.

Also in July, the European Commission approved four Italian aid schemes to support businesses and workers. In particular, on June 26,
2020 measures based on tax relief and tax credits were approved, with an estimated overall cost of €7.6 billion. They are included in a
broader package, part of the so-called “Revival Decree” (described in more detail below). On July 8, 2020, the Commission approved an
additional Italian aid scheme, in the total amount of €6.2 billion euros, to support small businesses and self-employed workers active in all
economic sectors, with the exception of the financial sector and public administration, in the form of direct grants.

Monetary policy measures adopted by the ECB

At its March 12, 2020 meeting, the ECB Governing Council decided on a comprehensive package of monetary policy measures to address
the rising financial tensions, which consists of the following programs:

o starting March 16, the temporary introduction of a series of additional weekly longer-term refinancing operations (LTROs) maturing
on the June 24, 2020 TLTRO III settlement date at a rate of -50 basis points: the purpose of the measure is to temporarily inject
liquidity into the system on favorable terms to ensure effective support for money markets and in general the euro-area financial
system;

o application of more favorable terms to all targeted longer-term refinancing operations (TLTRO Ill), to be conducted between June
2020 and June 2021, that are outstanding during that time. This will be done by applying an interest rate that is 25 basis points
below the average rate applied in the Eurosystem’s main refinancing operations. At the same time, it introduced further support for
TLTRO Il operations, including raising the maximum amount that can be borrowed to 50% of banks’ stock of eligible loans as at
February 28, 2019 and the removal of the maximum limit of 10% of the stock of eligible loans per operation;

o additional net asset purchases (Asset Purchase Program, or APP) of €120 billion will be added until the end of the year;

e creating a temporary envelope of €120 billion available until the end of 2020, in line with other existing asset purchase programs
(especially the APP), through more favorable financing conditions for the real economy;

o keeping the key interest rates on the main refinancing operations and the interest rates on the marginal lending facility and the
deposit facility unchanged at 0%, 0.25% and -0.50% respectively;

o keeping the key ECB interest rates at their present or lower levels until the inflation outlook robustly converges to a level sufficiently
close to, but below, 2%;

o full reinvestment of the principal payments from maturing securities purchased under previous asset purchase programs for an
extended period of time past the date when the ECB starts raising the key ECB interest rates, and in any case for as long as
necessary to maintain favorable liquidity conditions and an ample degree of monetary accommodation.

In addition, under the broader framework of measures taken to address the growing emergency linked to COVID-19, on March 18th the ECB
launched another quantitative easing (QE) program with an envelope of €750 billion called the “Pandemic Emergency Purchase
Programme” (PEPP) to counter the risks posed by the spread of the virus to the transmission of its monetary policy within the euro area. It is
a temporary asset purchase program for securities issued by private issuers and individual states and is expected to last until at least the
end of the year. These support measures are directed towards all sectors of the economy and apply equally to households, firms, banks and
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Member State government. To make these initiatives even more effective, the ECB also expanded the range of eligible assets under the
corporate sector purchase program to non-financial commercial paper of sufficient credit quality eligible for purchase.

On April 7, 2020 the ECB Governing Council decided to further lower the interest rate and ease eligibility criteria for the incentive mechanism
to expand the availability of collateral, facilitate banks’ access to financing and support lending to firms and households by strengthening the
use of loans as collateral and by generally increasing the Eurosystem’s risk tolerance.

Finally, at its April 30, 2020 meeting, the ECB Governing Council, while leaving the interest rates on monetary policy operations unchanged,
took further decisions to strengthen the framework of previous decisions. Specifically:

o it further improved the conditions on TLTRO IlI operations, reducing the interest rate for the June 2020 - June 2021 period from -25
to -50 basis points. With this measure, the rate for that period could therefore reach -100 bps. As a result of all the interventions
noted above, in the period between June 24, 2020 and June 23, 2021, the base interest rate applied to TLTRO-III operations will be
50 basis points lower than the average rate applied on the main refinancing operations of the Eurosystem. Counterparties that
maintain their lending levels with respect to the benchmark required in the observation period between March 1, 2020 and March 31,
2021 (the special reference period) will benefit, in the period between June 2020 and June 2021, from an interest rate that is 50
basis points lower than the average rate on the central bank’s deposit facility, which cannot exceed -1.00%, while for the remaining
days of the life of the transaction the interest rate applied will be equal to the average rate on the ECB deposit facility;

o it temporarily introduced a new series of pandemic emergency longer-term refinancing operations (PELTROs), with a series of
monthly operations maturing through September 2021, to support liquidity conditions in the euro area financial system and to
contribute to preserving the orderly functioning of money markets by providing effective liquidity support after the expiry of the
additional LTROs conducted starting from March 2020;

o it decided to continue net purchases under the asset purchase program (APP) will continue at a monthly pace of €20 billion, together
with the new purchases under the additional €120 billion temporary envelope until the end of the year;

e it decided to continue the full reinvestment of the principal payments from maturing securities purchased under the APP.

On April 22, 2020, the Governing Council of the ECB also adopted temporary measures (applicable until September 2021 on the occasion of
the first early repayment of TLTRO-IIl) to mitigate the effect on the availability of marketable assets as collateral of possible rating
downgrades resulting from the economic fallout from the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic.

More specifically, the following measures were applied, among others:

o from April 8, 2020 (i) the minimum amount threshold for domestic loans at the time they are pledged as collateral is reduced to zero
(from the previous €30,000); (ii) the concentration limit envisaged for use as collateral for senior uncovered bank bonds (UBB) issued
by a credit institution or by other entities with which that institution has close links has been increased from 2.5% to 10% of the total
value of the collateral pool of each counterparty;

o from April 20, 2020, a generalized reduction in haircuts will be applied for all eligible assets (securities and loans). A reduction is also
envisaged for the additional risk mitigation measures applied to covered bank bonds for own use and to securities for which a
theoretical price is used in their measurement (including covered bank bonds and ABSs).

In addition, as part of the framework concerning additional credit claims (ACCs), from April 20, 2020 the following were introduced:
e areduction in the haircuts applied to loans pledged both individually and within portfolios;
o areview of other risk mitigation measures specifically envisaged for loan portfolios;

e achange in the frequency - from monthly to quarterly - for transmitting detailed data on the individual loans included in the portfolios
(loan-level data).

A "grandfathering" regime was introduced under which marketable assets and issuers who met the minimum credit quality requirements for
the eligibility of collateral as of April 7, 2020 (BBB- for all assets, except ABSs) continue to be eligible in the event of rating downgrades, as
long as their rating remains at or above credit quality step 5 on the Eurosystem's harmonized rating scale (equivalent to a BB rating). ABSs
to which a minimum rating threshold equal to CQS2 (equivalent to a rating of A-) is applied within the ECB’s General Framework will
continue to be eligible as long as their rating remains at or above CQS4 (equivalent to a BB+ rating). The assets eligible for this
grandfathering will be subject to haircuts based on their actual ratings.

These temporary measures will remain in place until the end of the PEPP. By the end of 2020, the Governing Council will assess the
possible need for an extension to continue to ensure the adequate availability of collateral for counterparties.

Main measures taken in Italy to support the economy that have an impact on the banking system

Given the extraordinary urgency of mitigating the negative effects that the COVID-19 emergency is having on the national socio-economic
fabric, the Italian Government approved Decree Law 18 of March 17, 2020, “Measures to strengthen the national health service and provide
economic support for households, workers and firms connected with the COVID-19 emergency” (hereinafter the “Decree” or the “Cure Italy
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Decree”). Title Il is fully dedicated to liquidity support measures delivered through the banking system and aims to introduce measures in
favor of SMEs, firms in general, self-employed workers and professionals.

As established by Article 49 of the decree, all SMEs located in Italy can, for a period of nine months from the entry into effect of the decree,
take advantage of, among other things, the following exemptions from the ordinary rules for the Central Guarantee Fund pursuant to Law
662/96: (i) the guarantees will be provided at no charge; (i) the maximum amount guaranteed per debtor is increased to €5 million; (iii) for
direct guarantees, the maximum coverage percentage is set at 80% of the amount of each financing operations, up to a maximum amount of
€1.5 million per firm; (iv) for reinsurance operations, the maximum coverage percentage is set at 90% of the amount guaranteed by loan
guarantee consortiums or other guarantee funds; (v) the guarantee, until today limited to just portfolio guarantees, is eligible for use in debt
renegotiation provided that the lender grants new financing equal to at least 10% of the remaining debt; and (vi) the possibility to combine
the Fund's guarantee with other forms of guarantees, including mortgages, obtained from the lender for real estate investments in the
tourism and hospitality sector and real estate assets for an amount above €0.5 million and with a minimum maturity of 10 years.

Article 54 of the decree extends the scope of application of the solidarity fund for loans for the purchase of a primary residence (“Gasparrini
Fund”) to self-employed workers and professionals who declare, pursuant to Articles 46 and 47 of Presidential Decree 445/2000, that they
have registered, in a quarter after February 21, 2020 or in a shorter span of time between the date of the request and such date, that they
suffered a drop in turnover of more than 33% compared with the final quarter of 2019 as a result of the closing of or restriction on their
activity as a result of the implementation of the measures adopted by the competent authorities to handle the COVID-19 emergency. The
exemption from the ordinary rules of the fund lasts for nine months from the entry into force of the decree. The Gasparrini Fund will pay
compensatory interest in the amount of 50% of the interest accrued on the remaining debt during the suspension period.

Article 55 of the decree contains measures to promote the disposal of non-performing loans by December 31, 2020 with the possibility of
transforming into tax credits the deferred tax assets deriving from: (i) tax losses not yet computed to reduce taxable income at the disposal
date; and (i) the amount of the notional return exceeding total net income, not yet deducted nor used as a tax credit at the disposal date
(excess allowance for corporate equity). These two components can be considered in a maximum amount not to exceed 20% of the nominal
value of the loans sold, with a ceiling of €2 billion for the gross value of loans sold per firm (determined by taking account of all the disposals
completed by December 31, 2020 by companies connected by relationships of control). These provisions are not applicable to companies in
a state of distress (or risk of distress) or insolvency.

Article 56 of the decree contains financial support measures for firms, introducing a special moratorium to help firms overcome the most
critical phase of the decline in production connected with COVID-19. Microfirms and SMEs, as defined by European Commission
Recommendation 2003/361/EC, headquartered in ltaly, can apply to the following financial support measures: (i) for revocable credit
facilities and for loans granted against advances on receivables outstanding at February 29, 2020 or, if greater, at the date of publication of
the decree, the amounts agreed, both for the drawn part and the part still undrawn, cannot be revoked in whole or in part until September 30,
2020. For the increase in uses that occurs between the date of the decree and September 30, 2020 it will be possible to obtain the
guarantee from the Central Guarantee Fund pursuant to Law 662/96; (i) for loans not repayable in instalments maturing before September
30, 2020, the contracts have been extended, along with the respective ancillary elements and without any formalities, until September 30,
2020 under the same terms and conditions. A guarantee from the Central Guarantee Fund pursuant to Law 662/96 can be obtained for such
contracts; (iii) for mortgages and other loans repaid in instalments, including those completed through the granting of agricultural promissory
notes, the payment of mortgage installments or lease payments maturing before September 30, 2020 is suspended until September 30,
2020 and the repayment schedule for the suspended installments or lease payments is deferred, along with the respective ancillary
elements and without any formalities, using methods that ensure that there are no new or higher costs for both parties; giving firms the
option to request suspension only for repayment of principal amounts. It is also possible to obtain a guarantee from the Central Guarantee
Fund pursuant to Law 662/96 in an amount equal to 33% of the individual mortgage installments or installment payments on loan or lease
payments that mature by September 30, 2020 and that were suspended.

Article 57 of the decree sets out liquidity support measures for firms hit by the epidemiological emergency through guarantee mechanisms,
allowing banks — with the support of Cassa Depositi e Prestiti SpA (CDP) through a credit line and/or portfolio guarantees, including on first
losses - to disburse loans in any form to firms that have suffered a reduction in turnover owing to the emergency; the public guarantee - for
payment, explicit, unconditional and irrevocable — is issued in favor of CDP on first demand up to a maximum of 80% of the exposure
assumed.

Additional measures were adopted during ratification of the decree, including an expansion of the pool of beneficiaries of the solidarity fund
for principal residence mortgage loans, the suspension of instalments on loans from the solidarity fund for usury victims and the suspension
of all enforcement proceedings concerning those loans.

On April 6, 2020, the Council of Ministers approved another decree (the “Liquidity Decree”) which introduces a series of urgent measures
regarding access to credit and deferring certain obligations for firms (and households) as well as special powers in strategically important
sectors and in the justice system. The decree further strengthens the Central Guarantee Fund for SMEs, already expanded by the “Cure
Italy” Decree and introduces special measures for credit access, liquidity support, exports, international expansion, and investment.

The main areas in which the decree intervenes are: (i) access to credit and deferral of some tax payments; (i) bankruptcy and corporate law;
and (iii) the expansion of the rules on the State’s special powers in strategically important sectors (golden power). With regard to access to
credit, the decree considerably strengthened the system of public guarantees, which have been made available to firms of all sizes, with
coverage percentages of between 70% and 90% for loans granted by intermediaries, which can arrive at 100% for smaller firms and loans.
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The primary measures introduced regard: (i) the activation of a new line of public guarantees, granted through SACE SpA, a CDP Group
company, for a total of €200 billion to be utilized by the end of the year (of which €30 billion reserved for SMEs); (i) the expansion, up to
90%, of the Ministry of Economy and Finance’s portion of the reinsurance of the export credit backed by SACE; and (iii) for 2020, the
operations of the Central Guarantee Fund for SMEs will be structured differently, including an increase in the coverage percentages for
loans and expansion of the range of potential beneficiaries.

The decree also introduces measures regarding the bankruptcy laws to prevent the initiation— until the end of the state of emergency — of
bankruptcy or other proceedings based on insolvency against companies and to sterilize the emergency period for the purposes of
calculating deadlines in actions to protect creditors.

Finally, with Decree Law 34/2020 containing urgent measures in the areas of healthcare, support for employment and the economy as well
as social policies connected with the COVID-19 emergency (the “Revival Decree”), approved in May, the Government introduced additional
measures, totaling over €100 billion, to provide liquidity and support for Italian undertakings (mainly SMEs), ensuring that they can survive
during the emergency and helping them to revive operations when the recovery comes.

The measures include:

o the extension of the moratorium in favor of micro-enterprises and SMEs provided for by Article 56 of the Cure Italy Decree to include
subsidized loans guaranteed by the State granted to companies following the earthquakes of 2012 and 2016 for the payment of
taxes, contributions and bonuses already suspended that still had not been paid on the date of entry into force of the respective
subsidy measures;

o the refinancing of the Guarantee Fund for SMEs (with the simplification of benefit requirements) and the Guarantee Fund for
principal residences;

o strengthening the system of innovative start-ups, to facilitate access to liquidity;
o aid in the form of guarantees from the regions and autonomous provinces on loans to businesses;
o aid in the form of subsidized interest rates on business loans;

o structural measures aimed at encouraging investment, in both equity and debt capital, in the real economy and, in particular, in
unlisted companies, strengthening the capacity of long-term savings plans to channel private savings to the business world;

e a SACE guarantee for insurance companies in the credit sector equal to 90% of the indemnities generated by exposures to short-
term trade receivables;

o measures to facilitate the transfer of tax credits to banks and financial intermediaries;
o the definitive abolition of the safeguard clauses concerning increases in VAT rates and excise duties.

In addition, the decree contains specific measures to safeguard the banking system and, in particular, public guarantees for new bank bond
issues and public support in the liquidation of small banks (excluding mutual banks).

Banking supervision measures adopted by the ECB-SSM and the Bank of Italy

As regards banking supervision, the ECB, in line with the EBA guidelines, announced - through two communications of March 12 and 20,
2020 — measures in support of regulatory capital and operational relief for euro-area banks, in order to not compromise their capacity to
finance the real economy, especially in light of the temporary difficulties faced by households and firms owing to the effects of the COVID-19
pandemic.

With this objective, the following measures were defined:

o the possibility of temporarily operating below the capital level specified by the Pillar Il Capital Guidance (P2G), the Capital
Conservation Buffer (CCB) and the Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR);

o the orientation in favor of an easing of the countercyclical capital buffer (CCyB) by national authorities;

o the possibility of partially using Additional Tier 1 capital and Tier 2 capital to satisfy the Pillar Il requirement, bringing forward a
measure contained in the Capital Requirements Directive V (CRDV), which was expected to enter force in 2021. These measures
help free up capital that banks can use to support the economy. In this regard, the ECB has underscored the expectation that banks
will not use the positive impact of these measures to increase the distribution of dividends or the payment of variable bonuses;

o the application - to exposures that will become non-performing and benefit from government guarantees granted for the COVID-19
emergency - of the preferential treatment of non-performing exposures already envisaged for loans guaranteed by official export
credit agencies (i.e. minimum coverage of 0% for seven years as part of the so-called "calendar provisioning" envisaged in the
Addendum);
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o the provision for exposures guaranteed by governments as part of State measures undertaken in response to COVID-19 to benefit
from a high degree of flexibility regarding the treatment of non-performing loans (NPLs) in terms of classification of UTP loans and
provisioning in the income statement;

e a certain degree of operational flexibility granted by the competent authorities in implementing specific banking supervision
measures;

o with regard to the application of the expected credit losses (ECL) governed by IFRS 9, guidance for banks concerning the need to (i)
apply the transitional arrangements provided for by Article 473(a) of the CRR (phase-in of IFRS 9) and (i) sufficiently take into
account, in the predictive models used to estimate the cost of credit risk, of the long-term outlook characterized by greater stability.
In this regard, the ECB reserves the right to provide banks with macroeconomic scenarios in application of the provisioning policies
under IFRS 9.

In addition, the ECB, in light of the changed context and to limit any further impact on banks at this time of particular financial and operational
strain, announced that “it will deploy full flexibility when discussing with banks the implementation of NPL reduction strategies, taking into
account the extraordinary nature of current market conditions”, in addition to taking into consideration the reprogramming of supervisory
activities with possible extension of the deadlines for some non-critical supervisory measures.

On March 20, 2020 the Bank of Italy, in line with the actions taken by the ECB and the EBA Guidelines, extended the deadlines for a number
of important reporting obligations by banks (60 days for the submission of ICAAP (Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process), ILAAP
(Internal Liquidity Adequacy Assessment Process), recovery plans, and reports on outsourcing; 150 days for the submission of the first
Report on Operational Risks and Safety for banks; and 90 days for NPL plans for less-significant banks).

Communications and application guidance issued by authorities, standard setters and international bodies

Aware of how the weakening of the economy as a result of the containment measures and the recession is putting a severe strain on the
financial capacities of consumers and SMEs, so much so that the reduced liquidity in the system could lead to an increase in defaults on
loans and the need for banks to increase the provisions recorded on their balance sheets, national, EU and international authorities and
bodies have intervened with targeted corrective measures and guidelines.

In order to proactively assist banking activity in response to the complex situation created by the gradual spread of the COVID-19 pandemic,
on March 25, 2020, the EBA, following on its announcement of March 12, clarified:

¢ interpretations connected with the prudential framework for non-performing exposures, forbearance, IFRS 9, coordinated with the
simultaneous statement of the European Securities and Markets Authority (ESMA) on the accounting implications of the calculation
of expected credit losses in accordance with the standard;

e measures for consumer protection and payments systems;
o further actions to support banks’ focus on key operations and to limit any non-essential demands in the short term.

As for the first point, in reiterating its full support for the measures taken by national governments and EU bodies to mitigate the potential
systemic risk of the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, the EBA clarified that the general moratorium on payments, directed at all borrowers,
does not result in automatic classification of loans as in default, unlikely-to-pay or forborne. It emphasized the need to assess the debtor’s
financial difficulties on a case-by-case basis and to understand that the operational capability of banks in making in-depth assessments can
be more limited under the current circumstances and that short-term flexibility in operational requirements taking a mass approach or, if a
bank has to make an individual assessment of the likelihood of the counterparty’s insolvency, recommending that it should prioritize the
analysis using their risk-based approach.

More specifically, the EBA stressed that moratoriums in response to the COVID-19 epidemic, to the extent they are not borrower specific but
rather addressed to broad ranges of product classes or customers, do not have to be automatically classified as forbearance measures for
accounting purposes and as regards the prudential definition of default. However, this does not remove the obligations for credit institutions
to assess the credit quality of the exposures benefiting from these measures and identify any situation of borrowers being unlikely to pay
accordingly.

On April 2, 2020, the EBA also published the document "Guidelines on legislative and non-legislative moratoriums on loan repayments
applied in the light of the COVID-19 crisis", which provides the detailed criteria that must be fulfilled for public and private moratoriums
granted by June 30, 20203 to avoid classification of exposures under the definition of forborne or defaulted under a restructuring. The
guidelines also establish that banks must continue to promptly identify borrowers in situations of possible financial difficulty and provide for
consistent classification in accordance with the regulatory framework.

The EBA guidelines are addressed to both moratorium measures established under legislation and those initiated by private-sector actors
that have a general scope, i.e. have been granted by banks in order to prevent systemic risk by offering broad support for all companies
temporarily in difficulty due to the pandemic.

3 Deadline extended to September 30 with a subsequent EBA decision of June 18.
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The conditions and criteria that must be simultaneously fulfilled in order to be able to consider a moratorium as of general scope are
specified:

o the moratorium must be based on national law or private initiative. In the latter case, the measure must be based on a broadly
agreed initiative within the banking sector in order to ensure uniformity in the moratoriums granted by the various credit institutions;

o the moratorium must apply to broad range of obligors, determined on the basis of general criteria, such as belonging to a certain
type of customer (retail, SMEs, etc.), location in one of the areas most affected by the pandemic, type of exposure (mortgage,
leases, etc.), belonging to an industry that has been especially affected by the pandemic, etc.;

o the measure must consist exclusively of a change in payment schedules and, therefore, may consist in the suspension of payments,
their rescheduling or a temporary reduction of the principal and/or interest to be paid. The moratorium cannot involve the
modification of other contractual clauses (such as the interest rate). The EBA clarifies that if the concessions granted in the context
of COVID-19 do not substantively modify the present value of cash flows following the change, they shall not be considered onerous
and the exposures shall not be classified as in default, as the relief represents temporary support for those who are momentarily
unable to fulfill their contractual obligations due to the interruption of business as a result of the pandemic;

o the moratorium must offer the same terms and conditions to all eligible beneficiaries;
o the measure shall not apply to loans granted after the date on which the moratorium was announced;

o the moratorium must have been organized to address the emergency created by the COVID-19 pandemic and applied before June
30, 2020 (as noted earlier, this deadline was subsequently rescheduled to September 30, 2020).

As noted, the guidelines equate moratoriums granted on a private basis in response to COVID-19 with legislative moratoriums.
Consequently, “private” moratoriums also benefit from the suspension of time limits in calculating past due positions as long as they comply
with the above requirements. That said, the EBA again emphasizes that banks are in any event required to evaluate the possible
classification of customers benefiting from moratoriums as unlikely to pay, considering the borrower's ability to comply with the new payment
plan regardless of any public guarantee and excluding the reclassification of these loans as distressed restructurings.

Recognizing that there can be difficulties in carrying out individual evaluations for the purposes of classification as non-performing, the EBA
specifies that in this case banks must adopt a risk-based approach (i.e., taking into account - for example - the sectors most exposed to the
long-term effects of the crisis such as transport, tourism, hotels, retail). Accordingly, following the suspensions linked to the COVID-19
moratoriums, it is important to identify exposures that can be in arrears with respect to the new payment plans for the purpose of promptly
classifying them as non-performing.

With regard to the second point, the EBA invited financial institutions to act in the interest of the consumer, in particular when engaging with
customers regarding temporary measures for consumer and mortgage loans. In this case as well, the EBA stressed that these measures
may not automatically lead to loan reclassification from a prudential perspective and should not automatically lead to negative implications
for the debtor’'s credit rating. Finally, it invited the system to note the importance of careful consideration from a legal and reputational
perspective of any new and additional charges specifically introduced in relation to contingency measures. With reference to payment
systems, the EBA called on payment services providers to facilitate consumers’ ability to make contactless payments by making use of the
exemption from strong customer authentication (SCA).

As for the third point, in order to limit any non-essential demands on banks in the short term, the EBA has reviewed certain ongoing
activities, extending the deadlines of public consultations and, especially, the remittance date for funding plan data and, in coordination with
the Basel Committee, the submission date for the QIS based on 2019 data.

Pursuant to IFRS 9, the measurement of expected credit losses (or, in any case, losses on all financial instruments that fall within the scope
of the standard) must always be the result of a joint analysis of the following factors;

e an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes;
o the time value of money;

o reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions (particular in this case is the reference to the inclusion of "forward-looking"
mMacroeconomic scenarios).

The determination of whether a significant increase in credit risk has occurred, as required by the standard, is a multifactorial and holistic
analysis that takes account of changes in the risk of default over the expected life of the financial instruments. In the model for assessing the
cost of credit risk introduced with IFRS 9, particular importance is assumed by information on the future macroeconomic scenarios in which
the Group may find itself operating and which influence the situation of borrowers with regard to both the assessment of risk of the migration
of exposures to lower quality classes and the amounts effectively recoverable on impaired exposures.

The crisis engendered by the COVID-19 pandemic has produced a sharp deterioration in the economic outlook. The environment of
pronounced uncertainty limits the reliability of the information available, making it extremely difficult to produce detailed long-term forecasts.

In this regard, various international authorities or bodies have intervened, providing guidance to promote consistent application of
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International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) in the European Union (EU) and avoid divergence in practice on the application of IFRS
9 Financial Instruments in the specific context of the COVID-19 outbreak.

In a communication dated March 20, 2020, the ECB expressed its views on forward-looking IFRS 9 assessments, even though this is not
strictly within the scope of its prudential supervisory duties, recommending that banks avoid excessively procyclical assumptions in their
models to determine provisions. The ECB invited institutions to "give a greater weight to long-term macroeconomic forecasts evidenced by
historical information when estimating long-term expected credit losses”. On April 1, the central bank sent a letter to significant banks entitled
"Letter to banks: IFRS 9 in the context of the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic" to provide additional guidance and references on the
inclusion of forward-looking information in the determination of ECLs in accordance with IFRS 9 in the context of the COVID-19 pandemic.
The letter once again refers to the ECB’s previously expressed expectations regarding the need to avoid the use of excessively procyclical
assumptions, in consideration of the heightened uncertainty of the context and the very limited availability of "reasonable and supportable"
information.

On March 25, 2020, ESMA and EBA also intervened on the issue to emphasize - with regard to forward-looking estimates - the complexity of
the context, substantially confirming the observations of the ECB mentioned above.

In its statement, ESMA stressed how IFRS 9 presents a certain degree of flexibility in determining the indicators for the assessment of a
significant increase in credit risk, clarifying that the application of a public or private moratorium as a relief instrument for debtors that are
temporarily unable to comply with the terms of payment due to the effects of the COVID-19 outbreak should not be regarded as
automatically constituting a significant increase in credit risk.

The authority, in particular, emphasizes that when economic support programs for businesses implemented by governments reduce the risk
of default on a financial instrument, they must be appropriately considered in the assessment of whether a significant increase in credit risk
has occurred. Accordingly, a moratorium should not in itself be considered representative of a significant increase in the credit risk of a
financial instrument. In addition, the specific circumstances related to the COVID-19 epidemic represent sufficient justification to rebut the
presumption that payments more than thirty days past due are evidence of a significant increase in credit risk. This provision also represent
a significant change from the ordinary rules of IFRS 9 and will have an impact on transfers to stage 2. ESMA also invites institutions to
consider collective assessments, an approach also encouraged by the ECB, of significant increases in credit risk. In other words, given the
difficulty of identifying factors or indicators regarding riskiness at the level of the individual borrower, the authorities are asking institutions to
use a top-down approach, i.e. to start with the risk level of specific portfolios (e.g. the most affected sectors, such as hotels, tourism or
transport) and creditworthiness prior to the COVID-19 pandemic.

The EBA also emphasizes the need to distinguish - for staging purposes between exposures that will experience a temporary deterioration in
credit standing and those that will incur a structural deterioration: transfer to stage 2 should be considered only for the latter.

With regard to accounting for the effects (profit/loss from concessions) associated with contractual modifications deriving from customer
support measures, ESMA believes that institutions should assess whether economic support and relief measures could result in a
modification of the financial assets and, consequently, whether the modification leads to their derecognition. Such assessment should
include both qualitative and quantitative criteria. In light of the current circumstances, the authority reiterates that it is considered unlikely that
a modification could be considered substantial and lead to derecognition if the financial support measures will only provide temporary relief
to debtors affected by the COVID-19 pandemic and the net economic value of the loan is not significantly affected. It is however necessary
that the entities provide adequate disclosure of the accounting policies adopted to determine whether a modification is substantial.

Finally, with regard to public guarantees provided in conjunction with ex-lege moratoriums or other support measures that may have different
features in the various jurisdictions but share the fundamental one of partial or complete recovery of the loans affected by the support
measures, ESMA emphasizes that under the provisions of IFRS 9 such measures impact the measurement of expected credit losses to the
extent that they can be considered an integral part of the contractual terms governing the loans and are not recognized separately. In this
regard, ESMA notes, with regard to the first aspect, that credit enhancements do not need to be explicitly part of the contractual terms (as
envisaged by the Transition Resource Group for Impairment in December 2015): this is the case, for example, of public guarantees provided
in conjunction with broadly applicable ex-lege debt moratoriums or economic support measures. In any event, the authority highlights the
importance that such judgements be clearly disclosed in their financial statements.

On March 27, 2020, the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) published the document “COVID-19 — Accounting for expected
credit losses applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments in the light of current uncertainty resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic”, the contents of
which are consistent with the guidelines already provided by the EBA, ECB and ESMA. Briefly, the document does not change IFRS 9 but
suggests an interpretation in the current pandemic environment. Specifically, while stating that ECL estimates must take into account all
available information, it indicates that entities should not continue to apply their existing ECL methodology mechanically and acknowledges
the difficulty of incorporating the effects of COVID-19 and correlating government support measures in current models. If banks find
themselves in such a situation, they should consider making post-model management adjustments. More specifically: (i) agreeing on
tolerance measures or moratoriums should not automatically result in a significant increase in credit risk; (i) IFRS 9 does not provide bright
lines or a mechanistic approach to determining ECL; (iii) although difficult in the current environment to make ECL estimates, it is necessary
to monitor the facts and information available. The IASB also encourages the industry to follow the guidelines provided by the other
authorities (especially the ECB, EBA and ESMA), with whom it has engaged.

In line with the ESMA statements published in March 2020, Consob published warning notice 6/20 of April 9, 2020 "COVID-19 — Drawing
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attention to financial reporting" to underscore the importance for issuers to provide updated information (i) on the risks associated with
COVID-19 that may have an impact on performance or financial position; (i) on any measures taken or planned to mitigate such risks; and
(iii) an indication of a qualitative and/or quantitative nature of the potential impacts that have been considered in estimating the company’s
future performance. In addition, in reports after December 31, 2019, directors are required to carefully evaluate how up to date the business
planning is, in order to consider the main risks related to the pandemic that could preclude the achievement of the strategic objectives and/or
compromise the company's ability to continue as a going concern. These elements could be an indication that the assets recorded in the
financial statements can be impaired, thus highlighting the need to estimate the recoverable value of the asset. Specific assessments should
also be carried out on other areas of the balance sheet that could be affected by the crisis in question.

On July 16, 2020, Consob drew the attention of issuers to compliance with the recommendations provided by ESMA in its public statement
"Implications of the COVID-19 outbreak on the half-yearly financial reports" of May 20, 2020. In particular, Consob stressed that the
evaluations that the directors are required to make pursuant to I1AS 36 "Impairment of assets" (IAS 36 paragraphs 9 and 12) take on
importance in the preparation of the next half-yearly reports, and in particular it must be assessed whether the effects of the COVID-19
epidemic constitute indicators of impairment such as to require specific checks to be carried out on the recoverability of assets. The authority
underlines the importance of the description of the significant uncertainties and risks associated with COVID-19. With reference to
the description of the impact of the COVID-19 outbreak on the income statement, issuers should provide information, including on a
quantitative basis, in a single note in their interim financial statements, in order to enable readers of those statements to understand the
overall impact of the pandemic on the economic performance of the period. Furthermore, in relation to the disclosure to be made in the
interim reports on operations, Consob recommends that issuers provide, where available, detailed and specific information in relation to the
impacts of COVID-19 on strategic planning and plan targets, economic performance, financial position and cash flows..

On April 3 the Basel Committee intervened, stating how the extraordinary measures taken to alleviate the economic and financial impact of
COVID-19 must be reflected in capital requirements.

As better explained herein, and based on the foundation of the earlier guidance and recommendations, on April 28, 2020 the European
Commission presented a banking package amending the CRR (called the CRR quick fix due to the special legislative process involved) to
facilitate lending to households and businesses to mitigate the economic impact of the COVID-19. The package includes an interpretive
communication, which confirms the recent statements on the use of flexibility that is embedded in the existing accounting and prudential
rules expressed by international standard setters and European sector authorities, as well as some proposed modifications to EU banking
regulations, to be adopted quickly so that they can come into force by the summer. The legislative measures have the stated objective of
maximizing banks’ lending capacity and to absorb losses related to the COVID-19 outbreak, while remaining consistent with the overall
prudential framework.
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Amendments to the CRR (the CRR Quick Fix)

On June 26, 2020, Regulation (EU) 2020/873 amending the CRR and CRR Il was published in the Official Journal of the European Union in
order to adapt the prudential regulatory framework to the needs arising in relation to the COVID-19 emergency. The regulation introduces,
inter alia, measures to ease capital requirements that in most cases have been in force since June 27, 2020, such as:

amendments to the transitional arrangements for IFRS 9 that allow banks to sterilize not only the static and dynamic components of
the filter introduced in 2018 but also the capital impacts associated with the increase in provisions compared with January 1, 2020 on
performing loans (i.e., those in stages 1 and 2) in the 2020-2024 period (the “new” dynamic component). More specifically, the
regulation allows institutions to add back to their Common Equity Tier 1 capital a progressively decreasing portion of the increase in
provisions, equal to 100% in 2020 and 2021, 75% in 2022, 50% in 2023 and 25% in 2024. On an optional basis, institutions may
derogate from the application of the factors graduating provisions (symmetrical to the adjustment made to CET1 for all the static, old
dynamic and new dynamic phase-in components) against the 100% weighting of the adjustment made to CET1;

the introduction of a prudential filter relating to the OCI reserve on government securities to mitigate the negative impact of the
volatility in financial markets and central government debt on regulatory capital. The temporary treatment, applicable from January 1,
2020 to December 31, 2022, would allow the exclusion, where institutions should elect to apply the treatment, from the calculation of
CET1 items of a progressively decreasing amount (100% in 2020, 70% in 2021, 40% in 2022) of unrealized gains and losses
accumulated since December 31, 2019 and recognized in the balance sheet under “fair value changes of debt instruments
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income” corresponding to exposures to central governments, provided that
such exposures are not classified as credit impaired financial assets;

the early application of the new, more favorable, measures introduced by CRR Il regarding: (i) the SME supporting factor, (ii) the
infrastructure supporting factor and (iii) more favorable treatment of loans guaranteed by the transfer of salaries/pensions. The date
of application of these measures was brought forward to June 27, 2020, the date of entry into force of the regulation, from the
original date of June 28, 2021 envisaged in the CRR Il;

the introduction of temporary treatment for public debt issued in the currency of another Member State. Until December 31, 2024,
exposures to the central governments and central banks of Member States, where such exposures are denominated and funded in
the domestic currency of another Member State, shall receive more favorable credit risk weights. In addition, the competent
authorities may increase the limits on the size of exposures banks are allowed to incur for the purposes of regulating large
exposures;

the immediate application of the EBA RTSs on the prudential treatment of software. The CRR Il introduced provisions to modify the
regulatory treatment of software assets, providing for their exemption from deductions from CET 1, with the EBA being charged with
developing the related technical standards (currently in consultation) to specify under which conditions the exemption is applicable.
The date of application of the new prudential treatment of software was set in the CRR Il at 12 months from the entry into force of
those technical standards. To free up capital and support banks' digital investments, Regulation 2020/873 advances the date of
application to the date of entry into force of the technical standards;

with regard to the prudential backstop rules for non-performing loans ("calendar provisioning"), an extension of the preferential
treatment of loans guaranteed by export credit agencies (SACE in ltaly) with regard to provisioning obligations (0% for the first 7
years, 100% only in the eighth year) for all exposures guaranteed by governments (limited to the guaranteed portion of the
exposure);

the temporary exclusion, subject to the exercise of discretion by the competent authority, of certain exposures to central banks from
the calculation of the leverage ratio. The discretion in this matter was exercised by the ECB on September 16, 2020;

the introduction of a temporary method for calculating the exposure value of regular-way purchases and sales awaiting settlement for
the purposes of the leverage ratio, which provides for the possibility of offsetting the entire nominal value of the payables associated
with regular-way purchases with the full nominal value of the cash receivables for regular-way sales awaiting settlement, under
certain conditions.
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3. DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS OF THE ICBG, GEOGRAPHICAL DISTRIBUTION, STRUCTURAL ARRANGEMENTS,
SPECIFIC NATURE OF THE AFFILICATED BANKS AND THEIR MISSION

The procedure for the establishment and authorization of the Iccrea Cooperative Banking Group, which began following the 2016 reform of
the mutual banking industry, was completed with the registration of the Group by the Bank of Italy in the Register of Banking Groups on
March 4, 2019.

The mutual banks joined the Group by submitting to their shareholders' meetings the amendments to their articles of association necessary
for participation in the Group, defined in agreement between the participating mutual banks and the Parent Company, and subsequently
signing the Cohesion Contract and the Guarantee Agreement, which constitute the legal conditions for their participation in the Group.

This implemented the reform of Italy’s Consolidated Banking Act (Legislative Decree no. 385/1993) with Law 49/2016 and the associated
implementing measures of the Bank of Italy. The reform of the Consolidated Banking Act sought to ensure the cohesion and strength of the
mutual banking segment, while pursuing the objectives of stability, efficiency and competitiveness and, at the same time, the necessary
balance between the need to enhance the autonomy and ties to the local communities that are typical of mutual banks and the need for unity
in strategic action. In essence, the reform did not bring changes to the rules in Italy governing the cooperative, local nature of mutual banks,
but rather removed any obstacles that, in this increasingly complex market and legislative environment, now even more affected by the
impact of the COVOD-19 pandemic, could have, over the medium to long term, reduced the ability of mutual banks to serve their
communities with their traditional business model and the small size of each individual bank.

The Cohesion Contract

The approach adopted calls for formation of a group based on contractual arrangements between the Parent Company and the affiliated
mutual banks. The mutual banking group therefore hinges on this Cohesion Contract (as per Article 37-bis of the Consolidated Banking Act),
by which the affiliated banks grant the Parent Company powers of management and coordination, exercised on a proportionate basis and as
a function of the relative health of the affiliated banks themselves (i.e. a risk-based approach).

The ICBG Cohesion Contract establishes the rights and obligations of the members of the Iccrea Cooperative Banking Group and also
acknowledges the powers of direction and coordination granted to the Parent Company. These powers are to be exercised, in particular, in
areas such as corporate governance, strategic planning, risk management, internal controls, information systems, and guarantees. In this
regard, in addition to the general powers of guidance and coordination of the group and of subsidiaries, the Cohesion Contract also governs
the specific powers needed in order to ensure the unity and effectiveness of the systems of management and control at the consolidated
level and compliance with the requirements of prudence, with the reporting obligations of the group and all its members, and with other
banking and financial-service laws and regulations. To these powers, we can add those that are specifically related to governance of the
affiliated banks, particularly as concerns the formation and appointment of corporate bodies and officers by way of provisions in the standard
articles of association of the affiliated banks and specific rules for Group elections and of meetings of shareholders, rules concerning cases
in which the Parent Company may appoint, oppose, or remove one or more members of the boards of directors and boards of auditors of the
affiliated banks, until establishment of a majority, as well as related procedures. As such, these powers entail an exception to the rule
maintained in the Consolidated Banking Act for mutual banks according to which appointment of members of the boards of directors and of
auditors is within the purview of the competent corporate bodies.

The Parent Company is required to exercise its powers of management and coordination with the goal of ensuring the stability of the Group
and all its members in full compliance with the principle of sound, prudent management, while supporting the affiliated banks in their pursuit
of the objectives established in their articles of the association and promoting the cooperative spirit and local nature of the mutual banks and
of the Group as a whole. Involvement of the affiliated banks also occurs in specific occasions for consultation with the mutual banks, which
are also established in the Consolidated Banking Act and meet at least annually, in which they issue non-binding opinions to the Parent
Company.

The Guarantee Scheme

The Cohesion Contract calls for the joint and several guarantee of all obligations assumed by the Parent Company and by the affiliated
banks in observance of the principles of prudence applicable to banking groups and to the individual affiliated banks as a further necessary
factor in the establishment of the ICBG. This guarantee is an integral part of the Cohesion Contract, and acceptance of this provision is
mandatory when signing the Cohesion Contract and becoming a member of the Iccrea Cooperative Banking Group. This cross-guarantee
between the Parent Company and the affiliated banks is governed by contract with the effect of qualifying the liabilities of the Parent
Company and of the affiliated banks as joint and several obligations of all those who accept the agreement. In other words, all affiliated
banks and the Parent Company are bound — both internally and externally — by all obligations assumed by the Parent Company or by any
affiliated bank.

The guarantee also calls for intercompany financial support mechanisms under which the members of the group provide mutual support to
ensure solvency and liquidity, particularly with regard to compliance with the requirements of prudence and those of the supervisory
authorities as well as to avoid, where necessary, being subject to the insolvency procedures of Legislative Decree 180/2015 or the
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compulsory liquidation procedures of Article 80 et seq. of the Consolidated Banking Act.

Any necessary injections of capital or liquidity to support the affiliated banks — taking account of the output of the early warning system
(EWS) - in order to ensure the solvency and liquidity of the individual members of the group are to be carried out by the Parent Company
alone, drawing on the financial resources made available by the various members in execution of the Guarantee Agreement.

Support efforts may include:

o capitalization measures (including the subscription of CET1-eligible financing shares issued by the affiliated banks in accordance
with Article 150-ter of the Consolidated Banking Act) making use of the Ex Ante Share of the readily available funds;

o liquidity support measures (e.g. financing operations of appropriately established term or securities lending) making use of the Ex
Post Quota of the readily available funds by way of special-purpose lines of credit or using ex ante funds;

o any other form of intervention deemed appropriate by the Parent Company.

In order to ensure the ready availability of the funds needed to carry out guarantee interventions, each member of the Group provides the
Parent Company with “readily available funds” in the form of an amount established ex ante and an amount that can be called in by the
Parent Company when needed (the Ex Post Quota) following the procedures established in the Cohesion Contract.

In order to reconcile the need for an ample guarantee even in situations of stress with that of preserving the financial strength of each
member of the group, while avoiding potential “contagious episodes” of instability, the guarantee obligation assumed by each participating
entity is commensurate with their risk-weighted assets and kept within the limits of any capital in excess of their individual requirements,
without prejudice to compliance with said requirements.

At least once a year, the Parent Company shall conduct stress tests of the Group aimed at determining the readily available funds and
consequently adjusting the shares of the affiliated banks based on the greater or lesser amount already provided to the Parent Company.
Therefore, execution of these stress tests is a cornerstone of the entire cross-guarantee framework. The outcome of these stress tests is
used to quantify the total amount of readily available funds and, consequently, the guarantee obligations of the affiliated banks and also
serves to calibrate the early warning system thresholds.

In order to ensure the ready availability of funds for the Guarantee Scheme, independent of the outcome of stress testing, a minimum level
for the Ex Ante Quota has been set at 0.50% of the RWAs of the individual affiliated banks.

The organizational structure of the Iccrea Cooperative Banking Group
As summarized in the following chart, at June 30, 2020, the ICBG is structured as follows:

o the Parent Company, Iccrea Banca SpA, which is responsible for the strategic and operational oversight of the Group and for
interacting with the supervisory authority;

o the companies subject to the management and coordination of the Parent Company, which include:
- the affiliated banks, participating in the ICBG in virtue of the Cohesion Contract signed with the Parent Company;

- subsidiaries held, directly or indirectly, by the Parent Company in accordance with points 1 and 2 of Article 2359 of the Italian
Civil Code, over which the Parent Company exercises management, coordination and control powers (by convention, these
companies are said to fall within the “direct scope” of management and coordination);

- companies controlled by affiliated banks, separately or jointly, by way of equity investments, over which the Parent Company
directly or indirectly exercises management, coordination and control powers in light of their instrumental roles within the ICBG
(by convention, these companies are said to fall within the “indirect scope” of management and control);

o other subsidiaries of the Parent Company, held directly or through the affiliated banks, over which Iccrea Banca does not exercise
specific management, coordination, or control power.

A list of companies included within scope of consolidation of the Iccrea Cooperative Banking Group is provided in the notes to the financial
statements (Part A — Accounting Policies, section 3, sub-section 1). This scope of accounting consolidation essentially coincides with the
prudential scope of consolidation.
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Organizational structure of the Parent Company

IccreaBanca

ICCREA COOPERATIVE BANKING GROUP

Direct Scope

Entities controlled directly
or indirectly by the Parent
Company through an
interest in the equity of the
investee, pursuant to
points 1 and 2 of Article

Affiliated Banks

The Mutual Banks
participating in the Iccrea
Cooperative Banking Grop
under the provisions of
the Cohesion Contract

Indirect Scope

Entities controlled by the
Affiliated Banks, including
jointly, through an interest

in the equity of the
investee, over which the
Parent Company exercises
direct or indirect
management, coordination

Other subsidiaries

Other entities controlled
by the Parent Company,
including through the
Affiliated Banks, over
which the Iccrea Banca
does not exercise specific

2359 of the Italian Civil with the Parent Company and control authority as a management, coordination
Code company of the Iccrea and control authority
Cooperative Banking
E,E‘,E Group

SCOPE OF MANAGEMENT AND COORDINATION  |-------------~- !

The Parent Company’s organization features a hierarchical structure. The first-level units report either to the Board of Directors (in the case
of corporate control functions) or to the General Manager and mainly include organizational units that perform complementary/synergistic
activities with related functional and operational traits and/or that belong to the same technical or operational area, thereby ensuring
performance of the duties necessary in order to carry out the activities of the Parent Company and coordinate the decisions and operations
of the units below them.

Starting in June 2019, a revision of the organizational structure of the Parent Company was begun in order to:

o further rationalize the top management structure;
¢ enhance the effectiveness of the governance of operations and strengthen decision-making lines with top management;
o increase centralized control over cost management.

During the first half of 2020, additional organizational initiatives were undertaken to simplify and enhance the efficiency of Group governance
and greater specialization by area of competence, with the following main interventions:

o creation of a single Group ICT center (the "Group ICT Evolution project’, on which more below), which mainly involved the
integration of the ICT component of Iccrea Banca with BCC Sistemi Informatici;

e centralization of the coordination and supervision of the Bank's back office activities, including the definition of operational models for
back office functions and guidance for procurement office and facility management activities;

¢ enhancement of specific activities implemented with the launch of the ICBG, such as real estate;

e centralization of the analysis, specification and formalization of processes with an "end-to-end" approach for the entire ICBG;
¢ reduction of organizational levels and generation of savings through the integration of structures with contiguous activities;

e consolidation of the Group cost management and credit management models;

o specification of responsibilities relating to the formalization of the guidelines on insurance coverage for the Parent Company and the
companies within the direct scope of consolidation.
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The current organizational model of the Parent Company therefore envisages:

second and third-level corporate control functions, which report directly to the Board of Directors and are organized into the following
areas: Chief Audit Executive (CAE); Chief Risk Officer (CRO); Chief Compliance Officer (CCO); and the Chief AML Officer (CAMLO).
Each function has its own territorial structure through which control activities on behalf of the affiliated banks are outsourced. Internal
Audit is also fully centralized for the direct scope companies. During the first half of the year, organizational initiatives were carried
out — with specific authorization from the supervisory authorities — to revise the models of the AML and Compliance functions with a
view to centralizing the function at the Parent Company, using specific outsourcing agreements, for the companies within the direct
scope as well. The new models, which will become operational in the second half of the year, will strengthen governance while
generating synergies and efficiencies. For further details, please see the more complete discussion concerning the Internal Control
System.

areas that report to the General Manager and which are centered around the following main areas of responsibility:

the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) Area: an area that ensures the proper management of the Group’s financial assets,
recommending investment strategies and ensuring financial stability, managing liquidity and funding, and managing related risks.
The CFO ensures implementation of the strategies and policies concerning management control and planning, while also
ensuring the proper, timely execution of separate and consolidated financial reporting and fulfillment of related accounting, tax
and regulatory obligations. This area also manages relations with investors and ratings agencies;

the Chief Operating Officer (COO) Area: an area dedicated to defining strategies and the Group’s overall model of operations.
This function manages the Procurement Office and organizational issues, while also ensuring the management and development
of the real estate portfolios of the Parent Company and of the companies within the direct scope and the tools and approaches
for managing these real estate portfolios efficiently and effectively;

the Credit and Subsidiaries Area: an area responsible for supporting the General Manager in coordinating relations with the
companies within the direct scope,? supervising the formation of strategic lending guidelines for the Group and
institutional/professional insurance coverage for the Group and companies in the direct scope. In addition, working through the
Chief Lending Officer (CLO) Area, it;

v" manages all areas of lending — from loan approval to the management of non-performing loans — and oversees and
coordinates these activities carried out by the affiliated banks;

v manages credit quality, defines lending policies, and ensures their implementation;

v defines the guidance for taking on and managing credit risk in line with established strategies and objectives and oversees
performance of lending and administrative obligations related to the portfolio of non-performing loans;

the Chief Business Officer (CBO) Area: an area responsible for defining and implementing the Group’s business strategy with
the goal of supporting profitability, ensuring the ongoing development of the approach to the market, developing market
positioning, and ensuring the strategic and operational support of the mutual banks. This area also oversees the various
divisions of business (i.e. Retail, Corporate, Private Banking & Wealth Management) responsible for defining and implementing
ICBG commercial policies and the regional market areas responsible for supporting local operations of the business divisions in
line with the general strategies of the area and of the Group. The area includes the functions of marketing and commercial
planning, as well as functions dedicated to the ongoing process of innovation and digital transformation;

the Chief Information Officer (CIO) Area: an area that coordinates and governs the definition of ICT strategies, policies and
guidelines and handling the Group's Information and Communication Technology (ICT) area, consistent with the specified
operational continuity requirements. It also provides information services to the Parent Company and other companies of the
ICBG based on an outsourcing agreement, exercising oversight and coordination over said companies. The CIO is also
responsible for the functional coordination of the information systems of the subsidiaries and of BCC Sistemi Informatici.

the Mutual Bank Governance, Institutional Relations and Legal Area: an area that is responsible for contributing to and managing
the guidance and coordination efforts called for in the Cohesion Contract and, with regard to capital and financial management
policies, manages relations with the affiliated banks for issues related to the EWS (including official publication of the criteria and
outcome of classification and of the EWS directives), the Guarantee Scheme and other Group initiatives that call for the
involvement of the affiliated banks. The unit also supports the functions of the Parent Company in implementing the initiatives
that have an impact on the affiliated banks and handles legal affairs and manages acts and relations with corporate bodies.

Completing the Parent Company’s organizational structure and model of operations are the various local offices, which are organized based
on the specific operational needs of the affiliated banks in order to maintain close relations in carrying out the Parent Company’s duties of
management and coordination. More specifically, the Parent Company has established a regional network of 11 local offices in order to
maintain close contact with the affiliated banks within its various areas of responsibility (mainly Planning & Management Control, Financial
Reporting & Administration, Taxes, General Counsel, and Human Resources & Organization). Management and coordination of the local
offices is entrusted to the Local Office Coordination unit.

4 Without prejudice to existing functional, operational and budget coordination relationships with the competent units of the Parent Company.
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The organizational measures implemented during the first half of 2020 include the following:

in the COO Area:

- a revision of the Human Resources area within the COO Area, which with a view to enhancing efficiency and increasing
specialization involved:

v’ the establishment of the Human Resources and Organization Management and Development Unit, with responsibility for (i)
the management, development and training of human resources, (i) the implementation of change management initiatives
and projects, (iii) the management of internal communication, (iv) the management of organizational issues with reference
to organizational structures and models and the sizing of staff resources for the various units and (iv) the definition of
succession plans;

v the establishment of the Industrial Relations, Compensation, Workforce Planning Unit, with responsibility for (i) managing
relations with trade unions, (i) creating/maintaining compensation and benefit systems, (iii) managing people care activities,
(iv) planning the workforce and associated costs, (v) managing the selection, appointment and remuneration processes
relating to the top management of the Group and other personnel under the responsibility of the Remuneration Committee,
as well as relations with the internal board committees on appointments and remuneration;

- the establishment of the Back Office unit with responsibility for (i) managing back office development projects, (i) coordinating
and supervising the Bank's back office activities,5 (iii) defining back office operating models and guidance for procurement office
activities and (iv) coordinating operational activities relating to facility management and management of workstations for
companies within the direct scope;

- the reallocation of personnel administration activities in the Back Office unit;

- the establishment of the Real Estate unit with responsibility for handling the process of managing and leveraging the real estate
assets of the Parent Company and the companies within the direct scope, identifying, at the Group level, tools and methods to
ensure the appropriate development and management of those assets;

- the organizational revision of the Integrated Security Unit, giving the head of the unit the role of "Head of the Information Security
Incident Response Plan - ISRP" of the business continuity system, a role previously performed by the head of the ICT Security
unit;

in the Credit and Subsidiaries Area, the establishment of the Institutional Insurance Management Unit with responsibility for defining
the Group guidelines on institutional/professional insurance coverage and, in this context, defining and overseeing the various types
of insurance coverage provided within the Parent Company and the companies of the direct scope, in close coordination with the
various stakeholders;

in the CIO Area, as part of the "Group ICT Evolution" project to create a single ICT center bringing together the Group's ICT
operations:

- the transfer of the ICT units of Iccrea Banca and Iccrea Bancalmpresa to BCC Sistemi Informatici (BCC SI) with the consequent
outsourcing of IT services to BCC SI;

- the updating of the organizational structure of the Chief Information Officer Area consistent with the organizational changes
being implemented in the Area in order to ensure appropriate governance of the ICT issues entrusted to BCC Sistemi Informatici
and to eliminate the dedicated units the previously performed those functions;

with regard to non-board committees, as part of a broader project to revise the Group's "cost management model", the establishment
of the "Costs and Investments Committee", which is responsible for costs and investments for the Group, taking responsibility, above
certain thresholds, for authorizing the individual spending proposals (ASA/project initiatives), as well as for validating all extra-budget
requests prior to their presentation for approval by the Board of Directors of the Parent Company. In addition, the rules of the
Lending Committee were updated, changing the roles and operation of the committee in order to enhance its contribution to the
Group lending management model and more consistent with the new organizational structure of the Parent Company.

Finally, note that as September 15, 2020, Mr. Boccuzzi no longer holds the role of Senior Deputy General Manager, having resigned and
terminated his relationship with Iccrea Banca.

5 Collections and payments, securities post-trading, tax requirements connected with the management of financial instruments, personnel administration, pay and contribution services.
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Distinctive features of the mutual banks: special legislation, shareholders and customers

In Italian law, mutual credit activities enjoy dual constitutional recognition. As part of the wider cooperative movement, it is protected by
Article 45, which recognizes “the social function of cooperation of a mutual and non-speculative nature”, while in its function of intermediation
of savings and credit, it falls within the particular duty that Article 47 assigns to the Republic to encourage and safeguard savings in all its
forms and to regulate, coordinate and control the exercise of credit activities.

In 1993, with the introduction of the Consolidated Banking Act, mutual banks, which have been operating in Italy since the late 1800s, saw
the elimination of certain operational restrictions such that they could now provide all the products and services of other banks — with the
sole exception of purely speculative investments — and extend the purchase of shares to all those who live or work within the bank’s territory,
regardless of the particular profession, thereby bringing the service model closer to those of other commercial banks, while maintaining their
longstanding ties with the local community.

In addition to a business model based on this relationship, the difference between the mutual banks and their more traditional brethren is
explicated in Articles 33 et seq. of the Consolidated Banking Act (with the substantial amendments introduced with Reform Law 49/2016).

More specifically, primary legislation (Articles 33-37 of the Consolidated Banking Act, as amended by the legislation governing mutual
banking groups) requires the following of mutual banks: (i) that they be established as limited-liability, joint-stock cooperatives (societa
cooperativa per azioni a responsabilita limitata); (ii) that they have no fewer than 500 shareholders; (iii) that their shareholders be residents
of or have operations, on an ongoing basis, in the community in which the bank operates; (iv) that every shareholder have one vote,
regardless of the number of shares held; (v) that no shareholder may own shares with a total nominal value of greater than €100,000; and
(vii) that at least 70% of annual net profits be allocated to the legal reserve (3% of annual net profits is allocated to mutual funds for the
promotion and development of cooperation efforts).

The vocation of service to local communities is also expressed in secondary legislation issued by the Bank of Italy (Bank of Italy Circular no.
285, Part Ill, Chapter 5), which, in implementation of Article 35(2) of the Consolidated Banking Act,® states that no less than 95% of all
business shall be conducted within the bank’s territory,” and at least 50% of this business shall be in favor of shareholders,® such that the
funding of the bank shall, in essence, go to supporting and financing the economic growth of the traditional area of operations. This
legislation ensuring the local and cooperative nature of mutual banks is confirmed in the mutual banking reform, the objective of which, as
confirmed by the Bank of Italy, was solely that of overcoming the legislative and operational limitations typical of cooperatives — which could
hinder rapid recapitalization when needed, including by accessing the capital markets — and the inefficiencies related to the limited size of
such organizations (see Circular no. 285, Part lIl, Chapter 5, Section 1, sub-section 1).

The mutual banks are therefore subject to special articles of association: an extensive system of rules and controls surrounding banking
activity in order to protect savings and ensure financial stability is intertwined with specific rules safeguarding their mutual nature. The reform
of mutual banking enabled local communities to remain the owners of their mutual banks and the mutual banks to maintain an adequate
level of operational autonomy, correlated with their degree of risk.

In line with their nature as mutual banks, the affiliated banks pursue the objective of maximizing their social utility in the conduct of their
business. Their operations are inspired by the fundamental principles of cooperation in the affiliated banks’ customer focus and ties to the
community, thereby contributing to the social and cultural development of the communities in which they operate by way of active
sustainability actions.

As will be described below, the banking services provided are keenly focused on the provision of traditional lending, such as mortgage and
business loans, in order to best meet the financing needs of the banks’ customers. Direct funding, too, is made up of traditional banking
products, such as deposit accounts, repos, current accounts, savings accounts, and bonds. Indirect funding and asset management mainly
features the provision of products and services designed to minimize any reputational risk. With regard to investment products, customers
are provided the opportunity to invest in mutual funds and SICAVs that offer ethical products and products tied to environmental protection.

The offering is completed with a wide range of payment services, online banking, and insurance products. It also features treasury services
for municipal governments, hospitals, and other public bodies and organizations. All of these features of operations make the affiliated banks
key actors in supporting economic development in the communities in which they operate, thanks to their specific offering of banking
products and services, which has enabled them to maintain stability in savings and investment over the years and to provide contact access
to credit for their local communities.

In their pursuit of business objectives centered around social cohesion and the improvement of their local communities, the mutual banks

6 Which states that articles of association shall contain provisions related to assets, lending, funding, and territory of operations, as well as to the powers granted to the parent company in accordance
with Article 37-bis, with such provisions being based on the criteria set by the Bank of Italy.

" Known as the limit on out-of-area operations. The limit does not include exposures to or secured by:

- central government entities of the Italian Republic or other euro-area countries, the European Central Bank and the Bank of Italy;
- the parent company and other companies belonging to a mutual banking group, including commitments and guarantees undertaken in execution of the joint and several Guarantee Agreement;
- guarantee systems established between mutual banks.

8 Known as the prevalent operations rule, for which exposures to or secured by the following entities are treated as comparable to exposures to shareholders:

- central government entities of the Italian Republic or other euro-area countries, the European Central Bank and the Bank of Italy;
- the parent company and other companies belonging to a mutual banking group, including commitments and guarantees undertaken in execution of the joint and several Guarantee Agreement;
- guarantee systems established between mutual banks.
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(and the Group companies that serve them) are constantly engaged in enhancing the offering with banking and lending products tied to
initiatives of environmental sustainability and in developing investment products aimed at promoting community-centric and ethical banking
practices. Of particular note in this regard are products and initiatives aimed at combating environmental, social and governance (ESG)
risks. The affiliated banks have always had a reputation for understanding that promoting social and environmental sustainability ensures
economic equilibrium in the community concerned. This can be seen in their sustainability reports and the consolidated non-financial
statement of the Iccrea Group, which report on the many products and projects dedicated to their shareholders, to non-profit organizations,
to employees, to businesses in the community, to the creation of jobs and the promotion of young entrepreneurs, to environmental
protection, and to culture and other initiatives.

As concerns the provision of credit in particular, the affiliated banks are constantly committed to financing lawful, ethical activities, which
tends to exclude businesses, individuals, and other financial relationships in areas seen as being controversial, such as: businesses that
directly or indirectly hinder individual development or contribute to the violation of other fundamental human rights; activities connected to the
promotion of gambling or pornography; activities connected with the promotion of weapons production or of other harmful products; and
activities that present an elevated risk of harming the environment.

There is also a significant commitment to providing and placing ethical or environmental investment products. Efforts aimed at the provision
of banking and lending products connected with environmental sustainability feature initiatives to promote a culture of energy savings and
the responsible use of resources, including actions that involve the mutual banks directly, and their customers indirectly, through products of
low environmental impact, financing to help businesses and households install systems for the generation of renewable energy (i.e. solar,
wind, or thermal), projects to improve the energy efficiency of buildings, and financing for the purchase of environmentally sustainable
vehicles.

Socially responsible mutual funds are also offered as ethical forms of investment that give investors the option of donating a portion of their
investment to projects of social good. In the same way, there are specific lines of personalized, diversified asset management accounts that
invest solely in ethical financial instruments.

Business microcredit, governed by Article 111 et seq. of the Consolidated Banking Act and promoted as a tool of social development and
financial inclusion, also plays an important role. Microcredit provides access to credit for young entrepreneurs with great ideas and initiative
but little or no collateral. For these young entrepreneurs, the lack of a credit history, collateral, or personal guarantees makes it difficult, if not
impossible, to access credit despite having a good idea for a new business. The signing of a specific memorandum of understanding
between Iccrea and the National Microcredit Agency is intended to increase the number of mutual banks operating in the particular segment
and to increase the already notable volume of business in this area. In 2019, one microcredit transaction in four in Italy (guaranteed by a
specific section of the Guarantee Fund for SMEs) was carried out by the mutual banks belonging to the Iccrea Cooperative Banking Group.

Similar initiatives are under way to promote social microcredit. A second memorandum signed with the National Microcredit Agency regards
the promotion of social microcredit among the mutual banks participating in the Iccrea Cooperative Banking Group and the formation of a
joint working group to conduct a feasibility study for the establishment of a guarantee fund to facilitate the access of individuals and
households in difficulty to credit.

The concepts of mutualism and localism that characterize the model of the Iccrea Cooperative Banking Group go well with that of
sustainable development, an objective explicitly expressed in Article 2 of the articles of association of the mutual banks, which integrate the
bank’s mission with the promotion of responsible and sustainable growth of the local community. The creation of economic and financial
value in the operations of the Group’s mutual banks is closely associated with the creation of the environmental, social and cultural value of
local communities.

The Iccrea Cooperative Banking Group pursues a strategy aimed at ensuring the stability and development of mutual banks while respecting
their territorial, historical, cultural, social and economic identity as enshrined in the “Code of Ethics and Conduct’, inspired by the historical
principles and ethical values of cooperation in credit activities. The Group is strongly oriented in its choices and conduct towards the
mutualistic and ethical principles and the values of the mutual banks as expressed within their articles of association and in the Charter of
Mutual Banking Values, which represents the “constitution” guiding the action of the mutual banks.

With an approach based on partnership and support between the Parent Company and affiliated banks, the Group promotes the
development of competitive capacities and the improvement of mutual bank positioning on the market by leveraging the dominant principle
of mutuality as set out in the provisions of the Italian Civil Code from Title VI - “Cooperative societies and mutual insurance undertakings”,
Chapter | -"Cooperative companies” to Article 2511 et seq., which still distinguishes mutual banks from the traditional banking system.

In order to ensures that this natural role of banks in sustainable development is visible at the national level and to respond to an often
improper use of the term “sustainable”, the Group considers it appropriate and strategic to enhance the “sustainability” of the banking model
of the mutual banks and the Group.

The mutual banks make a significant contribution to local communities through their charitable activities, which are primarily targeted at:

o projects and other activities aimed at assisting children and the elderly in need, as well as assisting those who are experiencing
social hardship or exclusion, the sick and disabled, and other vulnerable segments of the population; the promotion of sports; civil
protection; and the development of local communities and local resources;
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e education, research and culture, particularly for young people and the elderly and with an emphasis on cooperation and on economic
and social inclusion (supporting schools and other training and research institutions in their research projects and other specific
events; scholarships and research grants for graduate and post-graduate programs; education initiatives to promote the responsible
use of money; initiatives to promote employment among young people; and the promotion of start-ups and innovation);

o health care research and assistance through the projects of prestigious health care organizations, including in collaboration with
universities and other local and national research institutes and by funding scholarships;

o the promotion of culture, financing historical and literary studies and initiatives, with a particular emphasis on the traditions and
customs of the local communities; exhibits and other events tied to local culture; restoration and development of local cultural
landmarks.

The mission of supporting local communities is further underscored by the level of participation in the credit and philanthropic support
measures taken in response to the COVID emergency.

At the end of the first half of the year, the total number of moratorium applications relating to the various types of intervention (legislative,
ABI, bank initiatives, etc.) granted by the Group numbered about 205 thousand (compared with some 219 thousand applications received),
with a total gross exposure of approximately €21.9 billion (equal to about 26% of the Group’s overall ordinary customer loan portfolio). In
terms of volumes, about 66% of these applications regarded the moratorium in support of micro-enterprises and SMEs, with the remainder
involving retail customers.

With regard to the additional credit measures adopted at the national level (Decree Law 23 of April 8, 2020, the so-called "Liquidity Decree"),
at the end of the period, the Group had received amount 95 thousand applications for a total of about €3.2 billion, while the value of loans
granted in response to the applications amount to around €1.8 billion. The preponderant share of these transactions (about 78% in terms of
volumes disbursed) involved new loans with a maximum value of €25,000 guaranteed by the Central Guarantee Fund (Article 13, paragraph
1, letter m, of Decree Law 23 of April 8, 2020).

The overall value of the philanthropic initiatives undertaken by Group banks in March-June 2020 to support the fight against the COVID-19
pandemic (including those originating from the clubs of young members, members, foundations and employee associations) exceeded €8
million, in addition to the initiative of the Federazione delle BCC Marchigiane and the mutual banking system fundraising promoted by
Federcasse, in which the Group also participated with a contribution of €500 thousand.

The mutual bank mission — Sustainability and environmental protection

The concept of sustainability is a natural evolution in the community-centric genetic makeup of the mutual banking system. Over the years,
the cooperative, mutualistic roots of the mutual banks have led affiliated banks to pursue, within their own communities, the sustainable
development goals (SDGs) defined in the UN’s 2030 Agenda.

At the Iccrea Cooperative Banking Group, we believe that sustainability is an opportunity to reassert the principles and values of cooperation
in banking while emphasizing the attention that mutual banks pay to their communities and local economies in respect of the environment
and in pursuit of the goals of Article 2 of the articles of association. To this end, the Group has always invested in creating a system of
sustainability governance that integrates the environmental, social and governance (ESG) factors in both strategy and operations, supported
by a model of operations based on specific centers of responsibility.

In May 2019, we appointed an Executive Director of Sustainability and Consolidated Non-Financial Reporting for the Group, who is
responsible for developing the sustainability plan and preparing and approving the consolidated non-financial statement.

This executive director is assisted by the Chiefs Committee for Sustainability, which is responsible for supporting the Public Affairs &
Sustainability unit in setting sustainability goals and in subsequent implementation of the actions needed to achieve those goals, and by the
Sustainability Science Committee, comprising ten members representing the primary stakeholders of the Group, which is tasked with
providing the executive director with an external and strategic point of view on the sustainability goals and to the related plan and non-
financial statement.

At the operational level, the Public Affairs & Sustainability unit has been created as a vehicle of dialogue between the mutual banks and the
Parent Company. This unit is dedicated to sustainability management, both in terms of non-financial reporting and for the development plan
and integration of ESG concerns. The Public Affairs & Sustainability unit interacts with the mutual banks, engaging in collaborative activities
and other support efforts for mutual banks to promote innovation and community development. With a view to leveraging the role of the
mutual banks as local banks, the Public Affairs & Sustainability unit has also forged close institutional relationships at the national (e.g. CDP)
and supranational (e.g. EIB and EIF) levels but also at the local level, through representation with regional bodies (and related managing
authorities) and regional financial institutions, where present. Agreements have been entered into with a number of these financial
institutions with the aim of coordinating and strengthening the operational relationship between the mutual banks and these entities, in the
interest of local businesses, especially micro-enterprises.

The Parent Company has also established policies concerning the consolidated non-financial statement in order to govern the roles,
responsibilities, stages and timing of the various areas of Iccrea Banca, of the companies within the direct and indirect scopes, and of the
affiliated banks involved in the consolidation of non-financial reporting. Completing these top-level regulations, the process rules for
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preparation of the non-financial statement, aimed particularly at the affiliated banks, have also been established. These rules detail the
phases and various activities involved in gathering the data and other information to be reported. They also describe the certification and
tracking of qualitative and quantitative information in accordance with Legislative Decree 254/2016. All of this is in strict correlation with the
identification and prioritization of material issues and of the indicators of the chart of accounts.

During the first half of 2020, sustainability initiatives begun in 2019 were completed. In particular, in March 2020, the Group's Charters of
Commitments on the Environment and Combating Climate Change and on Human Rights were approved by the Board of Directors of Iccrea
Banca. These Charters set out the commitments and guidelines for all the companies and affiliated banks of the Iccrea Group in two of the
most important sustainability issues. The first Charter represents the principles which the Group has adopted in the prevention, management
and, where possible, reduction of the direct and indirect environmental impacts of the operations of the Iccrea Cooperative Banking Group.
The second promotes and guarantees the protection of human rights in respect of employees, shareholders, customers, suppliers and
communities in compliance with national and international law and contributing to the achievement of the objectives of the 2030 Agenda for
Sustainable Development of the United Nations.

Together with the Charters of Commitments, on March 30, 2020, the Board of Directors also approved the Group’s 2020-2023 Sustainability
Plan, work on which had begun in 2019. The Sustainability Plan is a chapter of the Business Plan and represents the Group's strategy in
promoting the sustainable development of territorial systems. The Plan is made up of 16 macro objectives and 30 specific objectives with a
deadline of 2023. They are developed into three strategic areas: Territory, the Environment and Combating Climate Change, and People
and Communities. The three strategic areas draw their strength from the merging of the values that distinguish the mutual banks, their
mission as expressed in Article 2 of the Articles of Association and the need to integrate environmental and social factors into the
responsibilities of economic actors. Through the Sustainability Plan, the Iccrea Group accepts the principle of integral ecology expressed in
the Encyclical Laudato Si', contributes to a large part of the Sustainable Development Goals of the UN 2030 Agenda and strengthens the
role of the Group’s mutual banks as banks supporting the sustainability of local communities.

The objectives of the Plan have been defined at Group level and will be pursued, within their respective spheres of competence and the
scope of the objectives, by the Parent Company, the subsidiaries and the affiliated mutual banks. The implementation of the Sustainability
Plan must be accompanied by the progressive alignment of internal procedures and regulations with the European regulatory framework on
Sustainable Finance. The package of guidelines and regulatory measures included in the European Action Plan on Sustainable Finance
envisages the integration of sustainability risks (environmental, social and governance), with particular regard to those relating to climate
change, within the system for managing banking risks, the loan origination and monitoring process and the decision-making processes
associated with financial investments. The various actions also include the adoption of a common European classification of sustainable
economic activities with direct impacts on the issue of green bonds as well as on the promotion of “sustainable” financial products.

More detailed qualitative and quantitative information on non-financial activities is reported annually in the consolidated non-financial
statement, which is audited for compliance, in accordance with Article 3, paragraph 10, of Legislative Decree 254/2016, by EY SpA.
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THE GROUP’S ORGANIZATION AND BRANCH NETWORK

The network of the 136 mutual banks of the Group and of Banca Sviluppo is fairly uniform throughout the country (35% in southern ltaly,
35% in central ltaly, and 30% in the north) as a result of our mission to support local communities. The only regions in which the Group has
no banking presence are Valle d’Aosta, Liguria and Trentino—-Alto Adige (although the Group does have branches in the latter two regions).

In the first half of 2020, the number of affiliated banks declined from 140 to 136 as a result of four mergers involving eight affiliated banks:
o the merger of Banca di Monastier e del Sile into BCC Pordenonese (which resulted in the creation of BCC Pordenonese e Monsile);

o the merger of Banca Cras and BCC Umbria (which resulted in the creation of BCC Banca Centro — Credito Cooperativo Toscana -
Umbria).

o the merger of BCC di Valledolmo into BCC San Giuseppe Petralia Sottana (which resulted in the creation of BCC San Giuseppe
delle Madonie — Societa Cooperativa);

o the merger of BCC di Formello e Trevignano Romano and BCC di Riano (which resulted in the creation of BCC della Provincia

Romana).
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Structure of the Group’s network of bank branches

The ICBG is ltaly’s third-largest banking group in terms of number of branches, with 2,552 branches operated by 136 mutual banks and by
Banca Sviluppo, 57% of which are located in the regions of Lombardy, Veneto, Tuscany and Emilia-Romagna. The branch network has a
market share within Italy of 10.5%, with peak shares in the regions of Marche (20%), Basilicata (18%), Calabria (17%) and Veneto (17%).

The first half of 2020 also saw the closure of a number of branches, partly offset by the opening of new branches in under-served locations.
The balance of these changes was a net reduction in branch offices (-22 compared with December 2019). The rationalization of the network,
while manifesting itself to a lesser extent than for Italy’s broader banking industry, must be viewed within the context of the close physical
presence of the affiliated banks in their communities, which plays a key role in their relationships with customers and the communities. In
order to ensure a proper balance between physical presence and economic sustainability, following the creation of the Group, an initial
territorial development plan was defined, the main goals of which include increasing the market share and gross bank funding and lending by
repositioning branches in more attractive markets and reducing costs at a number of under-performing strategic branches.
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The ICBG has at least one branch in 1,808 of the 5,221 Italian municipalities served by banks (34.6% of the total). In 282 of these
municipalities (15.6% of the total) the Group’s branches are the only banking presence, consistent with the organization’s community-centric
mission.

Lombardy is the Italian region in which the ICBG serves the greatest number of municipalities (421), whereas Tuscany is number one in
terms of penetration in municipalities served by at least one bank (62.7%).

Municipalities with

Region banki . with ICBG branch (%) of which ICBG is only presence (%)
anking services

Lombardy 1,081 421 38.9% 80 19.0%
Veneto 487 278 57.1% 26 9.4%
Tuscany 263 165 62.7% 4 2.4%
Emilia Romagna 318 120 37.7% 4 3.3%
Sicily 277 1M 40.1% 25 22.5%
Lazio 225 104 46.2% 17 16.3%
Marche 187 112 59.9% 9 8.0%
Campania 289 88 30.4% 31 35.2%
Calabria 141 61 43.3% 27 44.3%
Piedmont 540 72 13.3% 14 19.4%
Friuli Venezia Giulia 162 63 38.9% 11 17.5%
Puglia 210 60 28.6% 0 0.0%
Abruzzo 154 63 40.9% 12 19.0%
Basilicata 85 36 42.4% 12 33.3%
Umbria 75 21 28.0% 1 4.8%
Molise 35 13 37.1% 8 61.5%
Liguria 120 10 8.3% 1 10.0%
Sardinia 284 8 2.8% 0 0.0%
Trentino-Alto Adige 261 2 0.8% 0 0.0%
Valle d'Aosta 27 0 0.0% 0 n.a.

Total 5,221 1,808 34.6% 282 15.6%
No. of other banks present in the municipalities in which ICBG has a presence 0 1 2 3 more than 3 Total
No. municipalities 282 215 210 155 946 1,808
% of the total 156% 11.9% 11.6% 8.6% 52.3%  100.0%
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Strategic positioning of the Group’s banks

The member banks of the Iccrea Cooperative Banking Group, including Banca Sviluppo, account for approximately 5.2% of the Italian
market for (performing) loans to resident customers, net of repurchase transactions and Monetary Financial Institutions), equal to nearly €73
billion. Their market share of deposits by resident customers equals 6.1%, for a total of almost €95 billion.

At the regional level, the largest share of loans to customers — equal to nearly 15% - was registered by Marche, followed by shares of more
than 10% in Friuli Venezia Giulia and Tuscany.

Market share — consumer

Region Market share - loans to customers Market share - enterprise

households
Marche 14.7% 14.5% 16.6%
Friuli Venezia Giulia 11.1% 11.3% 12.9%
Tuscany 11.2% 9.0% 12.1%
Abruzzo 9.6% 9.4% 10.9%
Basilicata 9.2% 6.7% 14.3%
Veneto 9.6% 10.4% 11.4%
Emilia Romagna 6.6% 72% 7.1%
Calabria 5.7% 5.5% 9.6%
Lazio 3.0% 6.6% 6.0%
Lombardy 4.7% 5.3% 6.3%
Umbria 5.4% 4.3% 6.7%
Molise 4.5% 3.1% 7.3%
Piedmont 4.7% 4.1% 6.5%
Puglia 4.1% 2.9% 6.6%
Sicily 3.4% 2.7% 5.5%
Campania 3.2% 2.2% 5.3%
Sardinia 1.8% 0.8% 4.1%
Liguria 0.8% 0.5% 1.0%
Valle d'Aosta 1.6% 0.3% 2.8%
Trentino-Alto Adige 0.8% 0.2% 1.0%
Total Italy 5.2% 5.8% 1.4%

Source: Based on supervisory and Bank of Italy data as at June 30, 2020. Loans to customers have been allocated based on counterparty residence..

For customer deposits, on the other hand, Marche is the region in which the Group has achieved the greatest market share (14.8%),
followed by Tuscany and Friuli-Venezia Giulia.

Region Market share — customer deposits
Marche 14.8%
Tuscany 10.7%
Veneto 9.2%
Friuli Venezia Giulia 9.3%
Abruzzo 9.2%
Basilicata 7.0%
Emilia Romagna 6.2%
Lombardy 5.2%
Umbria 5.7%
Calabria 5.6%
Lazio 8.3%
Sicily 4.7%
Piedmont 1.2%
Puglia 4.0%
Campania 2.9%
Molise 2.7%
Sardinia 1.9%
Liguria 0.5%
Trentino-Alto Adige 0.2%
Valle d'Aosta 0.4%
Total Italy 6.1%

Source: Based on supervisory and Bank of Italy data as at June 30, 2020. Loans to customers have been allocated based on counterparty residence..
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Distribution of commercial workforce

In line with the regional distribution of branches, the branch network by number of employees shows peak numbers in the regions of
Lombardy, Veneto, Tuscany, Emilia—Romagna and Marche. The national average number of employees per branch is 5.1. By region,
Lombardy has the highest average number (7.5), followed by Piedmont (5.8) and Lazio (5.6). The average distribution of branch employees
is the result of a process initiated by the mutual banks some time ago aimed at increasing the efficiency of territorial coverage in which the
mutual banks provide a social service, while also, where appropriate, reducing the hours and days open to the public and balancing the
needs of serving the community with those of economic sustainability.

Region No. Branch Employees No. Group Branches Employees/Branch
Lombardy 4,065 542 75
Veneto 1,785 405 44
Tuscany 1,420 293 48
Emilia-Romagna 1,147 244 4.7
Lazio 1,118 198 5.6
Marche 734 166 44
Piedmont 527 91 5.8
Campania 413 103 4
Sicily 411 132 3.1
Friuli-Venezia Giulia 363 92 3.9
Puglia 318 74 43
Calabria 278 70 4
Abruzzo 265 76 35
Umbria 134 37 36
Basilicata 93 37 25
Liguria 50 11 45
Sardinia 45 9 5
Molise 1 11 0.9
Trentino-Alto Adige/Sudtirol 2 1 2
Total Italy 13,178 2,592 5.1

As at June 2020, the number of customers of the Iccrea Cooperative Banking Group with at least one active financing agreement totaled
about 1.23 million. Retail customers accounted for about 88% of the total, while the corporate segment came to about 12%. In terms of

deposits, the number of customers with at least one active account with the ICBG totaled approximately 3.12 million,

Number of customers - Loans to customers

Ordinary customers No. of Customers (thousands) Percent of total
Consumer households 784,229 63.7%
Small and medium-sized businesses 295,682 24.0%
Corporate 144,727 11.8%
Central banks, lenders and other financial companies 2,446 0.2%
Government entities 1,468 0.1%
International 2,296 0.2%
Total 1,230,848 100%
Number of customers - Customer deposits

Ordinary customers No. of Customers (thousands) Percent of total
Consumer households 2,542,900 81.4%
Small and medium-sized businesses 414,656 13.3%
Corporate 147,798 4.7%
Central banks, lenders and other financial companies 4,490 0.1%
Government entities 1,109 0.0%
International 12,198 0.4%
Total 3,123,151 100%
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In terms of ownership structure, shareholders at June 2020 numbered more than 814,000, increasing by over 3,700 compared with
December 31, 2019 (+0.46%). Of the total, about 44% were concentrated in northern Italy, with another 44% in central Italy.

Geographical area No. Shareholders June 20 (%) No. Shareholders Dec 19 (%) Delta Giu 20- Dic 19 Chg June 20 - Dec 19
Northwest 238,975 29.36% 239,456 29.55% -481 -0.20%
Northeast 117,234 14.40% 116,180 14.34% 1,054 0.91%
West-Central 197,708 24.29% 194,827 24.04% 2,881 1.48%
East-Central 162,140 19.92% 162,212 20.02% -72 -0.04%
Southwest 72,170 8.87% 71,888 8.87% 282 0.39%
Southeast 25,856 3.18% 25,754 3.18% 102 0.40%
Total 814,083  100.00% 810,317  100.00% 3,766 0.46%
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4. DEVELOPMENTS IN GROUP OPERATIONS

The following provides an overview of the main balance sheet and income statement figures of the Iccrea Cooperative Banking Group as at
June 30, 2020. To enable a more immediate understanding of the Group’s balance sheet and income statement, the following tables contain
more condensed schedules than those provided for in Circular no. 262/05 of the Bank of Italy.

FINANCIAL POSITION

Consolidated assets

€/thousands 30/6/2020 31/12/12019
Cash and cash equivalents 709,125 956,482
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss 2,058,398 1,940,080
Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 9,352,081 9,109,726
Financial assets measured at amortized cost 148,767,792 135,869,471

a) due from banks 8,093,221 7,384,246

b) loans to customers 85,766,612 85,240,858

c) securities 54,907,959 43,244,367
Hedging derivatives and value adjustments of macro-hedged financial assets 244,120 157,761
Equity investments 107,492 88,893
Property, plant and equipment 2,798,679 2,842,541
Intangible assets 150,459 146,462
Tax assets 2,099,718 2,135,149
Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale 28,175 33,856
Other assets 2,146,687 2,250,045
Total assets 168,462,726 155,530,466

The consolidated assets of the Iccrea Cooperative Banking Group at June 30, 2020 totaled €168.5 billion, up €12.9 billion (+8.3%) on
December 31, 2019. The increase is mainly attributable to the increase in the exposure to government securities classified in the HTC
portfolio (+€11.8 billion), in line with the new Group financial strategy approved in March 2020 in response to the more expansionary
monetary policy stance of the ECB (in particular the expansion of access to TLTRO-III operations) to counter the negative effects on the
economy of the COVID-19 health emergency.

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss, in the amount of €2 billion, include financial assets held for trading in the
amount of €0.3 billion (mainly in government securities held for trading), financial assets designated as at fair value in the amount of €0.4
billion (in instruments in which liquidity from the Guarantee Scheme is invested, mainly in European government securities), and other
financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value in the amount of €1.3 billion.

The table below shows these three portfolios and their related fair values based on tier system that reflects the significance of the inputs
used to measure them. More specifically: (i) security prices on an active market (level 1); (i) inputs other than security prices and which are
observable directly (prices) or indirectly (derived from prices) on the market (level 2); (iii) inputs not based on observable market data (level
3).

€lthousands L1 L2 L3 s s
Financial assets held for trading 49,132 294,893 1,838 345,863 205,225
Debt securities 32,677 2,500 59 35,236 36,035
Equity securities 2,485 124 120 2,729 6,485
Units in collective investment undertakings 13,794 1,875 - 15,669 12,641
Financial derivatives 176 290,394 1,659 292,229 150,065
Financial assets designated as at fair value 358,503 24,919 4,603 388,025 367,477
Debt securities 358,503 24,919 - 383,422 362,091
Loans - - 4,603 4,603 5,385
Financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value 270,662 762,795 291,053 1,324,510 1,367,379
Debt securities 16,254 58,745 2,541 77,540 95,516
Equity securities 9,115 8,533 19,196 36,844 30,058
Units in collective investment undertakings 245,294 177,708 39,877 462,879 488,496
Loans - 517,809 229,438 747,247 753,309
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss 678,296 1,082,608 297,494 2,058,398 1,940,080
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The portfolio of financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income in the amount of €9.4 billion, an increase of
€0.2 billion on December 31, 2019, is mainly represented by government securities held in accordance with the HTCS business model. The
aggregate also includes, but to a lesser extent, minority interests in the amount of €138 million, which are measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income without recycling.

€lthousands L1 L2 13 soem 112
Debt securities 9,035,081 73,245 105,556 9,213,882 8,978,573
Equity securities 5,225 65,721 67,253 138,199 131,153
Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 9,040,306 138,966 172,809 9,352,081 9,109,726

With regard to financial assets measured at amortized cost, amounts due from banks (net of debt securities) amounted to approximately €8
billion and include, in addition to exposures related to ordinary liquidity management, the reserve requirement with central banks in the
amount of €5.5 billion. In the table below, these exposures to banks are classified according to the stages of risk defined by IFRS 9 for
performing positions (stages 1 and 2) and credit-impaired positions (stage 3).

€lthousands Stages1and2  Stage 3 Total 30/6/2020 Perce's‘:;%: i, 2,23‘13; Perce's‘:;%:
Due from central banks 5,532,768 - 5,532,768 68.4% 4,211,582 57.0%
Loans to banks 2,559,885 568 2,560,453 31.6% 3,172,664 43.0%
Current accounts and demand deposits 568,973 - 568,973 7.0% 592,548 8.0%
Time deposits 67,289 - 67,289 0.8% 79,619 1.1%
Other 1,923,623 568 1,924,191 23.8% 2,500,497 33.9%
Financial assets measured at amortized cost — Due from banks 8,092,653 568 8,093,221 100.0% 7,384,246 100.0%

Loans to customers show a balance of €85.8 billion net of debt securities, €80.7 billion of which performing and about €5 billion related to
impaired positions. Among performing loans, the medium to long-term component amounts to approximately €57.1 billion, while lease
financing totals €4.2 billion.

L e ST el P ol D
Current accounts 6,979,831 954,750 7,934,581 9.3% 9,241,053 10.8%
Repurchase agreements 3,290,874 - 3,290,874 3.8% 2935176 3.4%
Medium/long-term loans 57,136,844 3,500,693 60,637,537 70.7% 58,144,238 68.2%
Credit cards, personal loans and salary-backed loans 2,039,341 40,998 2,080,339 2.4% 2,186,330 2.6%
Lease financing 4,171,729 380,352 4,552,081 5.3% 4,704,582 5.5%
Factoring 268,441 8,223 276,664 0.3% 504,704 0.6%
Other lending 6,861,630 132,906 6,994,536 8.2% 7,524,774 8.8%
Financial assets measured at amortized cost — Loans to 80,748,690 5017022 85,766,612 100.0% 85,240,858 100.0%

customers

The following table summarizes the set of financial assets measured at amortized cost classified by stage of risk. Performing loans to
customers, before writedowns, account for 88.5% of the total.

Gross value Total writedowns

€/thousands
Stages 1 and 2 Stage 3 Stages 1 and 2 Stage 3
Loans 89,632,586 10,611,417 (791,243) (5,592,927)
Loans to banks 8,101,508 1,088 (8,855) (519)
Loans to customers 81,531,078 10,610,329 (782,388) (5,592,408)
Debt securities 55,014,993 2,954 (108,922) (1,066)
Total financial assets measured at amortized cost 144,647,579 10,614,371 (900,165) (5,593,993)

Debt securities measured at amortized cost (HTC business model) amounted to €54.9 billion (+€11.8 billion on December 31, 2019), in large
part represented by Italian government securities.

Gross non-performing loans — which have steadily been declining in the last two years thanks to the robust de-risking
implemented - amounted to about €10.6 billion, for a ratio to total gross loans of 11.3% (11.5% if only loans to ordinary customers are
considered). Net impaired loans amounted to €5 billion, for a ratio to total net loans of 5.3% (5.9% when considering only ordinary
customers). The ratios of net bad loans and unlikely-to-pay positions to net lending are equal to 2% (2.1% for ordinary customers) and 2.9%
(3.3% for ordinary customers), respectively.
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The coverage ratio for impaired loans to customers was 52.7%, an increase on December 31, 2019 (50.9%). The rise partly reflects the
more prudent policies adopted by the Group in response to the crisis triggered by the spread of the pandemic. In particular, the coverage
ratio was 66.6% for bad loans (65.2% at December 31, 2019) and 39.6% for unlikely-to-pay positions (38.1% at December 31, 2019).

Type of exposure Gross exposure Writedowns Net exposure gg;g?;ggg 3?%%3&1’;
Bad loans 5,490,171 (3,654,021) 1,836,150 66.6% 65.2%
Unlikely-to-pay positions 4,578,839 (1,811,241) 2,767,598 39.6% 38.1%
Impaired past-due positions 541,320 (127,146) 414174 23.5% 15.7%
Impaired exposures to customers 10,610,330 (5,592,408) 5,017,922 52.7% 50.9%

The particular business model of the affiliated banks, which account for the largest component of assets and of total loans to customers, is
reflected, above all, in the type of counterparty. Total loans disbursed, in the amount of €92.1 billion at June 30, 2020, have mainly gone to
households and small to medium-sized enterprises (SMEs), which accounted for 34.5% and 45.4% of total lending, respectively. As shown
in the table below, these segments show a lower NPL ratio than that of the corporate segment.

Ratio to total Performing loans and advances Non-performing loans and advances
Type of counterparty Gross value I::::ni:g Ratio to total R:::?ot:n:ic:]tgl Ratio to total Ratio to total NPL
Ordinary customers 91,331,730 99.1% 88.4% 99.0% 11.6% 100.0%
Consumer households 31,827,400 34.5% 93.8% 36.6% 6.2% 18.8%
Small and medium-sized businesses 41,803,931 454% 88.7% 45.5% 11.3% 44.6%
Producer households 8,609,244 9.3% 87.3% 9.2% 12.7% 10.3%
Micro-‘en‘terprises, institutions and 8,594 537 9.3% 84.6% 8.9% 15.4% 125%
associations
Other SMEs 24,600,151 26.7% 90.7% 27.3% 9.3% 21.7%
Other non-financial companies 11,983,115 13.0% 68.1% 10.0% 31.9% 36.1%
Other financial companies 5,717,284 6.2% 99.0% 6.9% 1.0% 0.5%
Government entities 809,577 0.9% 99.6% 1.0% 0.4% 0.0%
Total loans to customers 92,141,307 100.0% 88.5% 100.0% 11.5% 100.0%

The Group’s lending is mainly concentrated in northern (55.2%) Italy, which has a lower level of credit risk, and central ltaly (33.4%).

Ratio to total loans Performing loans and advances Non-performing loans and advances
Geographical area Gross value . Ratio to total . -
and advances Ratio to total o NPL Ratio Ratio to total NPL

North-east 25,818,045 28.0% 89.7% 28.4% 10.3% 25.0%
North-west 25,057,607 27.2% 88.6% 27.2% 11.4% 26.9%
Center 30,794,358 33.4% 87.8% 33.2% 12.2% 35.3%
South and islands 10,471,296 11.4% 87.0% 11.2% 13.0% 12.9%
Total loans to customers 92,141,307 100.0% 88.5% 100.0% 11.5% 100.0%

In terms of the industry segment of counterparties, in addition to consumer households, the segments that saw the greatest lending were
real estate and construction, manufacturing, commerce, and services.

Ratio to total Performing loans and advances Non-performing loans and advances

Economic segment of counterparty Gross value l::::n?::: Ratio to total R:::_?ot::;iztgl Ratio to total Ratio to total NPL
Consumer households 31,827,400 34.5% 93.8% 36.6% 6.2% 18.8%
Primary sector 5,100,014 5.5% 90.0% 5.6% 10.0% 4.8%
Manufacturing 12,250,392 13.3% 88.9% 13.4% 11.1% 12.8%
Commerce 9,492,232 10.3% 87.6% 10.2% 12.4% 11.1%
Real estate and construction 14,383,040 15.6% 71.3% 12.6% 28.7% 39.0%
Services and other 12,561,368 13.6% 89.2% 13.7% 10.8% 12.8%
Government entities 809,577 0.9% 99.6% 1.0% 0.4% 0.0%
Financial companies 5,717,284 6.2% 99.0% 6.9% 1.0% 0.5%
Total loans to customers 92,141,307 100.0% 88.5% 100.0% 11.5% 100.0%

The primary sector saw a higher percentage of lending than the national average, given the nature of the affiliated banks as local banks,
whereas the real estate and construction segment, as in the rest of Italy, has suffered most from the effects of the prolonged economic crisis,
posting a higher NPL ratio than the Group average. The particular business model, featuring a prevalence of medium and long-term lending
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to households and small and medium-sized businesses, is responsible for the high rate of collateral-backed lending. Specifically, 70.3% of
impaired positions are backed by collateral, a figure that should be read together with the high level of NPL coverage.

Ratio to total loans Performing loans and advances Non-performing loans and advances
Type of guarantee Gross value . Ratio to total - ;
and advances Ratio to total 2 bl Ratio to total Ratio to total NPL
Collateral 58,048,169 63.0% 87.2% 62.0% 12.8% 70.3%
Personal guarantees 15,508,240 16.8% 91.6% 17.4% 8.4% 12.3%
Unsecured 18,584,898 20.2% 90.1% 20.5% 9.9% 17.4%
Total loans to customers 92,141,307 100.0% 88.5% 100.0% 11.5% 100.0%

With regard to other assets, equity investments, totaling €107.5 million, mainly represent interests in associates, the most significant of which
are the investments in BCC Vita (30%), Satispay (16%), and BCC Assicurazioni (30%).

Property, plant and equipment, totaling €2.8 billion, mainly includes property used in operations (€2.1 billion) as well as properties
contributed to consolidated real estate investment funds in the amount of €0.7 billion.

Intangible assets include goodwill (€26 million) relating to the acquisition of bank assets and liabilities by affiliated banks prior to the
establishment of the Group as well as to consolidation differences originated by two investees. Other intangible assets (€125 million) refer
mainly to user licenses and software.

Tax assets total €2.1 billion and include current taxes of €0.4 billion and deferred tax assets of €1.7 billion, the latter of which includes
€1.2 billion under Law 214/2011.

Consolidated liabilities and equity

€/thousands 30/6/2020 31/112/2019
Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost 152,889,943 140,832,998

a) due to banks 29,832,621 18,873,746

b) due to customers 108,461,986 105,581,113

c) securities issued 14,595,336 16,378,138
Financial liabilities held for trading 305,106 163,728
Financial liabilities designated as at fair value 7,393 11,461
Hedging derivatives and value adjustments of macro-hedged financial liabilities 445,391 320,606
Tax liabilities 103,975 105,945
Other liabilities 3,620,672 3,111,184
Post-employment benefits 299,320 306,254
Provisions for risks and charges 500,957 445,700
Shareholders’ equity 10,167,847 9,994,113
Net profit/(loss) for the period (+/-) 122,123 238,478
Total liabilities and equity 168,462,726 155,530,466

Total consolidated liabilities and equity at June 30, 2020 amounted to €168.5 billion, up €12.9 billion (+8.3%) on December 31, 2019. The
increase is mainly attributable to liabilities measured at amortized cost (+€12.1 billion).

More specifically, financial liabilities measured at amortized cost include direct deposits from ordinary customers totaling €106.4 billion (+€1
billion on the end of 2019). The increase in amounts due to customers (+€2.8 billion) was connected with the increase in balances on current
accounts and demand deposits, partly offset by the decline in securities issued as they matured (-€1.8 billion).
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€/thousands 30/6/2020 31112/2019
Current accounts and demand deposits 83,932,378 80,905,313
Time deposits 6,253,034 6,483,273
Securities issued 14,595,336 16,378,138

Bonds 9,109,254 10,589,999

Other securities 5,486,082 5,788,139
Other payables 1,663,689 1,672,824
Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost — Direct funding from ordinary customers 106,444,437 105,439,548

The remainder of financial liabilities measured at amortized cost comprises funding from institutional customers (€46.4 billion) and includes:
i) €16.6 billion in repurchase agreements, almost entirely with Clearing & Guarantee Fund, and operations on behalf of the ltalian Treasury
(OPTES); ii) €29.8 billion in amounts due to banks, of which €27.4 billion in targeted longer-term refinancing operations (T-LTROs) with the
ECB and €2.4 billion in other amounts due to banks outside the Group for current accounts, deposits and repos. Amounts due to banks, of
which more than 90% is represented by exposures to central banks, increased by a total of €11 billion, primarily reflecting the Group’s new
2020 financial strategy cited earlier, which was adopted in response to the more expansionary monetary policy stance of the ECB (notably
the expansion of access to the TLTRO-IIl program).

€/thousands 30/6/2020 31/12/2019
Loans 16,612,885 16,519,704
Repos 14,550,328 13,966,184
Other 2,062,557 2,553,520
Due to banks 29,832,621 18,873,746
Due to central banks 27,389,051 17,411,817
Due to banks 2,443,570 1,461,929
Current accounts and demand deposits 284,050 306,344

Time deposits 174,334 105,736

Loans and repurchase agreements 1,852,506 939,674

Other 132,679 110,175
Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost - Funding from institutional customers 46,445,506 35,393,450

Financial liabilities held for trading, in the amount of €305 million (+€141 million on 2019), include the negative fair value of trading
derivatives.

Tax liabilities, totaling €104 million, include €77 million in deferred tax liabilities on temporarily non-taxable revenues.

Other liabilities amounted to about €3.6 billion, mainly including €1.4 billion in illiquid portfolio items, €627 million in amounts available to
customers, €410 million of taxes payable for withholdings made and amounts to be paid, as well as €252 million in items being processed
and other transit items.

Post-employment benefits for the Group totaled €299 million, while provisions for risks and charges, totaling €501 million, include provisions
for credit risk in the amount of €206 million against commitments to disburse funds and financial guarantees issued.

Consolidated shareholders’ equity

Consolidated shareholders’ equity totaled €10.3 billion. Share capital includes the capital of the Parent Company, amounting to €1.4 billion,
and the capital of the mutual banks, which, together with the Parent Company, constitute a single consolidating entity. Treasury shares
mainly represent the capital of Iccrea Banca held by the affiliated banks consolidated in application of Article 1072 of Law 145/2018.

Reserves, totaling €8.6 billion, mainly include legal reserves of €10.1 billion and a negative IFRS 9 FTA reserve of €1.6 billion.
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€/thousands 30/6/2020 3112/2019
Share capital 2,314,349 2,313,691
Capital instruments 30,139 30,139
Share-premium reserve 148,039 146,702
Treasury shares (1,212,252) (1,212,256)
Valuation reserves 223,794 254,511
Reserves 8,592,318 8,390,591
Net profit for the period 122,123 238,478
Eglrﬂt;laﬁsrtaining to shareholders of the Parent 10,218,510 10,161,857
Equity pertaining to non-controlling interests (+/-) 71,459 70,737
Total shareholders’ equity 10,289,969 10,232,594
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PERFORMANCE

Consolidated income statement

€/thousands 30/6/2020 30/6/2019
Net interest income 1,210,967 1,218,173
Net fee and commission income 604,181 606,023
Dividends, net gain/(loss) on trading activities, net gain/(loss) on hedging and net gain/(loss) on assets and liabilities at FVTPL (652) 44,070
Net gain/(loss) on disposals 219,039 91,786
Gross income 2,033,535 1,960,051
Net writedowns/writebacks for credit risk (387,495) (261,307)
Gains/losses from contract modifications without cancellations (2,010) (649)
Net gains/(losses) from financial operations 1,644,030 1,698,095
Administrative expenses (1,472,317) (1,522,099)

a) personnel expenses (833,691) (826,810)

b) other administrative expenses (638,626) (695,288)
Depreciation, amortization and provisions (151,229) (94,730)
Other operating income/expense 165,747 158,412
Operating expenses (1,457,799) (1,458,416)
Profit/(loss) from equity investments 193 2,948
Net gain/(loss) from fair value measurement of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (10,775) (13,888)
Impairment of goodwill (259) -
Profit/(loss) from disposal of investments (310) 3,180
Profit/(loss) before tax on continuing operations 175,080 231,919
Income tax expense from continuing operations (48,455) (50,540)
Net profit/(loss) for the period 126,625 181,379
Net profit/(loss) pertaining to non-controlling interests 4,502 2,761
Net profit/(loss) pertaining to the shareholders of the Parent Company 122,123 178,619

The Group closed the first half of 2020 with net profit of €126.6 million, of which €122.1 million pertaining to the shareholders of the Parent

Company.

Net interest income, which was broadly unchanged on the same period of 2019, amounted to €1.2 billion, the net result of interest income of
€1.5 billion (on loans to customers in the amount of €1.2 billion, included under financial assets measured at amortized cost) and interest
expense of about €0.3 billion, mainly relating to amounts due to customers and securities issued recognized under financial liabilities

measured at amortized cost.

Interest and similar income

€/thousands Debt securities Loans transa(gitct‘:; 30 lGIZ?)tZa(: 30 1612?)t1a9I
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss 5,305 2,055 47 7,407 7,320
Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 26,329 - - 26,329 37,628
Financial assets measured at amortized cost 188,571 1,173,317 - 1,361,887 1,421,691
Hedging derivatives (18,126) (18,126) -
Other assets 1,226 1,226 1,047
Financial liabilities - - 80,677 80,677 58,133
Interest income and similar income 220,205 1,175,372 63,824 1,459,401 1,525,819
Interest and similar expense

€/thousands Payables Securities transa(gitct‘:; 30 lGIZ?)tZa(: 30 1612?)t1a9I
Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost (112,039) (109,601) - (221,640) (262,761)
Financial liabilities held for trading (101) (138) (239) (87)
Financial liabilities designated as at fair value (199) - (199) (676)
Other liabilities and provisions - (764) (764) (564)
Hedging derivatives - 797 797 (23,583)
Financial assets - - (26,389) (26,389) (19,975)
Interest and similar expense (112,039) (109,901) (26,494) (248,434) (307,646)
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Net fee and commission income in the first half of 2020 amounted to €0.6 billion, in line with the same period of 2019, and includes fee and
commission income for a total of €0.7 billion (mainly relating to commissions for the management of current accounts, collection and
payment services, and intermediation and advisory services) net of commission expense of around €61 million.

The reduction in net fee and commission income for collection and payment services and the management of current accounts compared
with the corresponding period of the previous year reflects the contraction in the Italian economy in the first half as a result of the COVID-19
emergency.

Fee and commission income

€/thousands 30/6/2020 30/6/2019
Guarantees issued 12,347 13,574
Management, intermediation and advisory services 162,395 156,405
Collection and payment services 97,374 122,306
Servicing for securitization transactions 1,268 1,884
Services for factoring transactions 1,711 2,044
Management of current accounts 232,122 246,508
Other services 157,560 158,535
Fee and commission income 664,777 701,256

Fee and commission expense

€/thousands 30/6/2020 30/6/2019
Guarantees received (925) (1,326)
Management and intermediation services (5,575) (6,584)
Collection and payment services (7,272) (21,799)
Other services (46,824) (65,524)
Fee and commission expense (60,596) (95,233)

The net gain on disposals came to €219 million, a significant increase on the first half of 2019 (+€127 million), mainly reflecting the sale of
government securities held in the HTC portfolio and other debt securities classified under assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

Net writedowns for credit risk totaled €387 million, an increase of €126 million on the same period of 2019, mainly owing to the more prudent
measures adopted by the Group to take account of the possible adverse impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic on the economy.

Operating expenses in the first half of 2020 amounted to €1.5 billion, broadly in line with the year-earlier period. The total reflected the
following components:

e personnel expenses amounting to €0.8 billion, a slight increase on the first half of 2019 (+€7 million), reflecting additional hires
connected with the establishment of the ICBG;

o other administrative expenses totaling €0.6 billion, down €57 million on the same period of 2019, mainly reflecting a decrease in the
charge for the ordinary contribution to the mutual bank Deposit Guarantee Scheme (DGS) accounted for under this item. Part of that
charge, while pertaining to 2020 (€35 million), was accounted for under provisions for risks pending a decision of the European
Commission concerning the petition filed through the industry association to reduce the target level of the funds of the DGS for
mutual banks from 0.8% of guaranteed deposits to 0.5%. Other administrative expenses also declined compared with the total at
June 30, 2019 as a result of a reduction in the project costs incurred in 2019 for the establishment of the Cooperative Banking Group
and a reduction in costs incurred in certain expense categories during the lockdown (e.g. travel and entertainment, etc.);

e provisions, depreciation and amortization amounting to €151 million, up €56 million in reflection not only of the provision for risks
noted earlier but also of the increase in net provisions for credit risk in respect of commitments and guarantees issued (+€14 million)
partly connected with the re-estimation of ECLs in the light of macroeconomic developments;

o other net operating income amounted to €166 million, slightly up on the first six months of 2019 (+€7 million).
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CONSOLIDATED OWN FUNDS AND CAPITAL ADEQUACY

Own funds

The following table offers a breakdown of own funds at June 30, 2020, which amounted to €11.5 billion.

Capital and capital ratios — €/ thousands 30/06/2020 3111212019
Share capital 2,314,364 2,313,704
Share-premium reserve 148,518 147,180
Treasury shares and repurchase commitments (1,239,658) (1,226,433)
Reserves 8,851,670 8,649,127
Profit/(loss) for the period (90,329) (13,101)
Other comprehensive income (32,126) 979
Transitional provisions 1,198,273 1,355,639
Goodwill (net of related tax effects) (24,568) (24,758)
Deductions — deferred tax assets (59,484) (56,327)
Intangible assets (net of related tax effects) (124,746) (120,488)
Prudential filters (14,395) (18,861)
Minority interests 16,672 18,283
Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1 ratio) 10,944,191 11,024,947
Additional Tier 1 (AT1) 34,658 35,046
Tier 1 (T1) 10,978,849 11,059,993
Eligible subordinated loans 485,275 559,284
Tier 2 (T2) 485,275 559,284
Total Capital (TC) 11,464,124 11,619,277

In light of the special accounting rules applicable® and the obligation under Article 38 of the Consolidated Banking Act for the affiliated banks
to allocate at least 70% of annual earnings to reserves, own funds mainly include reserves (€8.8 billion), in addition to share capital in the
amount of €2.3 billion (mainly composed of the shareholder contributions of the affiliated banks), which decreases to €1.1 billion after
elimination of the capital of the Parent Company held by the affiliated banks (reported under treasury shares).

Compared with December 31, 2019, CET1 decreased by a total of about €80.7 million, essentially reflecting the following developments:

an increase of about €202 million in reserves;

an increase in the deduction for treasury shares in relation to the residual amount for the repurchase/redemption of shares
authorized at the reporting date, in the amount of €13.2 million;

an increase of about €77 million in the loss for the period. The loss, equal to €90 million, considered for the purposes of calculating
own funds takes account of the prudential rules for the treatment of profits and losses of the Group companies, which in compliance
with the conditions set out in Article 26 of the CRR, resulted in (i) the exclusion of all profits as the requirements for their inclusion
had not yet been met as at the reporting date; and (ii) the inclusion of all losses;

a deterioration in the balance of other comprehensive income of about €33 million;

a decrease of €157 million in the amount connected with the IFRS 9 transitional provisions as per Article 473-bis of Regulation (EU)
575/2013, as introduced by Regulation (EU) 2395/2017, which at June 30, 2020 was equal to about €1.2 billion, which enabled the
offsetting of the increase in writedowns resulting from application of the new expected-credit-loss impairment model introduced with
IFRS 9 (net of the related tax effects) in progressively decreasing percentages. This amount is represented by the algebraic sum of
the following effects: (i) -€84 million for the change in the percentage applicable to the “old” static and dynamic components of the
filter from 85% to 70%; and (ii) +€72 million for the offsetting of the impact connected with the increase in writedowns recognized at
June 30, 2020 for performing exposures only (i.e. classified in stage 1 or stage 2 under the standard) in accordance with the
changes to the filter introduced with Regulation (EU) 2020/873;10

an increase in deductions connected with DTAs (-€3 million) and intangible assets (-€4 million), partly offset by a decrease in
deductions connected with prudential filters (+€4 million, mainly attributable to the cash flow hedge reserve).

The overall decrease in total own funds (about -€155 million on December 2019) includes the reduction in Tier 2 capital (about -€74 million).

9 Under Article 38, point 2 bis of Legislative Decree 136 of August 18, 2015 concerning bank financial statements, which establishes that in the case of the cooperative banking groups referred to in
Article 37-bis of Legislative Decree 385 of September 1, 1993, the Parent Company and the mutual banks affiliated with it under the provisions of the cohesion contract represent a single consolidating

entity.

10 In this regard, Regulation (EU) 2020/873 makes it possible to add back to CET1 a progressively decreasing percentage of the increase in provisions compared with January 1, 2020, net of the
associated tax effect, equal to 100% for 2020 and 2021, 75% for 2022, 50% for 2023 and 25% for 2024.
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Capital adequacy

At June 30, 2020, the capital ratios stood at 16.1% for the CET1 ratio and 16.9% for the TCR, representing an increase compared with the
values registered in December 2019 (respectively equal to 15.5% and 16.3%) and above the average for the national banking system.

The chart below reports developments in risk-weighted assets (RWA) and in capital ratios in the period June 2019-June 2020.

B 1Hz020
1 sq20190
0 1H2019

CET1 Ratio Total Capital Ratio

(€/billions)

RWA CET1 Capital Total Capital

The reduction in own funds discussed above — which also reflects the effects of the IFRS 9 phase-in, the inclusion of losses recorded at the
individual level by the Group entities and the maturing of subordinated liabilities — was accompanied by a decrease in risk-weighted assets,
mainly attributable to the RWAs for credit and counterparty risk (<€2.7 billion), essentially reflecting two macro-developments: (i) the early
application, decided by the competent authorities as part of the response to the deterioration in macroeconomic conditions with Regulation
873/2020 (the so-called "CRR quick fix"), of the expansion envisaged in CRR 2 relating to the supporting factor applicable to exposures to
small and medium-sized enterprises; and (i) the benefits from the application of the provisions of the COVID decrees in respect of positions
benefitting from State guarantees.
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5. THE GROUP’S STRATEGIC LINES OF BUSINESS

CONSOLIDATED BANKS AND OTHER COMPANIES

The ICBG’s model for offering products and services is based on an organizational structure (defined internally for operational purposes) that
is divided into the following strategic lines of business, chosen on the basis of factors that management considers in making its operational
and strategic decisions and consistent with IFRS 8's disclosure requirements.

|

Gruppo,
Bancario
Cooperativo
Iccrea

|

PRIMARY STRATEGIC LINES OF BUSINESS OF THE GROUP

Institutional

Retail

Corporate

Iccrea Banca
BCC Sistemi Informatici
BCC Beni Immobili
BCC Gestione Crediti
BCC Solutions
Sinergia
Sigest
Coopersystem

Affiliated Banks
@BCC
(REDATO COOPERATIVG

Banca Sviluppo

BCC Risparmio & Previdenza

BCC Credito Consumo

Iccrea Bancalmpresa

BCC Factoring
BCC Lease

Banca Mediocredito FVG

The following tables show the main operational areas and the result of the individual business areas in which the Group operates. There is a
specific segment for the mutual banks based on their unique qualities, in line with the sector regulations that distinguish and preserve the

nature of cooperative banking.

€lthousands CORPORATE  INSTITUTIONAL RETAIL NS THaSeoMEN TOTAL
Financial assets 508,834 14,793,971 81,185 57,236,445 (6,285,560) 66,334,875
Due from banks 209,058 30,557,825 633,645 12,748,687 (36,055,994) 8,093,221
Due from customers 8,211,706 6,111,827 1,152,371 72,151,955 (1,861,248) 85,766,612
Funding from banks 4,360,510 29,070,676 1,453,984 32,297,485 (37,350,035) 29,832,621
Funding from customers 917,916 17,317,972 318,573 90,233,169 (325,644) 108,461,986
Securities and other financial liabilities 3,129,825 5,324,142 35,803 11,880,467 (5,015,711) 15,354,525
€lthousands CORPORATE INSTITUTIONAL ~ RETAIL  “ghife  TIERSEOMERT TOTAL
Net interest income 89,221 22,699 30,213 1,048,806 20,027 1,210,966
Net fee and commission income 9,665 73,825 22,987 512,911 (15,207) 604,182
Other financial expense and income 385 95,088 (179) 167,997 (44,905) 218,386
Gross income 99,271 191,613 53,021 1,729,714 (40,085) 2,033,535
Net value adjustments (80,713) (11,880) (14,330)  (282,802) 220 (389,505)
Net gains/(losses) from financial operations 18,559 179,732 38,692 1,446,912 (39,864) 1,644,030
Operating expenses (48,112) (151,771)  (27,406) (1,241,636) 11125  (1,457,800)
Other costs and revenues (2,202) (31,209) (18) (1,094) 23,372 (11,151)
Profit/(loss) from continuing operations (31,755) (3,248) 11,268 204,182 (5,368) 175,079
Income tax expense from continuing operations 204 (2,087) (5,060) (41,468) (43) (48,455)
Profit/(loss) for the period (31,551) (5,335) 6,209 162,714 (5,411) 126,625
Profit/(loss) pertaining to non-controlling interests (1,554) 4,790 1,266 - - 4,502
Profit/(loss) pertaining to shareholders of the Parent (29,998) 15415 4,943 162,714 (30,951) 122123

Company
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INSTITUTIONAL BUSINESS AREA

Balance sheet

INSTITUTIONAL
€/thousands Iccrea Banca BICC S'St?n." BCC Solutions Sinergia Other?
nformatici
30/6/20 311219  30/6/20  31112/19 30/6/20 31112119 30/6/20 31112119 30/6/20  31/12119
Cash and cash equivalents 90,665 246,137 2 2 2 2 1 2 1 3
Financial assets Imeasured at fair 1503723 1279864 ) ) ) ) ) ) )
value through profit or loss
Financial assets measured at fair
value through other comprehensive 925,232 367,133 17 17 2 2 3 3 - -
income
Financial ~assels measured at 49383556 4p551042 12071 12654 11564 3331 8637 6137 25993 15405
amortized cost
a) due from banks 30,515,397 25,528,379 12,971 12,654 11,564 3,331 8,637 6,137 25,993 15,405
b) loans to customers 6,112,566 5,842,484 - - - - - - - -
c) securities 12,760,592 11,180,178 - - - - - - -
Hedging derivatives and value
adjustments  of  macro-hedged 13,228 5,965 - - - - - - -
financial assets
Equity investments 1,144,901 1,150,481 - - - - 100 100 10 10
Property, plant and equipment 3,319 17,125 12,934 14,908 120,205 123,437 3,967 4,427 81,166 82,215
Intangible assets 1,856 53946 38,558 33,388 257 326 1,264 1,140 1,375 1,090
Tax assets 82,171 80,178 1,700 1,730 64 29 882 855 3,330 3,298
Non-current assets and disposal 248,904 171,700 ) ) ) ) ) ) )
groups held for sale
Other assets 422,368 152,988 20,088 20,671 5,356 10,494 12,658 9,892 16,129 16,644
Total assets 53,824,923 46,076,559 86,270 83,370 137,450 137,621 27,512 22,557 128,005 118,665
INSTITUTIONAL
€/thousands Iccrea Banca BCC Sistemi Informatici BCC Solutions Sinergia Other
30/6/20 3112119 30/6/20 311219  30/6/20 3111219  30/6/20 3111219  30/6/20  31/12/19
Financial liabiliies measured at 50523883 42,932,558 3,972 520 58272 58550 3095 3464 24306 24,141
amortized cost
a) due to banks 28,955,540 20,782,376 - - 45234 44,766 182 290 21,229 20,452
b) due to customers 17,315,177 17,128,866 3,972 520 13,037 13,784 2,913 3,174 3,077 3,689
¢) securities issued 4,253,167 5,021,316 - - -
Financial liabilities held for trading 594,706 381,867 - -
Fmanmal liabilities designated as at 337,104 424,058 ) )
fair value
Hedging derivatives and value
adjustments  of  macro-hedged 137,866 118,344 - -
financial liabilities
Tax liabilities 1,290 1,407 119 192 - 582 2 1,559 1,641
Liabilites associated with assets 279,128 155,930 ) )
held for sale
Other liabilities 232,175 329,426 37,109 38,704 21,182 21202 19,359 15,800 21,077 15,229
Post-employment benefits 16,027 18,003 2,459 2,540 245 218 1,175 1,194 1,350 1,327
Provisions for risks and charges 8,578 10,476 1,608 1,454 48 46 973 97 507 456
Shareholders’ equity 1,700,371 1,831,906 40,151 39,923 55,800 55,704 1,119 1206 73,997 69,021
Profit/(loss) for the period (6,207) (127,417) 852 230 1,711 1,901 1,209 (80) 5,209 6,851
Total liabilities and equity 53,824,923 46,076,559 86,270 83,370 137,450 137,621 27,512 22,557 128,005 118,665

" “Other” includes BCC Gestione Crediti, Beni Immobili, Sigest and Coopersystem
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Income statement

INSTITUTIONAL
€/thousands Iccrea Banca BCC Sistemi Informatici BCC Solutions Sinergia Other
30/6/20 30/6/19 30/6/20 30/6/19  30/6/20  30/6/19  30/6/20  30/6/19  30/6/20  30/6/19
Net interest income 35,006 29,410 (75) (94) (672) (685) (46) (72) (120) (147)
Net fee and commission income 26,875 33,830 - - (4) (4) 9) (13) 5,096 5,726
Dividends 37,041 51,226 - - - - 19 17 -
Net gain/(loss) on trading 7,581 5,013 (2) - - - - - -
Net gain/(loss) on hedging (2,107) (1,673) - - - - - - -
Net gain/(loss) on disposals 48,964 20,781 - - - - - - -
Net gai i
”abiﬁt?;r;/g??}_?gl_ﬁnan0|al assets and (11,352) 144 ) ) ) ) B ) )
Gross income 142,008 138,731 (78) (94) (676) (688) (36) (69) 4,977 5,579
Net writedowns/writebacks for credit (11215) (578) ) ) ) ) B ) ) 12
risk ’
Net gains/(losses) from financial 130,794 138,153 (78) (94  (676)  (688) (36) (69) 4977 5591
operations
Administrative expenses (153,182)  (140,026) (47,148) (38,407)  (13,856) (13,038) (27,600) (25492) (8,299)  (9,760)
a) personnel expenses (81,298) (64,288) (9,847) (9,566) (3,222) (3213)  (12,257)  (11,351)  (2,820)  (3,167)
b) other administrative expenses (71,884) (75,738) (37,302) (28,841)  (10,635) (9,825) (15,343)  (14,141)  (5478)  (6,593)
g;%::gﬁgon amortization and (1,573)  (4,888) (5,897) (4897)  (5639)  (4467)  (1,150)  (1278)  (2,099)  (2,214)
Other operating expenses/income 68,131 (1,156) 54,363 42,790 22,614 19,661 30,573 27843 12,147 12615
Operating expenses (86,624)  (146,070) 1,318 (514) 3,119 2,156 1,824 1,073 1,749 640
Profit/(loss) from equity investments (25,540) - - - - - - - -
Profit/(loss) from disposal of ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) )
investments
Net gain/(loss) from FV measurement
of property, plant and equipment and - - - - - - - - - -
intangible assets
Impairment of goodwill - - - - - - - - -
Profiti(loss) before tax on 18630 (7,018) 1,241 (608) 2443 1468 1788 1004 6726 6231
continuing operations
Income tax expense from confinuing 5,387 8,822 (389) 81 (731) (485) (578) (318)  (1517)  (1611)
operations
Profit/(loss i i i
Pron tgx ) on discontinued operations (30,224) 16,130 ) ) ) ) ) ) ) )
Profit/(loss) for the period (6,207) 17,035 852 (527) 1,711 983 1,209 686 5,209 4,620

This area includes the companies that provide products and services directly to the affiliated banks. The wide range of solutions available
includes financial services, payment systems, securities administration, credit collection services, Web services, facility management, real
estate services, and IT and back-office services, as well as logistical, administrative and infrastructure support. The main Group companies
engaged in this area are Iccrea Banca — which as Parent Company carries out the management, coordination and control activities provided
for under applicable law and the Cohesion Contract — BCC Sistemi Informatici, BCC Solutions, and Sinergia.
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In the current structure of the Group, lccrea Banca, following the signing of the cohesion contract by the affiliated banks, performs the duties
and responsibilities relating to strategic and operational oversight, coordination and control and interacts with the supervisory authorities.

To the traditional role of the second-level bank, which, in supporting the operations of the mutual banks, provides — in the spirit of partnership
- products, services and advisory services to help them meet the needs of their shareholders, customers, households and local
communities, we have therefore added duties connected with the new responsibilities of our role and with engaging in the activities need to
ensure the consistency of the Group’s strategic policy, operational governance, risk management, pursuit of industrial and operational
synergies to achieve ever-improving levels of operational efficiency and effectiveness, and the development of production and distribution
models.

Financial services

In continuity within the past, operational governance activities are conducted alongside the investment services provided by the Group
Finance area, mainly to the affiliated banks and, through them, to their own customers. Of particular note among these services there is
access to trading venues and over-the-counter (OTC) markets and the order receipt and intermediation service.

Within the scope of activities aimed at supporting and developing the businesses of the mutual banks and enhancing the management of
financial risks for the entire Group, the Group Finance unit has ensured: (i) the management of financial assets, including with the definition
and recommendation of investment strategies; (i) development of the system for liquidity management; and (iii) capital and money-market
activities and hedging. Within this context, and taking account of the cross-guarantee scheme adopted by the ICBG, Group Finance has
ensured constant coverage of short and long-term funding needs and management of related interest-rate, currency and liquidity risk at the
separate and consolidated levels. Of no lesser importance, Group Finance has ensured the maintenance of adequate levels of structural
liquidity, even in the current market conditions resulting from the health emergency, which has required financial-service and other operators
around the world to revise and strengthen their operational mechanisms to ensure structural liquidity and adequate service levels.

Finally, Group Finance coordinated the structuring and ongoing management, for the companies of the Group and for the affiliated banks, of
structured finance operations, such as the securitization of performing exposures and of non-performing exposures backed by government
guarantees.

In the first half of 2020, with regard to liquidity management, Group Finance ensured that the affiliated banks had the capacity to obtain
collateralized funding by way of operations with the ECB and on the market. In response to the economic and financial crisis caused by the
pandemic, efforts have continued to strengthen and further develop the management system following the extraordinary measures by the
ECB aimed at loosening the suitability parameters and system of risk control applied to assets that can be used to back Eurosystem
refinancing operations. In this regard, the first six months of the year were characterized by the expiration of the first two T-LTRO II
operations (March and June) and their replacement with new T-LTRO Il operations. Specifically, with regard to the T-LTRO Il operations,
the affiliated banks repaid approximately €15 billion, €12 billion of which related to banks within the Iccrea T-LTRO Group. As concerns
participation in the T-LTRO Il program, it should be noted that the Group holds about €26 billion in operations as at June 30, 2020,
approximately €16.4 billion of which related to banks in the T-LTRO Group. Access to collateralized funding by way of the full use of the T-
LTRO program has enabled ICBG companies to benefit from the new financial conditions set by the ECB in response to the crisis brought
about by the spread of the COVID-19 pandemic. These conditions call for a rate, upon reaching the target for growth in lending, of -1% for
the period June 24, 2020, to June 23, 2021, and equal to the average marginal deposit rate until expiration of the operations.

From the start of the year, activity on the MTS secured market (repo segment) posted price levels in line with and close to the marginal
deposit rate. As at June 30, 2020, funding on this market totaled about €14 billion, about €9 billion of which in favor of the affiliated banks.
Compared with the previous year, volumes through this channel increased by approximately €1 billion.

Access to collateralized funding by way of ECB operations and/or the market has enabled ICBG companies to stabilize the related cost of
funding at -0.42%.

In line with the forecasts in the revised funding plan, the following operations were executed in the first half of the current year: (i) time
deposits of about €1.6 billion, almost entirely through the affiliated banks; (ii) refinancing of the senior tranches of the GACS operations in
the amount of about €400 million, with durations of 2 years and 7 months; and (jii) funding through the OPTES channel in the amount of €1.5
billion.

At June 30, the total amount of bonds issued by Iccrea Banca came to €4.3 billion, with a weighted-average residual maturity of 1.75 years.

With regard to treasury and forex operations, the Parent Company continued to support the affiliated banks by way of the forex and money
market (FXMM) internet portal, thereby enabling them to trade in real time in spot, forward and swap transactions. In the first half of 2020,
35,000 contracts were handled on this portal for a total volume of around €2.8 billion, of which €1.9 billion in swaps, €760 million in spot
transactions, and €75 million in outright transactions. Support in trading also continued, with volumes totaling €94 billion, mainly in the
trading of swaps.

With regard to Italian government securities, within the scope of market making on the Hi-MTF and EurQil platforms, the first half of 2020
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saw the listing of 114 securities for a total brokered of €1.8 billion. Trading continued on the ltaly’s MOT market, which posted 17% growth in
volumes compared with the previous year to reach a total of €1.3 billion traded. Trading on the MTS, BondVision and Bloomberg platforms
reserved for institutional investors also increased by 28% over the same period to reach a total of €20.8 billion traded. Within the context of
market making for eurobonds, Iccrea Banca listed 251 eurobonds on the Hi-MTF market, 384 eurobonds on the EuroTLX market, and 184
eurobonds on Extramot and Euromot. Total volumes traded on these markets came to about €1.2 billion.

As regards OTC derivatives business, Iccrea Banca traded contracts for a total nominal volume of about €2 billion. Efforts continued in order
to strengthen processes aimed at providing the products needed to hedge inflation-indexed instruments and fixed-rate loans, and at
completing forward sales.

For the purposes of managing the banking book, interest-rate and inflation derivatives were used to hedge the financial instruments held in
the financial portfolio for a total of €1.3 billion.

With regard to order collection on behalf of the affiliated banks, the first half of 2020 saw a marked increase in volumes handled compared
with the same period of 2019. The total came to €8.7 billion, for an increase of 28.1% compared with the first half of the previous year. The
equity segment, in particular, posted a volume increase of around 48%, supported by the high volatility of the Italian stock market's FTSE
MIB index. The bond segment, too, posted growth in Italian government securities, increasing by 21.5% in volume (€6.2 billion as compared
with €5.1 billion for the first half of 2019). This performance was driven mainly by the operations of the affiliated banks for their own
portfolios, whereas the retail segment essentially replicated the volumes traded during the same period of the previous year.

With regard to primary market activities, Iccrea Banca acted as co-dealer for the sixth time while participating in the placement of the
sixteenth issue of BTP Italia bonds. The total amount of subscriptions came to €1.73 billion, €798 million of which with the customers of the
Group’s 136 mutual banks and €935 million from shareholders. On the whole, the Group accounted for 7.8% of the entire issue. Of the total,
the retail segment accounted for 5.7% of subscriptions executed during the initial placement, whereas the institutional segment accounted
for 11.3% of the total.

At June 30, 2020, securities worth about €90 billion were held in custody and administration. During the period, approximately 15,000
transfers of financial instruments and 1,600 SICAVs were carried out in both directions, incoming and outgoing.

Iccrea Banca, as a qualified intermediary (QI) of the mutual banks in relations with the US Internal Revenue Service (IRS), sees to all the
documentation and organizational and operational aspects connected with new legislation introduced by the American government since of
2018.

Payment systems

The digitization of payments and the rise of innovative solutions being offered by new, non-bank players has led Iccrea Banca to design
instruments that have been made available to the Group and to our customers in order to facilitate there payments and collections.

Issues related to the spread of the COVID-19 pandemic have certainly aligned transaction volumes with those of 2019 while confirming the
reduction in traditional products (e.g. checks, bank drafts, etc.), as SEPA products, such as credit transfers (SCTs), held their ground.

Within this context, Iccrea Banca has remained committed to maintaining existing services and developing new ones for the mutual banks,
so as to enable them to respond to the emergency quickly. Of particular note among the Iccrea Banca initiatives related to the health
emergency in the area of payments and collections are the following:

o the launch of the INPS “DB condiviso” service enabling the intermediary to verify the recipient account holder before executing credit
transfers for pensions and other INPS funds (e.g. the “COVID bonus”);

o the definition of the operating model for the new “Check IBAN” service provided by pagoPA S.p.A. to enable the inland revenue
office and other government bodies to verify the recipient account holder before executing various types of credit transfer (e.g. non-
repayable grants);

o the implementation of the plan to reorganize cash management services as proposed within the scope of the COBAN working group
in order to ensure continuity in operations through the health emergency;

o management of the deferments allowed under governmental decrees for the payment of promissory notes and checks together with
BCC Sl and Iccrea’s Legal Affairs unit;

o the activation of the archiving of contracts signed remotely (i.e. sent by customers to the bank via e-mail).
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Iccrea Banca participates in the main working groups sponsored by ABI, CBI, EBA, the Electronic Invoicing and Dematerialization
Observatory, ANORC and AgID. In addition, under the aegis of the European Payments Council (an associative body the European banking
industry in charge of managing the SEPA payments scheme and liaising with the European authorities, lccrea Banca:

o participates in international organizations and working groups on the development of SEPA mechanisms;

o has taken advantage of the option granted by the EPC to configure our banks as a group, with the consequent reduction in costs
incurred for participation in SEPA as compared with the ordinary established prices.

This has been extended to the revision of the pricing of the services of CBI Scpa and PagoPA S.p.A. by taking advantage of the option
agreed upon with CBI and PagoPA to configure the affiliated banks as a group, resulting in a reduction in the costs incurred by these banks.

Work has also continued on initiatives previously planned within the payment systems segment. In short:

e we have supported the mutual banks in activating the pagoPA technology-partner service, which enables them to activate
government bodies on the pagoPA system in order to manage their collections by way of a digital platform in line with applicable
laws and regulations;

e we have consolidated the operational intermediation and accounting services to non-bank payment-service providers (i.e. Satispay
and the Lottomatica Group), thereby significantly increasing the volume of SDD, SCT, payment notices, and SEDA transactions;

¢ new, compliant document-retention services have been activated in relation to Iccrea being qualified as an accredited registrar, while
continuing to obtain past “OPI/OIL” treasury documents from the mutual banks;

o our certification as an accredited registrar was confirmed following audits by the certification bodies concerned;

o the process for managing the storage of electronic invoices for group companies has been completed, along with the related
activities of receipt and transmission with the SDI;

o we launched the “smart safe” service, which enables merchants to deposit cash in safes installed in their points of sale and have that
cash credited to their mutual-bank current accounts and coin-service account;

o the new instant-payments product on the ECB’s TIPS platform has been activated for incoming payments for the direct customers of
Iccrea Banca, for Banca Sviluppo, and for an initial cluster of six affiliated mutual banks that have been certified for the BCC SI
information system (with the remaining banks to be added in monthly blocks by November 2020).

A great deal of work has also been conducted in relation to the PSD2 project concerning the analysis of the impact of the PSD2 directive on
the payment services currently offered by mutual banks and on new services that are to be activated by third parties authorized to access
customer accounts by way of cooperative solutions (e.g. CBI Globe and others).

Electronic money

In the first half of 2020, Iccrea Banca continued to develop the electronic money business in order to optimize procedures and strengthen its
range of products and services in keeping with strategic policies and to promote the growth of this business.

With regard to the number of cards, despite the reduced promotional efforts as a result of the COVID-19 emergency, the segment has seen
essential stability in the main issuing metrics with some 3.8 million cards in operation (+0.1% from December 2019).

Conversely, the effects of the COVID-19 health emergency severely impacted transaction numbers during the period of lockdown. More
specifically, during the first half of 2020, the issuing segment posted a decrease of €813 million (-8.5%) compared with the same period of
2019, whereas POS acquiring saw a decline of 7.2% compared with 2019 (down €449 million). However, it should be noted that the
numbers for July and August have shown a clear recovery compared with the same periods of 2019, pointing to a potential, if partial,
recovery in the second half of 2020.

A similar downward trend has been seen in ATM acquiring volumes (i.e. cash withdrawals), decreasing by €840 million (-18.9%) compared
with the first half of 2019.

With regard to the ICBG affiliated banks specifically, we have seen the following:

o on the whole, the issuing segment (i.e. debit, prepaid and credit cards) posted a 3.5% increase in number of cards, driven mainly by
debit cards (+4.5% for debit cards, +1.5% for credit cards, and +1.9% for prepaid cards);

e the acquiring segment posted a significant increase in POS transactions with large-scale distributors (+39.5%) as a result of the
pandemic, whereas, on the whole, there has been a decrease of 99 million (-1.9%) in volumes compared with the first half of 2019
as mentioned above in relation to overall volumes, although to a lesser extent.

Within this context, fraud in issuing posted a net improvement compared with 2019. In 2020, the total loss due to fraud decreased by 3.8%.
The total loss attributable to fraud in issuing came to 0.50 bps in transactions, posting a further decrease compared with the first half of 2019
(0.54 bps).
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Information Technology

Within the scope of the overall reorganization following the creation of the Iccrea Cooperative Banking Group, the sale of the IT business
units related to lccrea Banca and Iccrea Bancalmpresa to BCC Sistemi Informatici, with the intention of this company becoming the Group’s
new hub for information systems and technology, was completed on July 1, 2020. For information on the ICT segment, see the section
related to BCC Sistemi Informatici.
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BCC SISTEMI INFORMATICI

Operationally, the information technology segment was significantly engaged in the following: (i) projects aimed at implementing the
requirements of the Iccrea Cooperative Banking Group and ongoing adaptations in response to changes in the operational and legislative
framework; (ii) projects related to the development of system architecture and functionality, to digitization and innovation (e.g. digital banking
and the customer relationship), to management of core processes (i.e. lending); and (iii) projects related to the process of convergence of
the affiliated banks using technical structures other than BCC SI to the proprietary structure and to the management of processes to merge
the existing banks and sale of branches.

As concerns the application platforms needed to provide corporate functions, particularly with regard to European and domestic supervisory
organs (e.g. consolidated financial reports, harmonized supervisory reporting, asset quality reviews, etc.), that have already been released
and have been fully operational since early 2019, specific project streams have been put into place in order to reinforce the mechanisms
supporting risk management (i.e. the early warning system, RAF/RAS framework, loan stress testing, credit risk control, corporate
governance — related parties, and collateral management).

Despite the need to adjusting the schedule in response to the COVID-19 pandemic, the 2020 plan for the migration of the affiliated banks
that use other platforms has thus far kept pace with the established schedule. Therefore, of the 11 migrations planned for the year, four were
completed in the first half of the year, and no delays are expected for the second half of the year.

Completion of the migration of the remaining 18 banks to the BCC Sl information system calls for a detailed plan for all of 2021 (12
initiatives) and a plan that is currently being defined for the first half of 2022 (six initiatives).

Taking account of the consolidation of the overall ICT segment within BCC Sl as of July 1, 2020, provided below are the ICT costs incurred
as at June 30, 2020, by Iccrea Banca and Iccrea Bancalmpresa.

ICT operations — Iccrea Banca

Costs related to the ICT operations of Iccrea Banca in the first half of 2020 prior to transferring the business unit to BCC SI totaled €40.5
million and can be broken down as follows:

o personnel expenses in the amount of €7.8 million, which is proportionately lower than the estimated full-year budget of €18.4 million.
This contraction can be attributed to the fact that the planned addition of a number of employees has been postponed to the second
half of the year and is still being evaluated by the competent units of the Parent Company;

¢ depreciation and amortization in the amount of €8.6 million, which is proportionately lower than the estimated full-year budget of
€22.9 million. It should be noted that the forecast for depreciation and amortization for December 31, 2020, is €19.2 million, given
that the plan of project investments approved over time by the Costs and Investments Committee is less than original budget
estimates. As a result, depreciation and amortization connected with investments for the year are also lower;

o other administrative expenses in the amount of €30.6 million, €26.6 million of which in running expenses and €3.7 million related to
projects. On the whole, administrative expenses as at June 30, 2020, are proportionately lower than the full-year budget (of €83.1
million). Actual project costs as at June 30, 2020, totaled just €3.7 million, compared with an estimated full-year budget of
approximately €20 million. Full-year forecasts for running expenses, on the other hand, are just below the allocated budget (of €63
million).

ICT operations - Iccrea Bancalmpresa

Costs for the ICT operations of Iccrea Bancalmpresa prior to the transfer of the business unit to BCC Sl on July 1, 2020, as mentioned
above, totaled €3.2 million net of €0.6 million in intercompany transactions with BCC Sl. The actual figure as at June 30, 2020, which is in
line with the full-year budget at €6.5 million, can be broken down as follows:

o personnel expenses in the amount of €0.9 million, which is in line with the full-year budget;
o other administrative expenses in the amount of €2.3 million, which is, over all, in line with the full-year budget;

o depreciation and amortization in the amount of €42 thousand, which is lower than the figure from the strategic plan (which called for
investments to overhaul the IBI financing platform).
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RETAIL BUSINESS AREA

Balance sheet

RETAIL

€/thousands Mutual Banks BCC CreditoConsumo BCC R&P Banca Sviluppo
30/6/2020 31112/2019  30/6/2020  31/12/2019  30/6/2020  31/12/2019  30/6/2020  31/12/2019
Cash and cash equivalents 616,296 704,675 2 49 2 3 2,138 5,591
Elgz?glralloassssets measured at fair value through 1,564,074 1697731 ) ) 6.204 6.287 305 373
E{EZ?%‘%?ZE‘:&S;?;‘&%? fair value through 9851834 10215611 . 30 3 131 1623 1679
Financial assets measured at amortized cost 131,016,414 117,443,846 1,164,417 1,208,559 59,619 64,862 558,300 794,769
a) due from banks 12,876,549 9,465,787 254,139 256,990 32,161 30,972 347,397 341,968
b) loans to customers 72,151,955 71,492,772 910,278 951,569 27,458 33,890 139,400 378,390
c) securities 45,987,910 36,485,287 - - 71,504 74,411
e e g wws - n
Equity investments 47,708 48,089 - - - - - -
Property, plant and equipment 2,009,722 2,018,870 173 187 4,531 4,647 31,617 42,419
Intangible assets 29,321 33,480 755 740 486 688 1,169 1,188
Tax assets 1,682,311 1,715,339 10,148 10,059 1,083 735 58,838 59,538
ls\l:lz-current assets and disposal groups held for 28475 33,861 ) ) 78,974 38,590
Other assets 1,267,544 1,306,295 89,010 106,729 2,583 1,655 47,967 69,206
Total assets 148,342,687 135,379,560 1,264,504 1,326,352 74,509 79,007 780,955 1,013,412
€/thousands 30/6/2020 31112/2019  30/6/2020  31/12/2019  30/6/2020  31/12/2019  30/6/2020  31/12/2019
Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost 134,292,657 122,079,290 1,184,451 1,219,320 26,381 26,588 417,567 742,192
a) due to banks 32,425,533 22,330,321 1,157,081 1,187,190 26,283 26,463 270,798 76,357
b) due to customers 90,233,169 86,999,896 27,370 32,130 98 125 117,679 589,622
c) securities issued 11,633,956 12,749,073 - - 29,091 76,213
Financial liabilities held for trading 1,991 2,058 - - - -
Financial liabilities designated as at fair value 7,393 10,973 - - - 488
mactonedged ancilfailiss Wates 28502 : : : 3
Tax liabilities 95,982 97,893 - 574 257 461 1,045 1,226
Liabilities associated with assets held for sale - - - - - - 180,215 79,669
Other liabilities 3,147,648 2,620,051 14,014 26,451 13,296 11,324 43,244 44,872
Post-employment benefits 268,494 274,445 296 252 337 335 1,241 2,171
Provisions for risks and charges 395,917 340,026 88 59 3,557 2,074 14,457 17,590
Equity 9,554,824 9,288,762 61,823 60,896 25,896 25,826 125,591 124,486
Profit/(loss) for the period 162,589 336,559 3,831 18,799 4,785 12,400 (2,406) "7
Total liabilities and equity 148,342,687 135,379,560 1,264,504 1,326,352 74,509 79,007 780,955 1,013,412
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Income statement

RETAIL
€/thousands Mutual Banks BCC CreditoConsumo BCC R&P Banca Sviluppo
30/6/2020 30/6/2019 30/6/2020  30/6/2019 30/6/2020 30/6/2019 30/6/2020 30/6/2019
Net interest income 1,048,811 1,068,084 23,510 22,269 - - 6,672 10,692
Net fee and commission income 512,906 510,564 2,328 2,561 18,717 16,899 1,974 5,267
Dividends 4,643 2,613 - - 12 10
Bet gain/(loss) on trading activities 1,745 7,731 - - (5) (6)
Net gain/(loss) on hedging 116 (1,038) - - - 2 4
Net gain/(loss) on disposals 170,040 71,549 (3) - - (65) (37)
Net gain/(loss) on assets and liabilities at FVTPL (8,680) 12,949 - (93) 28 (27) 8
Gross income 1,729,582 1,672,452 25,835 24,830 18,637 16,937 8,552 15,928
Net writedowns/writebacks for credit risk (282,797) (222,120)  (12,583) (2,645) - - (1,747) 753
Net gains/(losses) from financial operations 1,446,785 1,450,331 13,252 22,185 18,637 16,937 6,805 16,681
Administrative expenses (1,261,829)  (1,279,180) (8,089) (8,824) (9,977)  (11,086)  (10,250)  (18,665)
a) personnel expenses (680,020) (695,530) (2,886) (2,678) (2,616) (2,677) (5,749)  (10,508)
b) other administrative expenses (581,809) (583,650) (5,202) (6,146) (7,360) (8,410) (4,501) (8,159)
Depreciation, amortization and provisions (121,289) (74,639) (164) (154) (1,868) (989) (184) (475)
Other operating expensesf/income 141,489 145,112 1,118 1,087 245 325 1,764 2,311
Operating expenses (1,241,629)  (1,208,707) (7,135) (7,892)  (11,600) (11,750) (8,671)  (16,830)
Profit/(loss) from equity investments (381) (68) - - - -
Profit/(loss) from disposal of investments (328) 2,910 - - - - (18) 270
Net gain/(loss) from FV measurement of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets (130) ) i ) i )
Impairment of goodwill (259) - - - - -
Profit/(loss) before tax on continuing operations 204,057 244,466 6,117 14,293 7,037 5,187 (1,884) 121
Income tax expense from continuing operations (41,468) (41,825) (2,286) (4,718) (2,251) (1,709) (522) 167
Profit/(loss) on discontinued operations after tax - 83
Profit/(loss) for the period 162,589 202,723 3,831 9,575 4,785 3,477 (2,406) 287
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AFFILIATED BANKS

The segment includes the mutual banks that represent the largest portion of the Group’s consolidated assets (more than 80%, net of
intercompany items). As fully explained above, the affiliated mutual banks traditionally work to promote the development of local
communities and the local economy. The principle of mutualism, which is a distinctive characteristic of mutual banking, enables the banks to
play a key role in the panorama of the national banking industry and makes them an important partner for households and small and
medium-sized enterprises (SMEs).

For this segment, we provide below a description of the customer base and of the business model generally.

Balance sheet

As a general rule, the structure of the mutual banks’ assets reflects the nature of local banking, characterized by a high level of funding from
customers stemming from the historic ties that the mutual banks have with their local areas, with a prevalence of loans to households and
small firms and a fairly low ratio of loans to deposits, as well as the investment of excess liquidity primarily in government securities.

What follows is a brief description of the main balance sheet and income statement items of the 136 mutual banks belonging to the Iccrea
Cooperative Banking Group as at June 30, 2020, presented in aggregate form and gross of intercompany items.

Total assets at June 30, 2020, amounted to €148.3 billion, up €12.9 billion compared with the figures at December 31, 2019.

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss came to €1.6 billion and mainly include financial assets mandatorily measured
at fair value amounting to €1.5 billion (which also encompasses amounts due from the Parent Company for the ex ante contribution to the
Guarantee Scheme) and assets held for trading of €40.6 million.

The portfolio of financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income totaled €9.8 billion and mainly includes
government securities.

With regard to financial assets measured at amortized cost:

e amounts due from banks came to about €14.3 billion, of which €1.4 billion for debt securities and the remainder for current accounts
and demand deposits (€3.2 billion), fixed-term deposits (€8.4 billion) and claims on central banks, comprised mainly of reserve
requirements (€0.9 billion);

e loans to customers amounted to €116.7 billion, of which €44.5 billion for debt securities and the remainder for medium/long-term
loans to customers (€57.7 billion), current accounts (€7.8 billion) and other loans (€5.4 billion). Around €1.2 billion represent
operations involving credit cards, personal loans and loans repaid by automatic deductions from wages.

The characteristics of the mutual banks’ business model is reflected primarily by the type of customers served.

Performing loans and advances Non-performing loans and advances
Ratio to total i
Counterparties loans and Raltio to :)otal t;:l:(::rtfz?;i?lfg Raltio fo ;otal T‘la;fstgft?rtzl Coverage
advances co::tne?p;’rty I<.>.ans o e cot?::esrp;lrty itz NPL
affiliated banks banks
Ordinary customers 88.9% 78.7% 87.7% 10.2% 100.0% 52.4%
Consumer households 35.5% 93.8% 37.1% 6.2% 21.5% 41.7%
Small and medium-sized enterprises 40.8% 89.4% 40.6% 10.6% 42.4% 50.0%
Producer households 9.4% 87.8% 9.2% 12.2% 11.2% 47.0%
Micro-enterprises, institutions and associations 8.9% 85.2% 8.4% 14.8% 12.8% 51.7%
Other SMEs 22.5% 91.6% 23.0% 8.4% 18.4% 50.8%
Large corporate 12.7% 67.3% 8.3% 32.7% 35.5% 61.6%
Government entities 0.8% 99.6% 0.9% 0.4% 0.0% 68.1%
Central banks, credit institutions and other financial 10.3% 99 5% 11.5% 0.5% 0.0% 47.8%
companies
Total 100.0% 89.8% 100.0% 10.2% 100.0% 52.4%

Total loans disbursed by the mutual banks — equal to €86.2 billion at June 30, 2020, gross of intercompany items — were made largely to
consumer households and SMEs (35.5% and 40.8% of total lending, respectively). The aggregate NPL ratio stood at 10.2%, while the
coverage ratio for impaired loans was 52.4%.

A large part of the loans to SMEs are to producer households (sole proprietors) and micro-enterprises, which are small companies (fewer
than 20 employees) in addition to institutions and associations. The mutual banking mission means that the mutual banks supported their
local economies, even during periods of persistent crisis, so that, despite the credit crunch that has occurred in recent years, the mutual
banks have continued to provide loans to households and SMEs; the default rates in these segments were nonetheless smaller (NPL ratios
of 6.2% and 10.6%, respectively) thanks to a better understanding of these types of customers. The share of loans to larger firms (12.7% of
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the total) was more limited and registered a higher NPL ratio.

Financial investments totaled about €55.9 billion and consist almost entirely of government securities (especially those issued by the ltalian
State). About 80% are allocated to the portfolio measured at amortized cost (Hold-to-Collect, HTC, business model) in line with the
traditional business model that characterizes these banks, in order to take advantage of the coupon yield and at the same time to not expose
its funds to risks associated with volatility. Consistent with the mutualistic aim, the stock of securities allocated to the accounting portfolio
measured at fair value through profit or loss is very small.

Stock of debt securities by accounting portfolio Ratio to total debt securities
Amortized cost 84.3%
Fair value through profit or loss 0.1%
Fair value through other comprehensive income 15.6%
Total 100.0%

Property, plant and equipment, which amounted to about €2 billion, is mainly composed of buildings used in operations (€1.4 billion) and
other capital goods.

Intangible assets came to €29.3 million, of which €8.9 million in goodwill paid to acquire bank branches prior to the formation of the Iccrea
Cooperative Banking Group.

As for liabilities, having strong ties with the territory is the underlying reason for the high proportion of direct funding, in large part
represented by funding from customers, especially current accounts and demand deposits, and to a lesser extent bonds and certificates of
deposit.

In relation to this, liabilities largely consist of financial liabilities measured at amortized cost. More specifically:

e amounts due to banks totaled €32.4 billion, attributable to loans obtained through T-LTRO operations and refinancing transactions
with the Parent Company;

e amounts due to customers amounted to €90.2 billion, mainly attributable to €82.9 billion for current accounts and demand deposits
and €6 billion for fixed-term deposits. The remaining portion is made up of loans payable for €0.6 billion, amounts due in respect of
leases for €0.3 billion and other liabilities for €0.4 billion;

e securities issued came to €11.6 billion, of which €6.1 billion represented by bonds and €5.5 billion by certificates of deposit.

Aggregate shareholders’ equity amounted to €9.8 billion and consists of €0.9 billion of share capital, with the rest made up of reserves. The
mutual banks’ profit for the period amounted to €162.5 million, down €40.1 million on the same period of 2019.

Income statement
Net interest income amounted to €1 billion, the net result of interest and similar income of €1.3 billion, mainly on loans to customers, and
interest and similar expense of €0.2 billion, composed in equal measure of amounts due to customers and securities issued.

Fee and commission income amounted to €0.6 billion, essentially attributable to the holding and management of current accounts for €231
million and collection and payment services for €164 million. Fee and commission expense totaled €76 million and is mainly ascribable to
collection and payment services and securities custody and administration services (€67 million).

Net writedowns for credit risk amounted to €281 million.

Other administrative expenses refer largely to professional services for €159 million, indirect taxes and duties for €118 million, consumables
and services for €159 million, and information technology for €70 million.

63



ICCREA BANCA S.P.A. - 2020 REPORT AND CONSOLIDATED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BCC CREDITOCONSUMO SPA

Within the scope of lending to retail customers, in the first half of 2020 BCC CreditoConsumo continued to distribute consumer credit
products (exclusively personal loans) through the mutual bank branch network and the internet channel, where customers can use a form
provided through the Crediper.it website to submit online loan applications.

Production in the first half of the year was heavily impacted by the COVID-19 emergency, settling at €146.3 million, a sharp decline (-35.7%)
compared with the same period of the previous year (€227.7 million). Within the context of the new macroeconomic conditions, this result is
essentially in line with the rest of the market in the segment of personal loans (-40.3% compared with the same period of the previous year).

Given the current contingencies associated with the COVID-19 emergency, the Iccrea Cooperative Banking Group has identified a number
of temporary methodological refinements in the calculation of expected credit loss and, consequently, in the measurement of IFRS 9
impairment beginning with the figures as at June 2020. This analysis, conducted by the Parent Company’s risk management unit, resulted in
a total of €6.8 million in increased provisions for the performing-loan portfolio. The schedule shown below provides a summary breakdown of
gross consumer lending to customers at June 30, 2020, by credit quality and with an indication of the related allowances and coverage
percentage, along with the corresponding figures for December 31, 2019.

Jun-20 Dec-19
Gross value Writedowns Coverage Gross value Writedowns Coverage
Performing loans 931,274,657 (27,989,643) 3.1% 964,452,785 (21,671,926) 2.3%
Impaired past-due positions 9,597,392 (4,962,104) 51.7% 9,458,211 (4,615,376) 48.8%
Unlikely-to-pay positions 2,702,969 (1,876,740) 69.4% 1,441,638 (940,925) 65.3%
Bad loans 44,895,051 (43,424,297) 96.7% 41,889,313 (38,532,521) 92.0%
Loans to customers 988,470,069 (78,252,784) 7.9% 1,017,241,947 (65,760,749) 6.5%
Average Coverage of NPLs (%) 87.9% 83.5%

Balance sheet

Financial assets measured at amortized cost amounted to €1.2 billion and largely included consumer loans to customers (€910 million), with
the remainder being loans to banks (€254 million).

Other assets, in the amount of €89 million, mainly include amounts due from the special-purpose vehicle in the self-securitization
transaction.

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost amounted to €1.2 billion, which is essentially in line with the end of December 2019, a figure
that mainly includes amounts due to banks (€1.2 billion) and amounts payable to AGOS Ducato (€27 million) related to funding transactions.
Other liabilities totaled €14 million, which is down from the €26.4 million of December 2019.

Income statement

Performance for the period has been hindered by the impairment of financial assets. With regard to the other key components of the income
statement, the following dynamics are of note:

e net interest income decreased by 5.6% compared with the previous year. Despite the downward trend in production in the second
quarter, this positive performance was mainly the result of a lower cost of funding (-11.6% in interest expense and similar charges)
due to the gradual restructuring of funding under way;

¢ net fee and commission income posted a decline of 9.1% compared with the same period of the previous year. This decrease can be
attributed to a reduction in up-front commission income and expense as a result of the decline in Italy’s economy in the first half of
the year in reaction to the COVID-19 health emergency;

o administrative expenses decreased by 8.3% compared with the previous year. This reduction was mainly due to a decrease in
marketing expenses as a result of postponing planned marketing campaigns during the lockdown.
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BCC RISPARMIO&PREVIDENZA SGRPA

Assets under management as at June 30, 2020, totaled €17.2 billion, an increase of €268 million compared with the end of the previous year
(€16.9 billion as at December 31, 2019). Market trends as a result of the COVID-109 pandemic have had a negative impact of about €506.2
million on the overall trend in assets under management.

The chart below shows the weight of each investment product out of total assets under management as at June 30, 2020.

Portfolio
products
24%
SICAVs
53% Pension funds
N
Coupon funds
7%
Investment
funds 11%

Income statement

The period ended with pre-tax profit of about €7 million, up from the €1.9 million for the same period of 2019. This increase can be attributed
to extraordinary components related to performance fees in the amount of €1.3 million paid on funds with high-water-mark (HWM) fees. Net
of this non-recurring component, the increase compared with the same period of 2019 would have been €0.5 million.

Net profit, after estimated taxes of €2.2 million, came to €4.8 million, an increase of €1.3 million compared with the same period of 2019.

BANCA SVILUPPO SPA

In line with plans from recent years, Banca Sviluppo has been pursuing the strategic objective of completing the disposal of its sales network
and, as per the latest 2020-2023 plan presented to the board of directors, the goal of shifting the organization towards new business models.
The first half of 2020 was heavily impacted by the economic lockdown caused by the COVID-19 health emergency. The lockdown imposed
by the series of decrees of Italy’s Prime Minister have also had an inevitable impact on the business opportunities of our bank. The actions
that were made necessary, such as reducing branch business hours, restrictions on access by customers and employees and the use of
remote working, have significantly penalized normal branch operations, with a consequent impact, in particular, on the bank’s service
revenues, which were well below budget estimates.

In this environment, the bank has also continued with the planned sale of bank branches. In the second quarter, we completed three sales,
which resulted in the definitive closure of the branches in the Campania region and reduced our presence in Romagna from 21 to seven
branches. In Campania, two branches were sold to BCC di Capaccio Paestum e Serino, while in Romagna we completed the sale of 11
branches to BCC Ravennate Foirlivese Imolese and three branches to Credito Cooperativo Romagnolo.

As a result of those transactions, the balance sheet shrank considerably, with loans to customers in particular falling to just under €140
million from about €380 million at the end of 2019. Funding in the period declined from about €666 million to €147 million.

Income statement

The period ended June 30, 2020, closed with a pre-tax loss of €1.9 million and a net loss of €2.4 million. The following factors impacted
negatively on performance for the period: (i) a decrease in revenues from services as a result of the COVID-19 health emergency; (ii) an
increase in administrative costs; (iii) an increase in writedowns on loans to take account of the add-on required on average coverage; and
(iv) the lack of deferred taxes on the increase in loan writedowns given the uncertainty of future earnings.
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CORPORATE BUSINESS AREA

Balance sheet

CORPORATE
€/thousands Iccrea Bancalmpresa BCC Lease BCC Factoring MCFVG
30/6/2020 31/12/2019  30/6/2020  31/12/2019 30/6/2020 31/12/2019  30/6/2020 31/12/2019
Cash and cash equivalents 11 11 2 1 - 1 2 3
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss 157,314 163,019 - - - 26,980 27,584
E(;r;ra];::;ilenzisvsi:}rs]cor;zasured at fair value through other 758 365 ) 1" 10 96,605 140,414
Financial assets measured at amortized cost 7,194,622 7,335,926 450,242 470,677 274,769 497,687 853,651 796,517
a) due from banks 50,549 39,092 2,725 2,543 3,317 5,094 153,172 162,473
b) loans to customers 7,008,406 7,160,820 447,516 468,134 271,452 492,593 509,708 543,380
c) securities 135,666 136,014 - - - 190,771 90,664
Hedging derivatives and value adjustments of macro-hedged financial ) ) ) )
assets
Equity investments 63,200 62,338 - - - - - -
Property, plant and equipment 6,016 6,048 58 88 85 63 11,012 11,168
Intangible assets 147 178 449 412 153 - 219 149
Tax assets 182,876 183,959 5,669 5,672 7,226 7,230 47411 47538
Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale - - - - - - - -
Other assets 84,382 60,027 17,772 15,272 4,205 9,081 4,768 5,810
Total assets 7,689,324 7,811,870 474,190 492,123 286,448 514,072 1,040,648 1,028,882
€/thousands 30/6/2020 31/12/2019  30/6/2020  31/12/2019 30/6/2020 31/12/2019  30/6/2020 31/12/2019
Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost 6,785,338 6,890,209 427,140 437,821 261,663 490,632 882,297 847,443
a) due to banks 3,405,404 2,978,290 423,584 433,337 259,896 485,668 271,671 215,120
b) due to customers 326,831 440,660 3,556 4,483 1,767 4,964 585,762 606,947
c) securities issued 3,053,103 3,471,260 - - - 24,863 25,377
Financial liabilities held for trading 40,152 34,590 - - - - -
Financial liabilities designated as at fair value - - - -
fljr?;r?(l:?agl ”(;e;)rill\i/taiaégles and value adjustments of macro-hedged 11583 12,659 ) ) ) B )
Tax liabilities 583 386 - - 1,698 1,722
Liabilities associated with assets held for sale - - - - - - - -
Other liabilities 88,779 83,615 12,123 15,347 6,026 5,734 40,453 59,339
Post-employment benefits 4,387 4,359 215 198 355 332 416 418
Provisions for risks and charges 51,078 49,441 83 79 654 487 21,057 21,077
Equity 732,158 731,663 29,824 28,884 18,487 18,455 97,927 104,267
Profit/(loss) for the period (24,151) 5,334 4,223 9,408 (737) (1,568) (3,199) (5,384)
Total liabilities and equity 7,689,324 7,811,870 474,190 492,123 286,448 514,072 1,040,648 1,028,882

66



REPORT ON OPERATIONS

Income statement

CORPORATE
€/thousands Iccrea Bancalmpresa BCC Lease BCC Factoring MCFVG
30/6/2020  30/6/2019  30/6/2020  30/6/2019  30/6/2020  30/6/2019  30/6/2020  30/6/2019
Net interest income 72,243 71478 10,468 9,611 1,774 1,720 4,596 5,255
Net fee and commission income 6,252 5,485 (267) (501) 1,286 1,187 2,594 2,721
Dividends 8,467 8,500
Net gain/(loss) on trading activities 1,278 (269) 2 2 (43) (52)
Net gain/(loss) on hedging 119 200 - -
Net gain/(loss) on disposals - - - - 102 -
Net gain/(loss) on financial assets and liabilities at FVTPL (2,988) (2,269) (415) (663)
Gross income 85,371 83,126 10,200 9,109 3,063 2,910 6,835 7,261
Net writedowns/writebacks for credit risk (72,846) (31,005) (4,052) (2,550) (142) 167 (3,672) (4,004)
Net gains/(losses) from financial operations 12,525 52,122 6,148 6,559 2,921 3,076 3,163 3,254
Administrative expenses (29,624) (33,870) (4,170) (4,151) (3,381) (3,450) (6,148) (6,404)
a) personnel expenses (17,098) (16,494) (1,471) (1,483) (1,849) (1,851) (3,229) (3,393)
b) other administrative expenses (12,525) (17,376) (2,700) (2,668) (1,532) (1,599) (2,920) (3,011)
Depreciation, amortization and provisions (2,518) 164 (111) (42) (220) (154) (173) (868)
Other operating expenses/income (4,384) (4,540) 2,558 2,458 (19) - 62 233
Operating expenses (36,525) (38,245) (1,723) (1,735) (3,620) (3,604) (6,260) (7,039)
Profit/(loss) from equity investments (738) (430)
Profit/(loss) from disposal of investments
Net gain/(loss) on measurement at FV of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets
Impairment of goodwill
Profit/(loss) before tax on continuing operations (24,738) 13,446 4,425 4,825 (699) (528) (3,097) (3,785)
Income tax expense from continuing operations 587 (3,488) (201) 113 (38) 13 (102) 203
Profit/(loss) after tax on discontinued operations
Profit/(loss) for the period (24,151) 9,958 4,223 4,938 (737) (515) (3,199) (3,582)

The corporate business area is composed of the Iccrea Banca SpA'’s subsidiaries that offer solutions to small and medium-sized enterprises
and to local government entities that are customers of the affiliated mutual banks. It provides a wide range of products and services for
meeting all customer needs, even the most advanced ordinary lending and special corporate finance products, medium/long-term lending
and international services, leasing, factoring, rental and other advanced consulting. The Group companies that operate in this area are:
Iccrea Bancalmpresa and its subsidiaries BCC Factoring and BCC Lease, as well as Mediocredito del Friuli Venezia Giulia.
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ICCREA BANCAIMPRESA SPA

As the corporate bank of the ICBG, Iccrea Bancalmpresa provides financial consulting, services and solutions for SMEs. The bank’s mission
is to support micro-, small and medium-sized businesses through a broad-based offering that meets all their needs, while supplementing the
products and services provided by the affiliated banks.

The industry segments in which the bank operates include leasing, lending, consulting for extraordinary finance, internationalization,
insurance services, and support in accessing subsidies and incentives. The products of Iccrea Bancalmpresa are distributed mainly by the
Group’s network of mutual banks with the support of 15 branch offices throughout the territory. The company also has an international
presence with offices in Moscow and Tunis.

Through the subsidiary BCC Lease, the company serves the small-ticket business segment with operating and finance leases and special-
purpose financing. Factoring products and services are provided through the subsidiary BCC Factoring.

Balance sheet

In 2020, Iccrea Bancalmpresa issued about €0.5 billion in new financing, a decrease of 38% compared with the first half of the previous year
due to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic. A breakdown of this new financing by product is shown in the table below.

Product 30/06/2020 30/06/2019 % change
Medium & long term — New contracts 456,372 739,411 -38%
New Leasing 157,502 291,312 -46%
of which: Auto 2,125 3,832 -45%
Property 50,450 85,236 -41%
Nautical 110 7,694 -99%
Equipment 79,219 150,993 -48%
Industrial vehicles 25,598 43,557 -41%
New lending 298,870 355,857 -16%

A breakdown of the bank’s loan portfolio by type of borrower and type of financing is shown in the tables below.

€/thousands 30/06/2020 31112/2019 % change
1. Debt securities 135,666 136,014 -0.3%
a) Other financial companies 69,558 71,064 2.1%
b) Non-financial companies 65,108 64,950 -1.8%
2. Financing to 7,008,460 7,160,820 2.1%
a) Government entities 132,192 145,948 9.4%
b) Other financial companies 146,030 151,167 -3.4%
¢) Non-financial companies 6,421,146 6,546,703 -1.9%
d) Producer households 309,038 317,002 -2.5%
Total 7,144,072 7,296,834 -2.1%
€/thousands 30/06/2020 3112/2019 % change
Financing 7,008,406 7,160,820 2.1%
Current accounts 109,621 123,483 -11.2%
Medium/long-term loans 2,402,008 2,419,732 0.7%
Lease financing 4,049,976 4,177,635 -3.1%
Other lending 446,802 435,892 2.5%
Debt securities 135,666 136,014 -0.3%
Other debt securities 135,666 136,014 -0.3%
Total 7,144,072 7,296,834 -2.1%
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The first half of 2020 confirmed the upward trend seen in recent years in credit quality, which is the result both of major de-risking efforts
both in past years and ongoing by way of disposals of the non-performing portfolio and of significant efforts to cover that portfolio. On this
latter aspect in particular, we have seen a significant increase in the coverage ratio for the period as compared with December 2019, as
shown in the table below.

€/thousands 30/06/2020 31/12/2019 31/12/2018 31112/2017
Gross impaired 1,370,112 1,388,066 1,697,467 1,861,249
Net impaired 606,904 659,167 852,973 993,474
Gross NPL ratio 17.1% 171% 20.0% 21.2%
NPL ratio 8.5% 9.0% 11.2% 12.6%
Coverage ratio 55.7% 52.5% 49.8% 46.6%

Income statement

In the first half of 2020, the bank posted a gross operating loss of €24.7 million, compared with a gross operating profit of €13.4 million for
the same period of the previous year (down €28.1 million). Net of tax effects, the loss for the first half of the year amounted to €24.2 million,
compared with profits of €10 million for the first half of the previous year. Performance for the period was impacted significantly by
recognition of the impact of the pandemic, which led to total writedowns for credit risk (item 130) of €72.6 million, as compared with €31
million for the first half of 2019, an increase of €31.6 million due mainly to a redetermination of stage 1 and stage 2 credit risk.

Gross income increased slightly despite a decrease in profitability for the performing portfolio due to its re-pricing with the new production,
which was characterized by lower average spreads against improved average PD numbers, due in part to decrease, at the same time, in the
cost of funding.

The cost-to-income ratio at June 30, 2020, came to 44%, which is a slight improvement over December 2019.
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BCC LEASE SPA

Balance sheet

BCC Lease operates in the various leasing segments typical of the small-ticket market. After the first two months that were practically
normal, the first half of 2020, having felt the effects of the COVID-19 emergency, saw an essential shutdown in commercial operations for
the subsequent three months, while operating cash flows increased significantly in connection with the loan repayment moratoriums.
Beginning in late May and into June, we then saw a recovery in new lease agreements.

The first half of the year closed with 8,361 new lease agreements for a total of €88.5 million (as compared with 10,869 contracts for a total of
€123.8 million during the same period of the previous year), a decrease of 23% in number and of 28% in value.

The production trends for the period are shown in the following table:

New contracts

Amounts in €/thousands - Numbers in units 3010612020 3010612019 % change

No. Amount No. Amount No. Amount
Equipment vendor
Operating leases 3,785 28,119 5,140 38,911 -26.4% -27.7%
Equipment leasing 1,450 20,515 1,921 26,014 -24.5% -21.1%
Special-purpose financing 2,518 22,196 2,637 23,796 -4.5% 6.7%
Total vendor 7,753 70,831 9,698 88,721 -20.1% -20.2%
Mutual banks
Light commercial vehicle leasing 272 7,865 454 12,660 -40.1% -37.9%
Equipment leasing 209 4,403 355 7,878 -41.1% -44.1%
Heavy vehicle leasing 21 905 41 2,415 -48.8% -62.5%
Total mutual banks 502 13,173 850 22,953 -40.9% -42.6%
Other
Industrial vehicle leasing — Car Server - - 75 1,717 -100.0%  -100.0%
Light commercial vehicle leasing — Agents 65 2,082 133 4,338 -51.1% -35.4%
Heavy vehicle leasing — Agents 41 1,674 113 6,065 -63.7% -12.4%
Total other 106 4,476 321 12,121 -67.0% -63.1%
Total 8,361 88,480 10,869 123,795 -23.1% -28.5%

Net lending came to €450 million at the end of the first half of the year, a decrease from the about €470 million posted at the end of
December 2019.

In terms of risk profile, the company closed the year with an NPE ratio of 5.16% and a coverage ratio of 70.7%. The net NPE ratio came to
1.48%.

Income statement

The period closed with net profit of €4.2 million (€4.4 million before taxes), as compared with €4.9 million for the first half of 2019. The cost-
to-income ratio (including in income net operating income or expense, which largely represents a characteristic margin related to contracts)
is up slightly from the previous year (at 36.7%).
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BCC FACTORING SPA

Commercial performance

After a first quarter that was essentially comparable to the same period of 2019 in terms of performance, in the second quarter the COVID-
19 emergency had significant repercussions on the company’s commercial performance and on the factoring market generally. At June 30,
2020, turnover for the first six months of the year (in the amount of €816,330 thousand) decreased by 13.97% compared with the first half of
2019 (€948,865 thousand), while outstanding decreased by 28.29% (going from €441,527 thousand to €316,623 thousand) and lending at
the end of the period decreased by 25% (from €367,541 thousand to €275,602 thousand).

However, this decline in the company’s main commercial indicators appears to be in line with the trend in Italy’s factoring market as a whole.
Based on ASSIFACT figures for June 30, 2020, the market saw a decline in turnover of 13.45%, a drop in outstanding of 11.63% (average
outstanding for the first six months for BCC Factoring: -8.81%), and a decrease of 11.93% in advances and fees paid (vs. average lending
and average interest-bearing lending for BCC Factoring for the same period were down 6.81% and 0.69%, respectively).

The effect of COVID-19 has not yet led to significant concern about expected losses with regard to the outstanding of acquired and operative
customers. Apart from certain predictable requests for extensions on loans sold (currently operative in full compliance with the due dates of
extensions granted), there are as yet no worrying signs of future disputes. However, sellers operating on a “non-notification” basis, with
collection by BCC Factoring, are an issue of particular focus.

The first half of the year closed with a net loss of €0.7 million. Operating expenses as at June 30, 2020, totaled €3.6 million, which is
essentially in line with the same period of the previous year. Personnel expenses are perfectly in line with the previous year, and there
should be no major changes in the second half of the year, with the total expense for the year coming in below expectations. The workforce
as at June 30 totaled 36 employees.

Other administrative expenses fell by a total of €0.7 million (-4.20%), including a significant reduction in VAT costs due in part to savings
achieved after the introduction of Group VAT in June 2019 and to a decrease in IT spending.

The coverage ratio of unlikely-to-pay (UTP) exposures and bad loans is in line with the RAS coefficients and with the policies adopted at an
average of 51.73%, 91.61% for bad loans and 39.45% for UTPs (not backed by Iccrea Bancalmpresa guarantees). Overall, gross NPLs
amounted to €11.2 million, of which bad loans in the amount of €1.3 million, unlikely-to-pay exposures of €8.8 million, and impaired past-due
positions of €1.1 million. At December 31, 2019, bad loans amounted to €1.4 million, with unlikely-to-pay exposures at €9 million and
impaired past-due positions at €0.6 million.

7



ICCREA BANCA S.P.A. - 2020 REPORT AND CONSOLIDATED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BANCA MEDIOCREDITO FVG SPA

Banca Mediocredito del Friuli Venezia Giulia S.p.A. specializes in mainly medium and long-term loans and is responsible for the subsidized
loan granted through subsidized financing instruments that the Region of Friuli (in part under Revolving Funds) and other public entities have
made available to businesses.

In 2020, work continued on integrating the bank into the Group by adopting additional operating models and policies. In this regard, the bank
participates in the Group VAT scheme and, since July 1, 2019, in the Group tax consolidation scheme.

In the first half of 2020, the operations of the bank again focused on lending to businesses in the Friuli-Venezia Giulia region with medium
and long-term ordinary and subsidized financing operations. In the first half of 2020, the company also handled significant volumes of
applications for subsidized financing connected with the COVID-19 epidemic making use of the anti-crisis sections of regional revolving
funds, as well as of applications for moratoriums submitted by businesses in accordance with measures issued by the Italian government.

Within the scope of strategies of company repositioning, work continued to restore equilibrium to the structure of interest-bearing liabilities
with a reduction in the more concentrated, less stable component.

Balance sheet

At June 30, 2020, net loans to customers totaled €510 million, as compared with €543 million at the end of 2019. Direct funding from
customers came to €329 million, a decrease of 12.99% from the end of 2019 due to the specific strategy currently adopted to restructure
interest-bearing liabilities and reduce the cost of funding.

New lending to businesses in the Friuli-Venezia Giulia region in 2020 totaled €45 million, of which €16 million related to non-subsidized
lending with the remainder being in lending based on third-party funds.

Gross impaired loans as at June 30, 2020, decreased significantly compared with the end of 2019 (-6.7%) as a result of payments received
(€7.4 million), returns to performing status (€3.3 million), and write-offs (€1.2 million). The NPE ratio fell by 20% from the end of 2019 to
19.78%, while the net ratio went from 11.42% to 11.09%.

Income statement

The income statement shows a net loss of €3.2 million at June 30, 2020, compared with a net loss of €3.6 million for 2019. In addition to the
decrease in net interest income, this performance was affected by the decrease the value of in assets measured at fair value through profit
or loss (€0.4 million) and the increase in the cost of risk (€3.8 million), which takes prudent account of the potential effects of the pandemic
on the ability of businesses to repay their loans.
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6. DEVELOPMENTS IN PARENT COMPANY OPERATIONS AND THE MAIN ITEMS OF THE BALANCE SHEET AND INCOME
STATEMENT

The income statement and balance sheet presented below have been reclassified based on management criteria for the purpose of
facilitating comparability of information.

Following the Board of Directors’ resolution of November 29, 2018, regarding a project to rationalize the electronic money business — which
calls for the spin-off of the activities relating to this sector into a new company (Ventis S.p.A.), which was established on December 20, 2018
— and in application of IFRS 5, in the interim financial statements of Iccrea Banca the items attributable to the aforementioned branch have
been reclassified to the balance sheet and income statement items related to assets held for sale.

In addition, following the resolution of the Board of Directors of December 13, 2018, work continued on developing the Group’s ICT project
and, within the scope of the overall reorganization following the creation of the Iccrea Cooperative Banking Group, the sale of the IT
business units of Iccrea Banca and Iccrea Bancalmpresa to BCC Sistemi Informatici was completed as of July 1, 2020, with the latter
company officially becoming the new hub of information systems and technology for the Group. In the interim financial statements for Iccrea
Banca, the items related to the IT business unit have been reclassified under the balance sheet and income statement items related to
assets held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5.

Given the above, for the purposes of comparability of the results of the Parent Company with the previous period, the figures related to the
two business units being sold have been reallocated to the related items in the schedules provided below.

BALANCE SHEET

Assets

€/thousands 30/06/2020 31112/2019
Financial assets measured at amortized cost — Due from banks — Loans and securities 34,140,127 29,273,773
Financial assets measured at amortized cost — Due from customers — Loans 6,113,121 5,843,040
Financial assets measured at amortized cost — Due from customers — Securities 9,135,863 7,434,784
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss 1,503,723 1,279,864
Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 925,232 367,133
Equity investments 1,144,901 1,155,401
Other assets 599,803 315,037
Total interest-bearing assets 53,562,769 45,669,032
Other non-interest-bearing assets 262,154 407,527
Total assets 53,824,923 46,076,559

Total assets at June 30, 2020, amounted to €53.8 billion, an increase on the €46.1 billion posted at the end of December 2019, due mainly
to the following factors:

e an increase in financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) as a result of investments by the Parent
Company (exclusively in debt securities) as manager of the Guarantee Scheme (up €19 million) and an increase in derivatives
trading (up €209 million, a change that is also seen in the analogous item on the liability side);

e a decrease in assets mandatorily measured at fair value due mainly to a reduction in the value of units in collective investment
undertakings (down €14 million, €6 million of which due to redemptions of Securis real estate funds and capital losses in the amount
of €8 million), which was only partially offset by an increase in the value of equity securities (up €2 million) and debt securities,
mainly issued by banks (up €6 million);

e anincrease in financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) attributable to the purchase of
debt securities (up €566 million, mainly euro-area government securities) in reflection of the strategy of repositioning towards HTCS
business model in the first half of 2020, and the decrease in the value of equity securities (down €5 million on AT1s issued by the
mutual banks) and in the equity instruments of insurance companies (down €4 million, of which €2 million attributable to the sale of
Assimoco shares and €2 million to capital losses on Cattolica shares);

e anincrease in amounts due from banks as a result of an increase in collateralized loans within the Group (up €4 million) and of the
liability for reserve requirement funds of the mutual banks (up €805 million), which was partially offset by a decrease in purchases of
debt securities (down €121 million);

e an increase in loans to customers measured at amortized cost attributable to repo transactions with Cassa Compensazione &
Garanzia (up €351 million) and to the purchase of government securities (up €1.7 billion) related to the Group’s new financial
strategy.
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€/thousands 30/06/2020 31/12/2019
Mutual banks 21,425,737 17,955,094
Other credit institutions 12,714,390 11,318,679
Due from banks 34,140,127 29,273,773

Lending to the mutual banks posted a substantial increase (up €3.5 billion) to reach about €21 billion. These loans, disbursed with pool
collateral, include approximately €16.5 billion in operations with the ECB (T-LTRO Il in the amount of €78 million and T-LTRO Ill in the
amount of €16.4 billion), with the residual component being other forms of collateralized financing. Amounts due from other credit institutions
(which include debt securities) include €6.9 billion in intercompany receivables. Of this financing, €6.4 billion was granted to Iccrea
Bancalmpresa and €1.6 million was refinanced by the Parent Company with the central bank by way of the “ABACO” procedure and using
€2.4 billion in collateral.

€/thousands 30/06/2020 31/12/2019
Current accounts 70,227 309,093
Medium/long-term loans 64,715 69,886
Repurchase agreements 3,236,369 2,885,420
Other transactions 2,734,520 2,571,123
Impaired assets 7,290 7,519
Due from customers 6,113,121 5,843,040

Loans to ordinary customers remained essentially stable at around €6.1 billion and include €1.9 billion related to intercompany loans and
€3.2 billion to repurchase agreements with the clearing and guarantee fund, Cassa Compensazione & Garanzia.

The investment portfolio referring to HTC securities, which is made up of government securities, shows a balance at June 2020 of €9.1
billion.

The portfolio of financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (€1.5 billion) increased by €224 million from December 31,
2019, due mainly to the increase in derivatives trading (up €209 million) and to management of the guarantee scheme (€19 million).

Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, referring to the HCTS business model, are mainly made up of
government securities and show a balance of €925 million at June 30, 2020.

Equity investments amounted to €1.2 billion, increasing (by €15 million) from December 31, 2019, due to the subscription of the increase
towards the future capital increase of BCC Vita.

Liabilities and equity

€/thousands 30/06/2020 31/12/2019
Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost — Due to banks 28,955,540 20,782,376
Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost — Due to customers 17,417,775 17,228,036
Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost — Securities issued 4,253,167 5,021,316
Financial liabilities held for trading 594,706 381,867
Financial liabilities designated as at fair value 337,104 424,058
Other liabilities 404,017 384,215
Total interest-bearing liabilities 51,962,310 44,221,870
Other non-interest-bearing liabilities 168,450 150,200
Shareholders’ equity 1,700,371 1,831,906
Profit/(loss) for the period (+/-) (6,207) (127,417)
Total liabilities and equity 53,824,923 46,076,559

Interest-bearing funding totaled €52 billion, an increase (of €7.7 billion) compared with December 31, 2019, due to the following factors:

e anincrease in amounts due to banks as a result of the increase in time deposits (up €2.3 billion) — almost entirely with the affiliated
banks — and in funding from the ECB (up €4.6 billion). A similar trend can be seen in current accounts and demand deposits (up
€884 million);

e an increase in amounts due to customers due to an increase in repo transactions with Cassa Compensazione & Garanzia (€638
million), which was offset by a decrease in operations on behalf of the Italian Treasury (OPTES) with the Ministry of the Economy
and Finance (down €500 million);

¢ adecrease in securities issued, which can be attributed almost entirely to securities reaching maturity (down €614 million) and to the
early redemption of subordinated bonds placed with the mutual banks (down €118 million) as authorized by the ECB. The remainder
of the change is attributable to market-making activities involving our own bonds;
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e anincrease in liabilities held for trading, attributable mainly to trading derivatives (up €212 million, a change that can also be seen
the analogous item on the asset side);

e a decrease in financial liabilities designated as at fair value related to financing received from the affiliated banks (the Ex Ante
Quota) in relation to the Guarantee Scheme (down €87million) due to repayments made in January 2020.

€/thousands 30/06/2020 31/12/2019
Mutual banks 11,254,979 8,177,376
Other credit institutions 17,700,561 12,605,000
Due to banks 28,955,540 20,782,376

Interbank deposits, which include €4.7 billion in deposits for reserve obligations for the mutual banks, amounted to €29 billion. Amounts due
to mutual banks refer to the liquidity held in the daily settlement account in the amount of about €2.4 billion, with the remainder in time
deposits.

Amounts due to other credit institutions are largely attributable to loans obtained from the ECB under the T-LTRO Il in the amount of €78
million and the T-LTRO Ill in the amount of €16.4 billion, while the remainder refers to intercompany transactions.

€/thousands 30/06/2020 31/12/2019
Current accounts and deposits 885,541 1,009,117
Financing 15,927,492 15,789,731
Other payables 604,742 429,188
Due to customers 17,417,775 17,228,036

Funding from customers came to €17.4 billion, a slight increase (of €190 million) compared with December 31, 2019. This increase is due to
an increase in repurchase agreements (up €638 million) offset by a decrease in OPTES operations (down €500 million).

Securities issued as at June 30, 2020, amounted to €4.3 billion, a decrease (of €768 million) from December 2019 due to their natural
maturity or early redemption.

Equity

At June 30, 2020, the share capital of Iccrea Banca, represented by 27,125,759 ordinary shares with a par value of €51.65 each, was equal
to €1.4 billion and remains unchanged from 2019. Shareholders’ equity, excluding earnings for the period, amounted to €1.7 billion, a
decrease (of €135 million) compared with December 31, 2019. Changes are mainly due to a decrease in valuation reserves (down €4
million) as a result of the decreasing value of the FVOCI portfolio and to the net loss for 2019 that has been carried forward (down €127.4
million).
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Income statement

€/thousands 30/06/2020 30/06/2019
Net interest income 35,006 29,410
Gains/losses on financial transactions 43,086 32,792
Dividends 37,041 51,226
Net fee and commission income 68,749 75,320
Other operating expenses/income 78,845 33,349
Gross income 262,727 222,098
Personnel expenses (91,961) (65,081)
Other administrative expenses (130,687) (135,396)
Net adjustments of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (10,077) (5,251)
Total operating expenses (232,724) (205,728)
Gross operating profit 30,003 16,370
Net provisions for risks and charges (787) (427)
Net losses/recoveries on impairment of loans and other financial transactions (11,218) (631)
Total provisions and adjustments (12,005) (1,058)
Profit/(loss) from equity investments (25,540) (2,322)
Profit/(loss) before tax (7,542) 12,989
Income tax expense 1,335 3,141
Profit/(Loss) for the period (6,207) 16,130

The net loss for the period is €6.2 million, a decrease in performance (down €22.3 million) compared with June 2019.
The main factors that had an impact on financial performance for the period include:

e an increase in net interest income due to: (i) the revaluation of BTPi securities linked to European and Italian inflation (up €1.2
million), which account for 30% of the total HTC portfolio; (i) the contribution of negative-interest funding from the ECB (up €5.6
million) and from the MEF for the OPTES operations (up €2.6 million); (iii) a decrease in interest expense paid on bonds issued (€2.8
million) in relation to the aforementioned reduction in such bonds; (iv) interest income on subordinated bonds issued by the mutual
banks in relation to the strengthening of the Group’s capital in November 2019 (up €2.5 million). These increases were partially
offset by a decrease in interest on the financing of the companies within the direct scope (down €7 million) in relation to the
replacement of bonds with other short-term forms of financing, in addition to the tiering investment accounts, which had a further
negative impact of €1.5 million;

o an total increase of €43 million in profits and losses on other financial transactions due mainly to profits recognized in January 2020
with the sale of about €0.8 billion in government securities held in the HTC portfolio. Conversely, while the first half of 2019 had
benefited from capital gains on the NEXI (€7.4 million) and Visa (€3.6 million) securities, losses have been recognized on equity
securities (€3.3 million, of which €3.1 million on Visa) and on units in collective investment undertakings (€3.8 million) in the portfolio
mandatorily measured at fair value, as well as on debt securities (€3.8 million). Gains on trading in the securities and derivatives
segment (€2.5 million) helped to offset these losses;

o adecrease in dividends received (down €14.2 million). The decrease in dividends on equity investments in Iccrea Bancalmpresa (down
€23.8 million) and BCC Gestione Crediti (down €2.1 million) was only partially offset by an increase in dividends paid by the
shareholdings BCC Risparmio & Previdenza (up €2.8 million), BCC CreditoConsumo (up €5.8 million) and BCC Solutions (up €3.7
million). In addition, as at June 2020, dividends were not received from SIA or Cattolica, which had both paid dividends in the first
half of 2019 totaling €0.3 million;

e adecrease in net fee and commission income (down €6.6 million) due mainly to a reduction in spending with payment cards and in
intermediation more generally as a result of the lockdown in response to the health emergency. In the first half of 2019, net fee and
commission income also benefited from fees and commissions on the extraordinary (GACS) securitization operations conducted
under the coordination of the Parent Company;

e anincrease in other operating expenses/income due mainly to the increased billing of services related to the new ICBG. Class-1 and
Class-2 services increased by €17.3 million and €16 million, respectively, in relation to the fact that the mutual banks were billed for a
full six-month period (vs. just three months in the first half of 2019, given that the Group was established in March), while recoveries
for project services came to €12.5 million (an item that was not applicable in 2019);

e anincrease in losses on controlling equity interests recognized in relation to Iccrea Bancalmpresa and Banca Sviluppo for a total of
€25.5 million (up €23.2 million compared with the first half of 2019).
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In relation to these factors, gross income at June 30, 2020, including other operating income (€78.8 million) related to the reclassification of
fees received from the mutual banks for direction, coordination and other intercompany services within core operating revenues, came to
€262.7 million, an increase of €40.6 million compared with the first half of the previous year.

Operating expenses (€232.7 million) increased (by €27 million) compared with the first half of 2019 due mainly to the following: (i) an
increase in personnel expenses (from €65.1 to €92.0 million) as a result in the new size of the workforce following creation of the ICBG; (ii) a
slight increase in other administrative expenses, given that the increase in contributions to the Resolution Fund (up €8.1 million) compared
with the previous period was followed by the recognition of past-period adjustments (down €7.5 million) due to the revision of errors in costs
recognized in 2019; (iii) an increase in depreciation and amortization (up €4.8 million) as a result of capital expenditure made during the year
in order to establish the ICBG.

In addition to the aforementioned adjustments to equity investments, adjustments for credit risk had a significant impact on performance for
the period, having increased significantly from the €0.6 million of the first half of 2019 to €11.2 million for the period under review. These
adjustments can be attributed to loans in the amount of €4 million and securities in the amount of €7.2 million and regard the increase in
provisions made necessary by the changes in the macroeconomic environment in the wake of the spread of the COVID-19 pandemic.
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ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

Electronic money business

Iccrea Banca has evaluated the opportunity to set up a new company within the Iccrea Banking Group, in the form of an electronic money
institution to which we can transfer and focus the activities related to the electronic money business.

Creation of a company for the electronic money business — as authorized by the Bank of Italy — meets the need of segregating this specific
business in order to promote greater focus on the segment and facilitate potential partnerships in the future.

The decision to establish a dedicated legal entity to manage the e-money business is, in fact, oriented towards the achievement of: a) a
possible expansion of the reference market; b) greater organizational and operational flexibility functional to the characteristics of the market;
c) an improvement in time-to-market due to the convergence and centralization of all functional and technological components; and d)
greater consistency in the management of capital absorption with respect to the specific business. The transferred division consists of the
set of assets and liabilities relating to Iccrea Banca’s current electronic money business, including the employees, assets, and other legal
relationships pertaining to it.

The financial performance and standing of the e-money division is shown below.

Balance sheet

€/thousands 30/06/2020
Financial assets measured at amortized cost 555
Property, plant and equipment 2
Intangible assets 3,012
Other assets 149,608
Total assets 153,177
€/thousands 30/06/2020
Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost 102,598
Other liabilities 38,072
Post-employment benefits 462
Provisions for risks and charges 1,797
Profit/(loss) for the period (+/-) 10,248
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 153,177

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost include total monies connected with prepaid cards.

Income statement

€/thousands 30/06/2020
Fee and commission income 150,656
Fee and commission expense (112,838)
Net fee and commission income 37,818
Gross income 37,818
Net income/(loss) from financial operations 37,818
Administrative expenses: (31,031)
a) personnel expenses (2,820)
b) other administrative expenses (28,210)
Net provisions for risks and charges (289)
b) other net provisions (289)
Net losses/recoveries on impairment of loans and other transactions (3)
Net writedowns/writebacks of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (342)
Other operating expenses/income 8,146
Operating expenses (23,519)
Profit/(loss) before tax on continuing operations 14,299
Income tax expense (4,052)
Net profit/(loss) for the period 10,248
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ICT business unit

The project to transfer the ICT business unit by Iccrea Banca and Iccrea Bancalmpresa with the reorganization and consequent outsourcing
of ICT to BCC Sistemi Informatici is part of a broader, more complex ICT strategy initiated by the Parent Company in 2015 and resumed
immediately following the establishment of the ICBG.

Given the particular nature of the transformation taking place in the mutual banking segment and within the ICBG specifically, a plan for the
development of the ICT segment was defined that encompasses investments in resources, processes and infrastructures in line with the
strategies of the Group and calls for:

e in an initial phase, the creation, based on BCC Sistemi Informatici, of a single hub of information systems and technology for the
ICBG into which the Group’s ICT activities will flow, while safeguarding current operations and processes within a landscape of
profound transformation;

o over the medium term, the convergence and full integration of all ICT components of the ICBG into BCC SI by developing the
segment to support and facilitate operations and the future processes of the affiliated banks and of the Group.

The expected medium to long-term benefits include a significant increase in service levels and a general improvement in the ICT system, so
as to support business growth throughout the Group as a result of the ICT integration, convergence and evolution within the scope of the
project. Over the short term, we will see increased levels of ICT integration between the Parent Company and the affiliated banks,
particularly within all areas of governance and risk management.

The transferred division consists of the set of assets and liabilities relating to Iccrea Banca’s current ICT segment, including the employees,
assets, and other legal relationships pertaining to it.

The financial performance and standing of the ICT division is shown below.

Balance sheet

€/thousands 30/06/2020
Property, plant and equipment 12,677
Intangible assets 55,233
Other assets 27,826
Total assets 95,727
€/thousands 30/06/2020
Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost 35
Other liabilities 133,735
Post-employment benefits 1,860
Provisions for risks and charges 569
Profit/(Loss) for the period (40,472)
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 95,727

Income Statement

€/thousands 30/06/2020
Fee and commission income 4,056
Fee and commission expense -
Net fee and commission income 4,056
Gross income 4,056
Net gains/(losses) from financial operations 4,056
Administrative expenses: (38,435)
a) personnel expenses (7,843)
b) other administrative expenses (30,593
Net writedowns/writebacks of property, equipment and intangible assets (8,661)
Other operating expenses/income 2,568
Operating expenses (47,095)
Profit/(loss) before tax on continuing operations (40,472)
Income tax expense -
Profit/(Loss) for the period (40,472)
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7. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE PERIOD

Measures taken in response to the COVID-19 health emergency

Right from the early stages of the health and social emergency in ltaly, the Group has continue to pay the utmost attention to the indications
of the authorities aimed at protecting public health and safeguarding consumer interests and has then adapted processes and the
organization in a timely manner to ensure the necessary safety in the workplace and in relations with customers and with stakeholders
generally, as well as to ensure business and service continuity for all members of the Group. This has included the immediate creation,
within the Parent Company, of a specific cross-functional COVID-19 emergency task force, which has constantly assessed the evolving
circumstances and made the decisions that have been needed over time, with the goal of providing adequate mechanisms of coordination
and ensuring harmonization in the interpretation of the various measures and guidelines issued by Italian and European government bodies
and other authorities and in the solutions implemented throughout the Group.

The main areas of action of the COVID-19 task force concerned:

¢ monitoring developments in the legislative framework by analyzing and interpreting government measures and information released
by the competent authorities, as well as the steps taken by other national players and by the various banks within the Group;

e interacting with the authorities for questions, clarifications and requests for amendments, including in collaboration with Federcasse;

o distribution of the guidelines and interpretations to the affiliated banks and other companies of the direct scope and the handling of
requests for clarification and assistance by the affiliated banks and the companies of the direct scope;

o the definition of measures to increase the efficiency of operating processes and to strengthen the servicing measures offered by the
companies of the Group;

o the identification and implementation of technical solutions to help customers access services remotely and to help the banks handle
the growing volume of business related to the health emergency;

o the definition of ways to adapt information technology, to implement contingency solutions to support operations in the lending
segment, and to monitor related developments.

With regard to safety and continuity in operations, the necessary steps were guided and coordinated in order to ensure the safety of
employees, customers and vendors — in addition to the necessary communications with other internal and external stakeholders — and to
ensure the continuity of critical services.

The main solutions implemented in order to respond to the emergency during the lockdown, while mitigating risks and ensuring continuity in
operations, have been based primarily on the extension and timely activation of remote working and on the coordinated management of
opening branches to the public.

It should be noted, first of all, that the Group adheres to the protocol of intent established between Federcasse and the trade unions for the
mutual banking industry in order to avoid large gatherings and limit the spread of the virus, as well as to help safeguard the health of mutual
bank employees.

In this regard, remote working for nearly all corporate staff and a large part of the personnel of branches and other offices that are open to
the public immediately arose as the most effective way to protect employee health without compromising the orderly conduction of
operations.

Remote working was also quickly adopted in relation to service operations and the provision of access to systems. Available infrastructures
enabled us to ensure the effective operation of systems supporting new operating procedures while ensuring compliance and the
management of the various projects underway essentially in line with established plans.

With regard to systemic processes, beginning with the Group’s business continuity plan, the critical activities and emergency solutions
related to the unavailability of facilities and personnel have been analyzed, giving priority to the areas of operations that handle customer-
related processes and services.

The employees of units conducting critical activities, of those that handle systemic processes, and of those that work with the markets have
been given the ability to work from home. In situations in which the job requires physical presence in the workplace, shifts have been
organized in such a way as to reduce the risk of infection and consequent lack of critical personnel.

For the network of operating branches of the various banks and other companies of the Group, a uniform, coordinated approach for their
opening and, where necessary, selective closure has been established. Access has been governed by precise rules aimed at ensuring
social distancing. Throughout the lockdown, customers have been kept informed by way of the timely posting of in-branch notices and using
the usual means of communication as to the need to keep branch visits limited exclusively to transactions that must be done in branch and
other needs that cannot be postponed. Branch access has been ensured — by appointments made by phone and in more limited numbers —
only for urgent transactions that cannot be done by remote channels or automated teller machines as determined by the bank. In any event,
where necessary, urgent transactions that cannot be postponed related to essential public services have been ensured.

In order to facilitate activation of the Cure ltaly and Liquidity Decrees of the Italian government and industry accords (i.e. the ABI
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moratoriums, Imprese in Ripresa 2.0, and Accordo con Associazione dei Consumatori), we immediately activated solutions aimed at their
execution and qualification by the companies of the Group, along with the production of daily reports and other information aimed at detailed
monitoring of both the level of execution and its related impact, particularly in terms of the quality of the loan portfolio. A direct expression of
this reporting and information can also be seen in the new, specific supervisory reports activated in this regard (see below).

In this regard, it is also important to note the actions aimed at ensuring a response to dynamics in lending and related risk factors (the
“COVID-19 Plan”) in order to adapt and strengthen the operational model for lending and related management strategies to the changing
landscape, while ensuring a timely response to the needs of the customer, as well as to respond to the potential deterioration of the loan
portfolio and promote the main initiatives defined within the scope of the Operational Plan that accompanies the Group’s NPE strategy.

The granting of credit within the Group is based mainly on the framework of Group’s policies in this regard, which are inspired by applicable
laws and regulations, by the principle of sound and prudent management, by industry best practice, and by the principle of proportionality in
the application of lending rules. In confirming the implementation of this system even within the context of the COVID-19 emergency, the
Group has, in certain specific cases, deemed it appropriate to adapt this framework so as to facilitate application of governmental and
industry-association measures and to meet the needs of our customers.

Therefore, beginning in March 2020, the companies of the Group were provided with the following:

e general operational guidelines concerning the approach and mechanisms to be used when granting credit, monitoring and
classifying loan-facilitation measures, and evaluating guarantees in light of the particular circumstances of the moment;

o strategic operational guidelines for the handling of moratoriums to support customers.
In this regard, we have:

o streamlined loan-origination processes and the acceptance of applications by customers given the exceptional nature of this period,
while also preserving the principle of sound and prudent credit management;

o allowed temporary exceptions to Group policies limited to the perimeter of lending operations falling within the sphere of application
of the measures of the Cure Italy and Liquidity decrees and of the ABI moratoriums;

e enhanced the constant monitoring and control of the measures granted;

e maintained and reinforced the principle of the separation of roles as governed by Group policies with regard to the granting and
execution of credit and the close observation of borrowers who had already shown anomalies prior to the pandemic, while assessing
the resilience of exposures and the validity of the management strategies undertaken.

In order to best manage the process of assessing creditworthiness, with a particular emphasis on corporate customers, we have defined a
number of areas for closer attention — reinforcing the credit standards of the ordinary assessment of borrowers — based on the type of
customer and the type of transaction.

In light of the related EBA guidelines, we have also issued specific instructions to the companies of the Group for the proper classification of
the established measures, including specifying the types of suspensions and the conditions which, if met, do not result in the automatic
classification of the exposure subject to a moratorium as forborne.

The areas of action identified has allowed for the adequate overall management of operations underlying the lending process throughout the
peak phases of the emergency with very high percentages of approval of the requests for moratorium and financing (as summarized in the
table below), while maintaining constant monitoring of portfolio quality, of dynamics in lending, and of related risk factors.

Cure Italy moratoriums b JTIILE A

(thousands) (€/billions)
Applications received 219 236
Applications approved 205 219
% applications approved 94% 93%
New financing under the Liquidity Decree (Article 13) (thor:a:‘r]lz: (€I:)\iTI]izlrl12;
Applications received 95 3.2
Financing granted 74 1.8
% financing granted 78% 56%
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By the close of the period under review, the total number of moratorium applications based on the various types of intervention (legislation,
ABI, and individual initiative) agreed upon by the companies of the Group came to about 205,000 (out of some 219,000 applications
received), for a total gross exposure of €21.9 billion (equal to about 26% of the Group’s total loan portfolio with ordinary customers).

With regard to the additional lending measures adopted nationwide (i.e. the Liquidity Decree), by the close of the period under review the
Group had received some 95,000 applications for a total value of €3.2 billion. Loans totaling €1.8 billion were disbursed in response to these
applications. The vast majority of these actions (about 78% in terms of volumes disbursed) concerned new loans with a maximum value of
€25,000 and backed by the Central Guarantee Fund (Article 13(1)(m) of Decree Law 23 of April 8, 2020). Within the loans disbursed, we
have seen a substantial focus on captive customers, with only a minimal part being loans to new borrowers.

The implications of the health emergency, particularly in terms of its impact on the lending industry, affect all aspects of the Group’s credit
risk assessment and management framework and, in this sense, have called for action to supplement and/or adapt processes and
methodologies aimed, generally speaking, in two main directions:

o the identification and constant monitoring of key information related to the loan portfolio impacted by application of the support
measures established by applicable COVID-19 legislation. This has entailed, practically speaking, the incorporation of these new
dimensions of analysis within the ordinary processes of credit-risk monitoring and control and of the production of related separate
and consolidated reporting within the Group, including in response to the requests for information received from the supervisory
authorities;

o the revision of credit-risk forecasting metrics to factor in the new aspects of analysis related to the COVID-19 emergency (e.g.
updated macroeconomic scenarios and the effect of support measures) within the scope of ordinary measurement processes and, in
particular, within the IFRS 9 impairment framework.

With regard to the need for internal information and the complex framework of reporting to the organization’s governing bodies, since the
start of the health emergency risk monitoring and detection has been intensified in order to respond to the main risk dynamics (i.e. credit risk,
financial risk and operational risk).

As concerns the monitoring of credit risk, specific summary information related to credit-risk efforts under way in connection with the COVID-
19 emergency has been brought to the attention of the corporate bodies of the Parent Company (i.e. the Risks Committee and the Board of
Directors), including:

o information related to the process of monitoring lending operations with regard to COVID-19, with a particular emphasis on the
support measures approved for customers and the main analyses of and trends in the Group’s overall loan portfolio;

e simulations - initially conducted based on an assumption of static financials and on information available at the time, as well as on
an initial version of the macroeconomic scenarios generated in response to the COVID-19 emergency and subsequently updated —
of the additional provisioning for the Group’s loan portfolio expected for 2020;

o the main trends in the credit risk profile.

After the supervisory authority had issued specific guidelines accompanied by ad hoc requests for banks to provide qualitative and
quantitative information, the Parent Company established a cross-functional control room to coordinate and produce the information
requested by the supervisory authorities on a weekly and monthly basis.

Thus far, in line with the requests for information issued by the supervisory authorities, the Group has prepared the following COVID-19
reports at the consolidated level:

“COVID-19 Emergency Measures — Moratoriums and lending”, a template issued to the Bank of Italy on a weekly basis;

e “SSM COVID-19 reporting”, a template issued monthly to the ECB JST together with the ICBG’s monthly closing package for the
balance sheet, income statement, and risk-weighted assets (RWAs);

e “COVID-19 Questionnaire: Customer relations and support measures”, which is sent on a semi-monthly basis to the Bank of Italy
and provides information on relations with the customers of the affiliated banks within the context of COVID-19 (e.g. access to online
banking, legislative moratoriums, government-backed lending, complaints, and other issues related to the pandemic);

e “COVID-19 Impact — Weekly credit monitoring”, submitted weekly to the ECB JST, which provides a risk-based presentation of the
numbers and trends for the Group’s loan portfolio, with a specific focus on operations related to the COVID-19 emergency and
related support measures.

In order to ensure an integrated, cross-functional management of the Group’s risks, including with regard to the monitoring of financial risks,
risk monitoring efforts have been intensified with the production of periodic reports to the corporate bodies concerning the trends in the main
indicators for the financial markets, on the outcome of the monitoring of (operational and structural) liquidity risk for the ICBG and by liquidity
sub-group, and on the outcome of the monitoring of market and counterparty risk.

With regard to operational risk, the Loss Data Collection process has been further intensified, particularly as concerns the collection of
operational loss data and/or the extraordinary costs incurred by the various legal entities in order to ensure business continuity, as has the
monitoring of IT and cyber incidents, which, in recent months, has been oriented more towards identifying any causal links of events to the
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pandemic.

Within this context, in addition to the above in relation to credit risk (e.g. determination of the need for additional provisioning for the loan
portfolio, post-COVID impact simulations in calculating ECL), we have conducted analyses and assessments aimed at simulating the
potential impact of various risk profiles brought about by the changing external landscape and have presented specific ICAAP and ILAAP-
like analyses at both the separate and consolidated levels, as well as analyses of the resilience of the individual affiliated banks.

This set of analyses and simulations provided fundamental input and opportunities for consistency checks to support the Group’s revised
budget — approved by the Board of Directors of the Parent Company on August 7, 2020 — and the related realignment of the main risk
governance processes for 2020 (RAS 2020 for the Group, the companies of the direct scope, and the affiliated banks).

Finally, within the scope of initiatives in response to the COVID-19 emergency, we have activated market solutions in the following areas:

e insurance, with the provision of two separate COVID-19 insurance policies, one aimed at covering the employees and shareholders
of the affiliated banks and one to be offered to business customers to cover their employees;

e payment systems and electronic money, with an offering to promote the acceptance of remote micropayments using cards with
reimbursement of the merchant fees for payments of €10 or less. In addition, we have eliminated rental fees and fees for new
PayWay Mail activations for all of 2020. In order to promote the use of electronic money and limit the need to come into a branch, we
have provided the option to increase withdrawal and spending limits for debit cards and have increased the ATM withdrawal limits for
Bancomat cards until the end of the health emergency;

e operating leases and consumer credit, providing the option of both a reduced lease payment for six months with consequent
extension of the operating lease agreement and the suspension for up to three months of payments on loans for customers who are
experiencing difficulties as defined under Article 54 of Decree Law 18/2020.

Within the scope of efforts related to the ongoing development of digital banking, we are currently working on:

¢ a new function to enable both the bank and customers to upload, share and sign documents using strong customer authentication
(SCA);

o atechnical infrastructure to handle investment orders via phone.

In line with recommendations by the Bank of Italy concerning communications with customers, a Group site has been created for the
COVID-19 emergency with the goal of providing customers with up-to-date information and offering the mutual banks a communication tool
that can be integrated into their respective sites, which includes:

e FAQs for more information;

e ameans of making appointments via online forms on the sites of the mutual banks (updated daily with information of open branches
and changes in branch hours).

We have also issued specific communications to customers who use RelaxBanking in order to promote the use of digital tools. In the same
way, a notice was sent to all customers who fall within the scope of the decree.

Finally, we have created a dedicated page on the Coopera website — a brand dedicated to civil society — in order to bring together, safeguard
and, at the same time, not lose track of available support initiatives once the health emergency has passed.

New plan and internal reorganization of the companies within the “direct scope”

Following a process that began in November 2019 and ended in March 2020 during the height of the health emergency, the Parent
Company approved the Group’s 2020-2023 Strategic Plan, although only in terms of strategies and targets.

This decision was deemed to be fundamental to launching the more relevant strategic initiatives contained in the plan, which focus on
efficiency in operations and strengthening commercial efforts and credit management.

As a whole, these “essential” actions make up the ICBG Transformation Plan, as approved by the Iccrea Banca Board of Directors on March
30, 2020, which establishes the actions that the Group intends to carry out in our current unstable market.

This Transformation Plan includes actions aimed at revising and streamlining the organization of the companies within the direct scope of
consolidation with a view to increasing the operating efficiency of the Group and to realizing the full potential of the affiliated banks, as
described in greater detail below.
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Reorganization of the Group’s ICT model

One of the primary objectives of this process of transformation that the Group has undertaken is the reorganization and evolution of
information systems, functions and processes in order to develop greater value creation through investments in resources and infrastructure.
The Group has, therefore, returned to the development efforts — which began in 2015 and were then suspended in favor of other priority
projects related to creation of the ICBG - aimed at creating a single platform for the Group in order to increase the efficiency and
effectiveness of the system of internal controls, to enhance integration between the various entities of the Group, and to complete the
ICBG's digital transformation.

Initially, this evolution calls for the creation, based on BCC SI, of a single hub of information systems and technology for the ICBG that will
encompass the ICT activities of the Group and, over the medium term, will see the complete convergence and integration of all components
of ICBG ICT within BCC SI.

The goal of revising the operating model of this unified IT company has reached an initial, fundamental milestone of the authorization by the
supervisory authority for the incorporation of this single company dedicated to ICT.

Therefore, as mentioned previously, during the first half of the year and effective as of July 1, 2020, we have completed an initial
consolidation of the capabilities of the various entities of the Group into BCC SI by transferring the ICT business units of Iccrea Banca and
Iccrea Bancalmpresa, for which we have conducted an increase in capital reserved for the transferring entities for a total of €63.5 million.

At the same time, work has also continued on the migration of the affiliated banks who use other platforms (23 mutual banks at the end of
September) to BCC SI, completion of which is expected over the next three years.

Reorganization of the Group’s retail segment — Bancassurance

Following the start of operations for the Group, work began on the reorganization of the bancassurance segment, including the renewal of
the partnership with the Cattolica Group until 2020, and a total revision of the model of business management within the Group, which is
currently highly complex and heterogeneous given the number of organizations and parties involved, including the company BCC Retail.

In this regard, in order to support the growth and modernization of business, the Group has set the strategic priority of developing the
segment by redesigning the business model and the partnership with the Cattolica Group (as the primary provider of insurance solutions
through the companies BCC Vita and BCC Assicurazioni).

The main lines of development concern the creation of a single Group competency center for insurance to serve the compound needs of the
affiliated banks, including by redefining the role of BCC Retail and strengthening its operations, while also reorganizing the local commercial
and operational offices. Within this context, and with a view to optimizing commercial and operational processes and approaches, we began
the process of evolving the segment in the first half of the year, which calls for;

o the creation of BCC Servizi Assicurativi, an insurance agency established out of the transformation of BCC Retail into a limited
liability company and the consolidation within this company of a number of regional agencies in order to serve as the unified hub for
insurance within the Group;

o definition of the role and focus of BCC Servizi Assicurativi, including actions aimed at transferring commercial activities and related
resources to the business divisions of the Parent Company, while maintaining operations within these divisions.

Therefore, effective as of August 13, 2020, BCC Retail Scarl was transformed from a limited-liability consortium to a limited-liability company
and took on the new name of BCC Servizi Assicurativi Srl.

Reorganization of the Group’s retail segment — Electronic money

In the first half of the year, work continued towards creating the company for Iccrea Banca’s electronic money business, which calls for the
convergence of all functional and technological components by spinning off the electronic money business (issuing and acquiring) into the
company Ventis SpA, which was created on December 20, 2018, with the goal of achieving greater organizational and operational efficiency,
at improving time to market as a result of converging all functional and technological components related to this business, and at potentially
expanding the market concerned. This operation is a preparatory step in developing electronic money issuing and payment services within
Ventis SpA to support the affiliated banks with a view to improving service levels to them and their customers and to realizing the full
commercial potential of this segment.
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Transformation of Sinergia into a joint-stock company

Within the scope of the broader strategic plan aimed at rationalizing and optimizing the Group’s operating costs, Sinergia, in which Iccrea
Banca holds a 70% interest, represents the specialist hub in terms of processes and capabilities in which to converge assets, resources and
services to support the affiliated banks. Within this context, and continuing the rationalization of the shareholding structures of the companies
of the ICBG that began in the fourth quarter of 2019, Iccrea Banca issued to all shareholders and irrevocable offer to purchase their shares
held in the Company.

On June 15, the shareholders also approved the transformation of Sinergia from a joint-stock consortium company to a joint-stock company,
the effectiveness of which is expected in the coming months.

Reorganization of the Group’s corporate segment

In order to maximize the potential synergies and efficiencies of the model/process aimed at improving the level of service provided to the
affiliated banks, we have also established a plan to evolve the corporate segment, which calls for the reorganization of the companies of the
direct scope that operate within this segment.

Budget review and new planning process
In the second quarter, we began revising the Group’s overall budget process once the macroeconomic landscape had achieved greater
stability.

In the fourth quarter of 2020, planning will begin, based on existing strategic guidelines and established targets, in order to update the
Group’s long-term forecasts.

Implementation and development of the ICBG commercial and marketing strategy

In the first half of 2020, the Iccrea Cooperative Banking Group continued efforts to enhance our model of banking in support of local
communities that is typical of the affiliated banks, while maintaining a keen focus on the needs of territory and on the satisfaction our
customers and shareholders. Within this context, the Parent Company has, together with the affiliated banks, consolidated the process of
evolving and enhancing the current service model and branch network with a view to transitioning towards a model based on high-quality
relationships.

To this end, the following primary areas of development have been targeted:

o an offering based on high-value advisory services that call for experts with strong specialist and relationship skills dedicated to
individual customers (affluent, wealth, and private banking, with an emphasis on insurance services) and business customers
(including SME and corporate accounts);

o the development of the branch model by enhancing the automation of transaction services (including advanced ATMs, in-branch
self-service kiosks, and “cash-light” branches) and through investment in remote-banking technologies;

o the dissemination of a customer-centric approach by listening to the needs of both customers and shareholders in order to manage
current and future needs and establish lasting relationships that create value;

e community development with product/segment specializations, particularly aimed at businesses, for whom dedicated offerings have
been defined, including by strategically repositioning the ICBG as a key partner for SMEs;

o enhancing customer service capabilities through advanced customer-insight tools and models;
o the launch of a digital, multichannel strategy.

In order to support this evolution, and within the ICBG Transformation Plan, we have defined and launched the “Full Revenue Potential”
program with the goal of monitoring strategic projects that have a significant impact on the Group’s commercial performance.

The main projects are described below, along with information on progress made:

o Customer Relationship Management (CRM), the project aimed at developing the ICBG's integrated system of customer relationship
management (CRM) with the goal of ensuring greater effectiveness in analysis by making use of a single digital platform available to
affiliated banks and to the Parent Company, activating a marketing automation engine to guide multichannel and multi-step
campaigns that focus on the customer, and introducing and monitoring the product sales process from a single point, thereby
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enabling a multichannel process at the Group level. Testing is under way with the pilot banks, and we will begin gradually activating
all affiliated banks, beginning with the pilot group, in September this year;

Full Commercial Potential — Retalil, a project aimed at developing and specializing the branch model of the mutual banks by, in part,
enhancing and further developing the catalogue of products and services (particularly in the business areas of asset management,
insurance, bancassurance, consumer credit and electronic money aimed at businesses, and at SMEs in particular). The project
intends to contribute to realizing the full commercial potential of the Group in line with the financial trends envisaged within the
established strategic guidelines. Despite the limitations brought about by the COVID-19 pandemic, we have carried out a pilot project
with a number of mutual banks that produced encouraging results in terms of adding value to consulting services for customers;

the Intour project based on the establishment of quality partnerships to create an advanced platform of services for the tourism
industry that integrates an innovating offering of financing, payment systems, and insurance (i.e. fintech and insurtech), which will
make it possible to reduce the industry’s dependence on intermediaries (e.g. OTAs), promote local consumption, and shorten the
distance between business and banking. In the first half of 2020, we acquired a minority interest in H Benchmark S.r.I. with the goal
of acting as an “accelerator” of the Group’s activities in the tourism segment. Using this web-based platform, it is possible to acquire,
aggregate and run comparative analyses of a rich series of performance indicators for a hotel in order to facilitate the loan-origination
process;

the Wealth Management (WM) project, which seeks to develop the advisory models and the role of the dedicated competency center
within the Parent Company in order to ensure the quality of the offering and management of investment, funding, life insurance, and
other wealth management products. The WM platform, the new front-end application available to assist mutual banks in their
consulting efforts, will be gradually released in the fourth quarter of 2020. In this regard, the Group’s asset management company,
BCC Risparmio & Previdenza, has entered into a partnership with BlackRock aimed at benefiting from the technological know-how of
this US-based asset manager;

with regard to the asset management segment, the continuation of efforts to reposition BCC Risparmio & Previdenza in terms of its
business model. More specifically, the company’s role as the Group’s investment center has been strengthened by transitioning from
a pure product model to a meta-product model, including broadening its range of action — beyond mere internal production — by
enhancing activities related to the wrapping of third-party enterprise capabilities and, more generally, focusing on the generation of
more technological investment solutions (e.g. development of the aforementioned WM platform);

the bancassurance projects and reorganization of the Group’s electronic money segment, as mentioned above;

in the area of consumer finance, and specifically as concerns salary and pension-backed lending and post-employment benefits, the
evaluation of potential strategic partnerships with leading industry players in order to develop this specific business, including in light
of the expected start of more favorable methods of weighting exposures as introduced by CRR2 and defined by Regulation (EU)
2020/873.

The first half of 2020 saw the implementation or launch of a series of important initiatives with a view to the creation of value and of image for
the growth of the Group, of the mutual banks, and of the product companies, which concerned various areas and targets. This included:

Restart package;

Project Ecobonus;

CartaBCC loyalty card;

Tutela Reddito (Protect Earnings) campaign;

Mpay POS campaign;

StudioSi campaign;

Digital marketing projects such as the Digital Maturity Framework and web and social-media monitoring;

Development of civil society.

Restart package

Some of the main projects within this package are those that aim to extend the use of electronic money, including through government
incentives for 2020 to promote electronic payments. In this regard, we have launched the first joint campaigns with Cattolica within the
aforementioned framework agreement between Iccrea Banca and the parent company of the Cattolica group. Of particular note are the
initiatives dedicated to the product Tutela Reddito (Protect Income) and the initiative #/NSIEMESIVINCE (#TOGETHERWEWIN). The restart
package also includes initiatives for the customers and shareholders of the mutual banks to support the placement of BlackRock funds
through the aforementioned agreement, as well as individual investment and incremental trading accounts. Many commercial initiatives in
recent months have been conducted making use of the Group’s CRM, although not to its full potential.
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Project Eco-sisma bonus

With regard to developments related to the environmental and earthquake bonuses (Eco- and Sisma Bonus) governed by Italy’s Relaunch
Decree, specific projects and initiatives have been launched in order to better support the mutual banks and their customers in taking
advantage of these important opportunities. In this regard, agreements have been signed with strategic partners such as Enigaseluce and
Harley Dickinson. The mutual banks have also been provided specific products and informational and training meetings have been held with
the mutual banks and with the businesses and customers concerned.

CartaBCC loyalty card

Launched in May 2020, Premiati Revolution loyalty program was launched in order to increase spending on the credit cards already in the
customer portfolio and to promote the placement of new cards.

StudioSi campaign

The lccrea Cooperative Banking Group has been selected by the European Investment Bank (EIB) to be an intermediary for the
management of the student loan fund financed with 2014-2020 NOP resources assigned by Italy’s Ministry of Education and Research in
order to support students in southern Italy. The fund is designed for all those looking to pursue undergraduate or post-graduate degrees or
specializations at any university. Through the mutual banks, the ICBG will be able to disburse €43.5 million to finance — without any cost —
both tuition and accommodations.

In order to inform students of this opportunity, which, in such a complicated year for employment, serves as a sort of social safety valve, a
promotional campaign has been designed and was launched on September 1 of this year. Given that it targets students and their families,
the campaign is running primarily on mobile devices and online with the help of influencers who are able to attract the attention of young
people, as well as on specialized sites such as Skuola.net and on innovative social media platforms like TikTok.

Development of the civil society segment saw the release of specific products such as current accounts (5) and loans (2) under the Coopera
brand. The Coopera website has also been created and maintained to present the philanthropic initiatives carried out by the mutual banks in
response to the health emergency.

The Digital Maturity Framework project has defined the current level of maturity of the business and identified the areas for development in
order to further optimize the management and output of digital marketing efforts. Mapping will make it possible to achieve the following
objectives: to manage the online marketing funnel in order to ensure a consistent brand experience (i.e. Group and bank branch info,
product offering, online and social-media channels); to support marketing campaigns with an investment plan based on actual potential and
on online and offline traffic; and to gather data and knowledge in order to optimize the campaigns for customer targets that present high
potential for conversion.

In 2020, the web and social-media monitoring project that began in previous years has focused on monitoring the impact of the Group’s
activities in the digital mediascape. On social media, we have also structured the monitoring of the main performance indicators of the social
media channels of the Group and of the mutual banks, thereby creating a knowledge base that can be used to improve the use of social
media in the marketing and communication efforts of the affiliated banks.

Revision of the territory coverage of the Affiliated Banks

In the first half of 2020, the Parent Company continued work to revise the territory coverage of the affiliated banks and, in particular, to
rationalize this coverage through the grouping of banks in order to consolidate the coverage of mutual banks throughout the territory and
develop the sort of capital solidity and efficiency that will enable the new entities to operate more effectively within the community.

During the first half of the year, the following mergers were undertaken:

e BCC Trevigiano and BCC Brendola, approved by the Board of Directors of the Parent Company on March 13, 2020, authorized by
the ECB on March 16, 2020, and effective as of October 1, 2020;

e BCC Toniolo San Cataldo, BCC Resuttano, BCC Mussomeli and BCC S. Biagio Platani'2, approved by the Board of Directors of the
Parent Company on April 23, 2020 and authorized by the ECB on July 28 2020, effective as of October 1, 2020.

In July and August 2020, the following additional mergers were also approved by the Board of Directors of the Parent Company:

12 The mutual bank was put under temporary receivership, for violations of anti-money laundering legislation, on April 1, 2019. The temporary receivership was extended by the competent authority until
September 30, 2020 in order to enable the extraordinary administrators to fully implement the corrective measures identified, as well as in relation to the business combination concerned.
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e BCC San Giorgio Quindo Valle Agno and Banca di Verona Cadidavid, approved by the Board of Directors of the Parent Company on
August 7, 2020 (request submitted to the ECB on August 10, 2020);

e BCC Vibonese, BCC Cittanova, BCC Crotonese and BCC Catanzaresa, approved by the Board of Directors of the Parent Company
on July 24, 2020 (request submitted to the ECB on August 4, 2020). This operation, like the one below, is also aimed at providing the
new entity with the more robust organization, operations and capital needed for more effective development, which will allow for
greater value creation in coverage of the territory in accordance with the principles of sound and prudent management;

e BCC Valdichiana and BCC Tema, approved by the Board of Directors of the Parent Company on August 7, 2020 (request submitted
to the ECB on August 10, 2020).

These operations are expected to go into effect by the first quarter of 2021.

Participation in the T-LTRO

In March, in light of the new landscape brought about by the pandemic and of the timely activation of the major monetary-policy measures
described above, aimed at providing the needed support in providing households, businesses and banks with liquidity and at helping to
maintain the regular provision of credit to the real economy, the Board of Directors of the Parent Company approved a revision to the
Group's financial strategy, particularly with regard to the maximum level of exposure in Italian government securities at both the separate
and the consolidated levels. In particular, given the actions of monetary policy described above, an increase of about €13 billion in additional
liquidity was approved beyond the previous €17 billion in T-LTRO lli prior to the monetary-policy maneuver, bringing the new T-LTRO [ll limit
to about €30 billion in collateralized funding. At the same time, Italian government securities were purchased with maturities of no greater
than that of the T-LTRO IlI auctions.

New policy references for trading within the HTC portfolio

In the first quarter, in response to the shifting macroeconomic landscape with the spread of the COVID-19 health emergency and the
consequent support measures of the ECB, the Parent Company approved, along with an increase in exposure to Italian sovereign risk in
order to allow for access to more expansionary monetary-policy measures in response to the emergency, also a strengthening of
mechanisms and controls in full compliance with IFRS 9 with regard to the hold-to-collect (HTC) business model.

In this regard, we have amended the annex to the Group policy “Accounting Policy IFRS 9 Classification & Measurement — levels of
significance of sales recognized for the hold-to-collect business model”, which defines the authorization levels and thresholds for the sale of
financial instruments in relation to sales allowed under IFRS 9 for the HTC business model. More specifically, the main changes made, in
line with the Group’s market-risk policy, concerned a revision to the authorization processes for the various cases of sales of financial assets
allocated under the HTC business model, as well as a revision to the materiality threshold of “sales for other reasons”, which has been
reduced from 15% to 10%.

Early Warning System (EWS)

In January 2020, taking account of the requests received through discussions with the supervisory authority concerning aspects of
governance and process of the EWS framework, a number of improvements and related developments were implemented. These changes
fall within the scope of an ordinary process of development and enhancement of the overall early warning system, which takes account of
the input and expectations of the supervisor and other elements aimed at the further integration of the EWS within the Group’s risk
governance processes.

With regard to implementation of the EWS framework, work was done in the first half of 2020 aimed at implementing the system, and related
periodic (ongoing) monitoring of the risk profile and (quarterly) reporting has begun. The outcome of these activities show an overall situation
of widespread financial, capital and operational equilibrium within the affiliated banks, although there are certain cases of affiliated banks that
present limited, not severe imbalances in specific segments of operations. For these affiliated banks, the Parent Company has activated the
governance mechanisms envisaged within the Cohesion Contract, which have led to the launch and execution by the banks concerned of
equilibrium-restoration and de-risking efforts in specific segments of operations. Upon completion of the process of classifying their technical
standing at December 2019, the classified mutual banks were, in a controlled and coordinated manner, subject to specific directives and
guidance in which remediation plans and actions, as well as the objectives to be reached in 2020 to improve their respective risk profiles,
were defined. During the first half of the year, the progress made in relation to these initiatives was monitored with the goal of improving the
technical standing of these banks.

For more information on the key aspects of ICBG'’s overall EWS, see Part E of the explanatory notes.
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Refinement of the impairment model and the COVID-19 add-on

The implications of the COVID-19 emergency have called for a series of actions to supplement and adapt the measurement framework and
management of credit risk for the Group aimed both at the constant monitoring of risk drivers and other information related to lending within
the context of COVID and at revising the risk-forecasting metrics in consideration of the evolving economic scenarios.

As the reader will be aware, the pandemic has radically altered the economic and financial forecasts for Italy and for the euro area, resulting
in expectations for an economic contraction the repercussions of which will extend over time and the negative impact of which is difficult to
estimate. According to forecasts released by the Bank of Italy in July, ltaly's GDP is expected to decrease by 9.5% in 202013 given the
contraction in industrial production following implementation of measures to limit infection and the reduced propensity for businesses to
make new investments. On the consumer side, too, we have seen a great deal of caution due to expectations of a worsening in financial
position and consequent reduction in consumption. Nonetheless, these same scenarios also point to a rapid recovery in sales beginning in
the second half of 2020 and for growth in Italian GDP for 2021 and 2022, although remaining slower than the growth forecast prior to the
health emergency.

In light of these new factors, right from the first signs of the COVID-19 emergency, the Group launched a series of actions aimed at
estimating and anticipating, for the 2020 half-year report, the expected worsening of the economic landscape in the levels of provisioning for
the ICBG loan portfolio, including the definition of ad-hoc forecasting models, with the goal of: (a) estimating, with an unavoidable degree of
approximation, the cost of credit, for both performing and non-performing exposures, that the pandemic could bring about in this initial
phase, in accordance with the recommendations of regulatory and financial-reporting authorities; and (b) reinforcing the measurement
processes envisaged by prevailing internal regulations in a codified, standardized manner.

The results of this series of actions and their application in the financial reporting for June can be seen both in the adaptation of the IFRS 9
impairment model used to calculate adjustments to the value of performing loans and in the creation of a specific conditioning model for the
non-performing portfolio in response to COVID-19, which has been used for the 2020 half-year report to calculate and include an impairment
add-on to the one generated by the process envisaged under prevailing internal rules drafted prior to the COVID-19 emergency.

Updates and adaptations of the IFRS 9 impairment framework under COVID-19

Of particular note within the scope of the comprehensive set of actions implemented by the Group for the structural management of the
COVID-19 emergency are the actions to revise the credit-risk forecasting metrics to factor in the new aspects of analysis related to this new
landscape within the scope of ordinary measurement processes and, in particular, within the IFRS 9 impairment framework in order to
calculate the expected credit loss (ECL) on performing loans.

The factors of great discontinuity related to the market conditions brought about by the effects of COVID-19, although within the resulting
framework of extraordinary uncertainty, particularly in terms of forecasting, have called for a series of extraordinary changes in methodology
and implementation that have made it possible to incorporate the potential impact of the pandemic into the impairment model. This was done
with specific reference to incorporation in the risk measures for forecasting the main financial and macroeconomic variables contained in the
new economic scenarios prepared by recognized external providers and/or by government and supervisory authorities. The medium-term
scenarios developed after the rise of the health emergency include the marked worsening of the economy in 2020, followed by a recovery
beginning in 2021.

At the same time, the introduction of measures to support customers and the economy, with a particular emphasis on actions taken by the
Group in relation to applicable legislative decrees in ltaly™, to actions agreed upon with the industry associations (i.e. the ABI moratoriums
for businesses and consumers), and to initiatives implemented by individual organizations has led to the introduction of further
methodological changes to the IFRS 9 impairment framework in order to take account of the mitigating effects when calculating expected
credit loss.

More specifically, the adaptations to the impairment model related to COVID-19 that had an impact on the calculation of expected credit loss
for the half-year period ended in June 2020 concerned:

o the use of the most up-to-date macroeconomic scenarios available at the time and of forward-looking forecasts based on data
published by the Bank of Italy.?s In particular, in order to adapt the IFRS 9 methodological framework to the pandemic, given the

13 Bank of Italy, Proiezioni macroeconomiche per I'ltalia, July 2020 Decree Law 18 of March 17, 2020 (the Cure Italy decree); Decree Law 23 of April 8, 2020 (the Liquidity Decree)'s See “Proiezioni
Macroeconomiche per I'economia italiana — Esercizio coordinato dell’Eurosistema”, Bank of Italy, June 5, 2020.'® EBA/GL/2020/02 of April 2, 2020, and EBA/GL/2020/08 of June 25, 2020, “Guidelines
on legislative and non-legislative moratoria on loan repayments applied in the light of the COVID-19 crisis”."” The Regulation sets out a new regulatory frameowrk for the benchmark rates Euribor, Libor
and EONIA, ensuring the compliance of market indices and the methods used to calculate them with intermational standards, seeking to ensure the integrity of the benchmarks used in the euro area
(including benchmark interest rates), reduce the use of discretionality, improve governance controls and address conflicts of interest.

14 Decree Law 18 of March 17, 2020 (the Cure ltaly decree); Decree Law 23 of April 8, 2020 (the Liquidity Decree)'s See “Proiezioni Macroeconomiche per I'economia italiana — Esercizio coordinato
dell’Eurosistema”, Bank of Italy, June 5, 2020.'6 EBA/GL/2020/02 of April 2, 2020, and EBA/GL/2020/08 of June 25, 2020, “Guidelines on legislative and non-legislative moratoria on loan repayments
applied in the light of the COVID-19 crisis”."” The Regulation sets out a new regulatory frameowrk for the benchmark rates Euribor, Libor and EONIA, ensuring the compliance of market indices and the
methods used to calculate them with intermational standards, seeking to ensure the integrity of the benchmarks used in the euro area (including benchmark interest rates), reduce the use of
discretionality, improve governance controls and address conflicts of interest.

15 See “Proiezioni Macroeconomiche per 'economia italiana — Esercizio coordinato dell’Eurosistema”, Bank of Italy, June 5, 2020.'6 EBA/GL/2020/02 of April 2, 2020, and EBA/GL/2020/08 of June 25,
2020, “Guidelines on legislative and non-legislative moratoria on loan repayments applied in the light of the COVID-19 crisis”."” The Regulation sets out a new regulatory frameowrk for the benchmark
rates Euribor, Libor and EONIA, ensuring the compliance of market indices and the methods used to calculate them with intermational standards, seeking to ensure the integrity of the benchmarks used
in the euro area (including benchmark interest rates), reduce the use of discretionality, improve governance controls and address conflicts of interest.
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difficulties in modeling the particular characteristics using ordinary satellite models, we have used implicit coefficients provided by the
external provider based on the scenario forecasts of the Bank of Italy by geographical area and industry segment;

o the inclusion of the impact of implementation of the aforementioned measures to support customers, and the moratoriums and
actions to support business liquidity in particular. Specifically, within the scope of the IFRS 9 impairment framework, and consistent
with the guidelines of the European Banking Authority,'® the moratoriums have been considered solely and specifically for those
exposures impacted by these measures, thereby inhibiting the application of qualitative criteria (loans 30 days past due) and
quantitative criteria (increase in PD) to measure the significant increase in credit risk (SICR) so as to avoid a potential slide into
stage 2. The handling of measures to support liquidity called for the application of coverage levels set to take account of the
mitigating effects on credit risk of the specific guarantees to support operations in this area.

It should be noted that these extraordinary changes to the IFRS 9 impairment framework in response to COVID-19 have been made in
concert with the ordinary maintenance of the risk models planned prior to the pandemic, thereby lending continuity to the updating and fine-
tuning of the risk parameters (PD and LGD) used to calculate ECL under IFRS 9, in line with applicable financial reporting standards. These
updates made it possible to arrive at a version of the models and at measurements of the related parameters that are more stable and more
accurate at measuring the characteristics of risk typical of the loan portfolios of the affiliated banks and of the Group as a whole. The fine-
tuning and updating of the parameters used to calculate ECL prior to COVID would have given declining coverage levels compared with
previous measurements due to the greater adherence of the new calculation of the risk parameters in relation to the actual historical trend in
the Group’s loan portfolio. Therefore, the efforts to increase the efficiency of the framework for calculating ECL partially offset the impact of
increased adjustments due to COVID-19.

The conditioning model used to determine the COVID add-on for non-performing loans

The conditioning model for the NPL portfolio in relation to the COVID-19 scenario has been developed based on an overall what-if
framework and scenario analysis applied to these exposures and developed for all lending, within the scope of which the updates in relation
to IFRS 9 impairment (ECL) for the Group’s performing portfolio have been fully and consistently applied, as previously described.

Definition of the model made it possible to calculate specific coefficients representing the forecasts of lower recovery related to the COVID-
19 scenario by homogeneous exposure types (defined at the level of administrative status of the deteriorated loans, type of borrower, and
any supporting guarantees) and applied to the measurements of impaired exposures conducted according to the criteria set by prevailing
policies.

Application of these coefficients made it possible to factor in additional, prudential reductions in recovery under the new market landscape
within the measurement process, which resulted in the inclusion of an add-on for the 2020 half-year report on top of the one normally
generated under the ordinary measurement process.

In line with the approaches adopted for the updates tot IFRS 9 impairment (ECL) for the Group’s performing loans portfolio, the conditioning
models for the levels of coverage of the impaired portfolio are based on two elements of analysis, the combination of which makes it possible
to calculate the potential impact of COVID-19 on NPL measurements and on the corresponding coverage levels. More specifically, these
elements concerned:

o the conditioning of recovery percentages based on the identified relationship between a set of exogenous forecasting variables in the
new macroeconomic scenarios that are, therefore, able to define future recovery levels that reflect the effects of the COVID-19
emergency, thereby raising coverage levels in light of these scenarios;

o the conditioning of the transition of exposures between the various impaired states (i.e. past due, unlikely to pay, and bad loans) —
the danger rate or NPE matrices — so as to define the probability of “stressed” migrations following inclusion of the effects of the
pandemic.

The output obtained is a calculation of specific coefficients by impaired status, type of borrower, and any supporting guarantees, which
thereby represent lower expected future recovery percentages under the pandemic scenario. These have been applied to the analytical
measurements of impaired exposures carried out according to the criteria envisaged under prevailing policies.

Generally speaking, application of these coefficients has, during this period of discontinuity, made it possible to adopt a more prudent,
structured and forward-looking approach, within the ordinary measurement process, when factoring in the potential effects of the new
scenario on expected recoveries, on the assumption that these effects may not yet be entirely incorporated in the current forecasts due to
unexpected changes in the market conditions related to COVID-19.

16 EBA/GL/2020/02 of April 2, 2020, and EBA/GL/2020/08 of June 25, 2020, “Guidelines on legislative and non-legislative moratoria on loan repayments applied in the light of the COVID-19 crisis”."”
The Regulation sets out a new regulatory frameowrk for the benchmark rates Euribor, Libor and EONIA, ensuring the compliance of market indices and the methods used to calculate them with
intermational standards, seeking to ensure the integrity of the benchmarks used in the euro area (including benchmark interest rates), reduce the use of discretionality, improve governance controls and
address conflicts of interest.
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Relations with Cattolica

Following the renewal, until December 31, 2022, of the bancassurance partnership between Iccrea Banca and Cattolica Assicurazioni
agreed upon in July 2019, the insurance joint ventures (i.e. BCC Vita and BCC Assicurazioni, in each of which Iccrea Banca holds a 30%
interest and Cattolica Assicurazioni holds a 70% interest) posted performance for the second half of 2019 and the first half of 2020 in line
with expectations, while maintaining capital ratios well above regulatory minimums.

Nonetheless, during the first four months of 2020, with the spread of the effects of the health crisis and the heightening of tension and
volatility on the financial markets, we have seen a deterioration in the capital ratios of all insurance-industry players, including BCC Vita. To
this end, on June 22, in execution of the plan to strengthen capital as approved by BCC Vita, the shareholders executed capital
contributions, proportionate to the number of shares held, totaling €50 million (with €15 million being paid in by Iccrea Banca and €35 million
by Cattolica Assicurazioni). In July, there was another €50 million round of strengthening of BCC Vita’s capital position, again proportionate
to the number of shares held, €25 million of which (€7.5 million by Iccrea Banca) by another capital contribution and €25 million (€7.5 million
by Iccrea Banca) by way of a bond with the characteristics needed to be included as tier-2 capital under Solvency Il, which was issued on
August 5.

Guarantee Scheme

During the first half of the year, the Parent Company completed the adjustment of the funds underlying the operation of the Guarantee
Scheme, known as the readily available funds (RAFs). The RAFs are represented by an Ex Ante Quota established at the Parent Company
and an Ex Post Quota that can be called up by the Parent Company in case of need.

In order to quantify the overall amount of readily available resources, the Cohesion Contract provides for the Parent Company to conduct
exercises to quantify those resources in an adverse scenario as well.

For 2020, the calculations showed RAFs of €1,182.6 million, broken down as follows:

e an Ex Ante Quota of €385.4 million (€318.4 million pertaining to the affiliated banks and €67 million to the Parent Company),
compared with the €504.5 million estimated for 2019;

e an Ex Post Quota of €797.2 million (€658.6 million pertaining to the affiliated banks and €138.6 million to the Parent Company),
compared with the €835.1 million estimated for 2019.

Each bank and the Parent Company adjusted its Ex Ante and Ex Post Quota for 2020 up or down as appropriate. More specifically, the
annual updating of the Ex Ante Quota, which was completed in January 2020, was performed for the mutual banks through the adjustment
of the loan for a specific transaction pursuant to Article 2447 bis, letter b) and Article 2447-decies of the Italian Civil Code.

The Parent Company invests the Ex Ante funds in liquid and enforceable assets in compliance with the limits and requirements set out in the
Investment Policy approved by the Board of Directors of Iccrea Banca. The financial resources that make up the Ex Ante Quota of the RFAs
are invested in a sufficiently diversified portfolio of liquid low-risk instruments in order to pursue the objective of capital conservation and
ensure the ready availability of the financial resources needed to implement guarantee interventions. The funds are therefore invested only
in debt instruments that have a yield to maturity at least equal to the interest rate on the deposit facility of the European Central Bank and
are included in the following "investable universe": euro-area government securities, supranational issues, covered bonds, ABSs and
deposits with the Eurosystem and derivative financial instruments used solely for hedging purposes connected with the exercise of the fair
value option.

More specifically, assets included about €3.7 million in cash and cash equivalents, held at both the central bank (€1.5 million) and Euroclear
(€2.1 million), and about €404.3 million in securities (of which about €20.9 million in securities subscribed as part of support operations
undertaken in 2019).

Assets 30/06/2020
10. Cash and cash equivalents 1,535,870
20. Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss 404,306,198

b) financial assets designated as at fair value 404,306,198
40. Financial assets measured at amortized cost 2,133,555

a) due from banks 2,133,555
Total assets 407,975,623

91



ICCREA BANCA S.P.A. - 2020 REPORT AND CONSOLIDATED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

he composition of the investment portfolio respects the principles of the diversification of risk and of liquidity based on the guidelines
established in the policies approved by the Iccrea Banca Board of Directors. The following table shows the breakdown, by issuing country
and/or type of instrument, of the debt securities that make up the portfolio, measured at fair value in line with applicable accounting
standards.

Country/Type of instrument 30/06/2020
Austria 1,156,539
Belgium 10,959,505
Finland 1,393,130
France 45,466,213
Germany 36,571,405
Ireland 7,999,338
Italy 107,544,221
Netherlands 2,330,274
Supranational 35,567,215
Spain 102,867,977
Covered bonds 31,566,278
Subordinated bonds subscribed within the scope of initiatives undertaken in 2019 20,884,103
Total 404,306,198

Liabilities are largely financial liabilities measured at fair value and related to the value of the Ex Ante Quotas attributable to the affiliated
banks (€337 million), adjusted taking account of the results of management of the special-purpose financing at June 30, 2020. Other
liabilities refer to the Ex Ante Quota attributable to the Parent Company (about €70 million), which is also adjusted based on the proportional
allocation of the income generated by the liquidity at June 30, 2020.

Liabilities 30/06/2020
30. Financial liabilities designated as at fair value 337,104,417
80. Other liabilities 70,871,206
Total liabilities 407,975,623

The report for the year shows a loss of about €388 thousand, which contributes to the consolidated result of the Group. Based on the
contracts signed, this loss has been allocated to the participants in the Guarantee Scheme based on their respective shares.

30/06/2020

10. Interest income and similar revenues 1,553,902
20. Interest expense and similar charges (105,859)
30. Net interest income 1,448,043
50. Fee and commission expense (18,400)
60. Net fee and commission expense (18,400)
110.a Net gain/(loss) on other financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (1,817,974)
of which gain loss on debt securities 1,199
of which minus/plus on debt securities (1,819,172)
Overall result of Guarantee Scheme (388,331)
110.a Net gain/(loss) on other financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value allocated to the affiliated banks 326,905
210. Other operating expense/income — of which Ex Ante Quota pertaining to the Parent Company 61,425
300. Profit/loss for the period 0

During the first half of 2020, no capital support operations funded by the affiliated banks were carried out.

Capitalization operations carried out in 2019 (in the nominal amount of €23 million) and allocated on a pro-rated basis to each mutual bank
were measured in accordance with the fair value policy of the Parent Company, with the consequent updating of the value of the shares
allocated.
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THE EVOLUTION OF THE REGULATORY AND OPERATIONAL ENVIRONMENT AND ASSOCIATED PROJECTS

The following section discusses the evolution of the regulatory and operational environment and, where applicable, any associated
organizational and procedural updating undertaken.

Product governance

The Group has developed a single operating model for the management of products and services with the aim of ensuring their uniformity,
while creating synergies that also take account of local conditions. From January 1, 2020, the application of the Product Management model
was also extended to the affiliated banks in relation to the entry into force of transparency regulations in this area. Activities focused, among
other things, on the creation of IT support tools with the aim of guaranteeing both greater coordination of the product management process
and the supervision of the Group’s entire commercial product range (the Product Catalog) in compliance with regulatory obligations
concerning the governance of banking products.

Insurance distribution

With a joint communication of March 17, 2020, the Bank of Italy and IVASS called on banking, financial and insurance intermediaries to
exercise particular caution in offering of non-financial products in combination with a loan. The admonition is directed at ensuring compliance
with the applicable legislation and preserving the integrity of the fiduciary relationship with customers through conduct suitable for promoting
customer awareness of the characteristics, obligations and advantages deriving from the combination of the products on offer. To this end,
intermediaries were invited to instruct their Compliance and Internal Audit functions to perform specific checks of the policies used to offer
products and of the methods for placing combined products, with a view to ascertaining the level of compliance of their practices with the
applicable legislation, the appropriateness of internal processes and rules and the exposure to risks deriving from disputes with customers
and the action of other competent authorities. In light of this communication, BCC Retail S.c.a.r.l. launched a project to provide the affiliated
banks and companies within the direct scope of consolidation that are engaged in the distribution of insurance products with uniform
guidance on the methods to be adopted in offering policies combined with loans.

With a subsequent communication of June 8, 2020, taking account of the continuation of the health emergency at the national level, the
Bank of Italy and IVASS extended the deadline for the examination of the results of the checks by the management and control bodies,
initially set at September 30, 2020, to December 31, 2020. In the event of significant deficiencies, companies are required to submit to those
authorities a report on the analysis conducted, the remedial plan and the minutes of the company bodies.

With regard to the COVID emergency, IVASS has adopted specific measures to support the activities of insurance companies and
intermediaries and to protect the consumer.

In particular, in March 2020, taking account of the effective operational difficulties faced by companies, the insurance regulator suspended
the obligation to perform the certification tests associated with professional training courses exclusively in the classroom, allowing them to be
carried out remotely, and extended the deadline for all entities required to manage complaints to respond to customer complaints within 75
days, instead of the ordinary 45 days provided for in applicable regulations.

Furthermore, on April 3, 2020, taking account of the limits and restrictions imposed by the COVID emergency and the impact of the
measures adopted by the Government to contain the outbreak on the performance of production and commercial activities and on the
mobility of people around the country, IVASS alerted sector companies to the need to "take steps, in relation to the commitments undertaken
and compatibly with the emergency situation, to organize themselves as effectively as possible to ensure the continuity of services and the
greatest protection of users. From the perspective of business continuity, among other things, extensive use of electronic mail and other
remote communication systems for sending notices to customers would be desirable, reserving the use of the postal service - whose
operations have been significantly reduced as a consequence of the health emergency - to cases where this is strictly essential’.

In a subsequent notice of June 30, 2020, IVASS ordered the restoration of the ordinary deadlines envisaged for the management of
complaints starting from July 1, 2020 and also specified that, as the critical conditions affecting the use of the postal service by virtue of
which the use of e-mail and other electronic means of communication had been recommended no longer obtain, sector companies are in
any case invited to ensure the quality of services, allowing users to choose between the communication methods that they consider most
suited to their interests.

Finally, Article 33 of the Decree Law 34 of May 19, 2020 (the "Revival Decree”), ratified with amendments by Law 77 of July 17, 2020,
allows, for the duration of the state of emergency, the subscription in simplified form of insurance contracts concluded remotely.
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PSD2 - Payment Services Directive

Within the scope of the activity under way since 2018 to achieve organizational and procedural compliance with PSD2, a variety of planning
was done, first and foremost, to complete the various steps envisaged by the new legislation.

In this area, the following activities have continued as planned:
o the reporting of the risk analysis, the deadline for which has been extended by the competent authority to September 2020;
o the upgrading of the e-commerce sector for online purchases with cards, on both the issuing and acquiring ends;

o work to complete the new exemption procedure (the "fall-back solution") for banks migrating after September 14, 2019, in line with
the operating procedures defined with the Bank of Italy (the deadline for the submission of exemption applications for banks
migrating before May 31, 2020 is July 31, 2020).

The innovations introduced by PSD2 have already led to significant changes in the European banking market and in the electronic payments
market, opening up new business opportunities. The goal of the planning now being done is therefore, to not just ensure that the Group as a
whole complies with the regulatory obligations, but also to lay the groundwork for a new strategic evolution of the Group, identifying business
opportunities in terms of offering innovative open-banking products and improving processes, starting with the marketing and commercial
areas and working towards credit processes, while leveraging the information available.

SEPA Instant Payments

Within the context of the radical evolution underway in the area of payment services, the European Payments Council (EPC) established
guidelines for the first pan-European instant payments scheme (SCT Inst). Under the umbrella of SEPA Instant Credit Transfers, Instant
Payment is a service that is key for the Group banks’ digital offerings, enabling them to provide private customers and firms the opportunity
to make and receive real-time transfers with counterparties located throughout the SEPA area whose service is active, through both digital
and physical channels (operating 24/7, receipt within 10 seconds). Instant payments will represent a leap forward in the quality of payment
systems and will help businesses and institutions rationalize digital-migration processes. Pilot operations at Banca Sviluppo and Iccrea
Banca began on March 3, 2020 (with the receipt of credit transfers on current accounts and transmission features reserved for a limited
number of users).

Since May 2020, in accordance with the participation timeline published by the EPC (European Payments Council), the service is being
extended to all mutual banks operating with the BCC Sl information system (to date, 36 have already begun).

Benchmarks Regulation (BMR)

On the basis of the new regulatory framework delineated with Regulation (EU) no. 2016/1011 of the European Parliament and of the Council
of June 8, 2016 (the “Benchmarks Regulation”, or BMR),"7 the European Money Market Institute - EMMI — the administrator of the Euribor
and EONIA indices, concluded that none of the benchmarks it administers was compliant with the new rules governing benchmark rates.
Consequently, it was decided to:

e move ahead with the progressive replacement of the EONIA rate with another overnight benchmark published by the ECB (€STR);

o modify the methodology used to calculate Euribor rates by adopting a hybrid approach that combines transaction data with expert
judgement.

On July 2, 2019, the Financial Services and Markets Authority (FSMA), the authority responsible for supervising EMMI, announced that it
had completed its assessment of the adjustments made to governance and methodology underlying the calculation of Euribor, finding them
compliant with the provisions of the BMR and therefore authorized EMMI to continue its administration of the index in full compliance with the
aforementioned regulatory provisions, thereby certifying conformity.

As part of this regulatory and market framework, in July 2019 the ECB sent a communication to banks to obtain information on the actions
taken and under way to tackle the global interest rate reform, to which Iccrea Banca replied for the Iccrea Cooperative Banking Group with a
quantitative assessment, expressed in terms of the exposure to the various IBORs (EONIA, Euribor and Libor), and a qualitative assessment
of the impacts on specific issues.

Following this preliminary analysis, the Parent Company launched a detailed assessment phase in January 2020 that is now being
completed. It is intended to:

o identify the scope of intervention necessary to adapt to the new regulations, with particular reference to the IBOR rates (i.e. EONIA,
Euribor and Libor) in the Product & Strategy, Legal & Documentation, Risk & Analytics and Finance & Accounting areas;

17 The Regulation sets out a new regulatory frameowrk for the benchmark rates Euribor, Libor and EONIA, ensuring the compliance of market indices and the methods used to calculate them with
intermational standards, seeking to ensure the integrity of the benchmarks used in the euro area (including benchmark interest rates), reduce the use of discretionality, improve governance controls and
address conflicts of interest.
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o define a masterplan of measures needed to manage the transition, to be implemented by December 2020.

In the Finance area, the expected impact of the benchmark rate reform on the Bank mainly concerns transactions in OTC derivatives in
euros subject to netting, which are carried out for hedge accounting purposes and can be summarized as follows:

o the definition and modification of valuation models for derivatives and hedged items;
o any additional ineffectiveness resulting from those changes;

o any hedging relationships to be discontinued due to test failure;

o modification of the measurement procedures.

OTC derivative transactions are managed centrally by the Parent Company at the service of the affiliated banks. As a consequence, the
planning activities for this issue are performed directly by the Parent Company and primarily focused on the measures necessary to adapt
the front to back process for OTC derivatives operations, with particular reference to the adjustment of the valuation framework, the
management of collateral, the modification of agreements with counterparties, the management of hedging operations and netting
accounting.

In this context, the following main interventions are under way:
o review of the valuation framework, building a new discounting curve based on the €STR rate in place of EONIA;
o any recalibration of existing hedges;

o collateral management which, in addition to implementing the mark-to-market defined on the basis of the new valuation framework,
must be remunerated at the new €STR rate;

e revision of contracts with counterparties.

Exposures and conflicts of interest with connected parties

With the 33rd update of Bank of Italy Circular no. 285/2013 "Supervisory Regulations for Banks", issued on June 23, 2020, Chapter 11
"Exposures and conflicts of interest with connected parties” was introduced in Part Ill, containing rules governing exposures and conflicts of
interest of banks and banking groups with connected parties, previously included in Circular no. 263/2006, updated to comply with the new
regulatory framework (amendments to the Consolidated Banking Act and CRR) and to exclude, under certain conditions, equity investments
in insurance companies from the application of prudential limits.

The Parent Company has begun work to support the Group's compliance with the new provisions.

Credit

On January 14, 2020, the Bank of Italy issued its supervisory guidance on early repayment of credit by consumers, with the aim of facilitating
the prompt alignment of domestic regulations with the interpretation of Article 16, paragraph 1, of Directive 2008/48/EC issued by the Court
of Justice of the European Union in the context of its ruling of 11/09/2019 in the "Lexitor” case.

The Parent Company immediately formed an interdepartmental working group that, working in cooperation with the technical units
responsible for the IT system, defined and released the operational indications and the new contractual clauses to ensure compliance with
the interpretative framework outlined in ruling mentioned above.

On March 1, 2020, Law 8 of February 28, 2020 containing urgent provisions regarding the extension of statutory deadlines, the organization
of government entities and technological innovation entered force.

The following measures that were issued in response to the COVID emergency address issues related to credit, as discussed earlier:

e Decree Law 18 of March 3, 2020, which strengthens the intervention of the Guarantee Fund for SMEs and the Solidarity Fund for
mortgages for the purchase of a primary residence, financial support measures for businesses and incentives for the assignment of
impaired loans;

o Decree Law 23 of April 8, 2020 containing urgent measures regarding access to credit;

o Law 27 of April 24, 2020, which governs the Guarantee Fund for SMEs and the Solidarity Fund for mortgages for the purchase of a
primary residence, as well as the methods for real estate foreclosures together with measures in support of the agricultural and
fishing industries in response to the health emergency;

o Decree Law 34 of May 19, 2020, containing provisions concerning the GACS guarantee scheme, the SACE guarantee for insurance
on trade receivables, aid in the form of guarantees and subsidized interest rates on loans to businesses, renegotiation of loans of
local authorities, the transfer of tax credits to banks and financial intermediaries and discounts on prices charged, the possibility for
agricultural enterprises to renegotiate loans and the possibility of granting loans to land reclamation consortia;
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e Law 40 of June 5, 2020 containing provisions concerning temporary measures to support the liquidity of companies through a
guarantee granted by SACE S.p.A. as well as provisions relating to the Guarantee Fund for mortgages for the purchase of a primary
residence and the SME Guarantee Fund;

o “Nuova Sabatini”, a public subsidy which provides for the suspension of loan installments by businesses.

In particular, Article 4 of Decree Law 23 of April 4, 2020, ratified with amendments by Law 40 of June 5, 2020, as well as Articles 33 and 34
of Decree Law 34 of May 19, 2020, ratified with amendments by Law 77 of July 17, 2020, allow, for the duration of the state of emergency,
the subscription in simplified form of banking, financial and insurance contracts concluded remotely.

Decree Law 51 of April 22, 2020 governing the obligations relating to the granting of advances on severance pay entered force on June 30,
2020.

In the broader context of the initiatives taken to manage the COVID emergency (see the specific discussion of these issues), in order to
ensure unambiguous interpretation and guidance for all Group companies on the issues connected with the emergency, an
interdepartmental "COVID-19 Emergency" task force has been established. It is responsible, among other things, for rapidly developing
providing the affiliated banks and the companies within the direct scope with interpretations and operational recommendations to manage
the support measures defined by the national government.

New definition of default

The Parent Company is coordinating project work for the implementation by the Group Companies of the new definition of default. The
initiative was launched at the beginning of 2020 in order to assess and define the qualitative and quantitative impacts of the change, as well
as to identify and implement the changes in applications and organization necessary to ensure their consistent, harmonized, comprehensive
and effective adoption within the Group as a whole and within each of the entities that make up the Group. In parallel with the
implementation of the changes in risk assessment models, work is also under way on implementation of the management solutions to
comply with the requirements set out in the new rules in the context of strategies, processes and operational guidelines used to mitigate the
overall risk profile of the Group.

EBA Guidelines on Loan Origination and Monitoring (LOM)

On May 29, 2020, the EBA published guidelines on loan origination and monitoring with a view to ensuring that standards for the credit risk
taking, management and monitoring are robust and prudent and that newly originated loans are of high credit quality. The guidelines also
aim to ensure the alignment of credit practices with consumer protection rules and anti-money-laundering requirements. The new guidelines
will be applied progressively starting on June 30, 2021. More specifically, from that date, the guidelines will be fully applicable for newly
originated relationships (loans and similar). For loans disbursed before June 30, 2021 and loans subject to renegotiation or contractual
amendments, the compliance deadline is set at June 30, 2022. The end of the grace period for information and missing data on loans
granted before June 30, 2021 is set for June 30, 2024. The same date is the deadline for implementation of the requirements for monitoring
the stock of existing loans.

An assessment of the current structure of the lending process in the Group is under way Based on the new guidelines in order to assess the
adequacy of the process.

The results of this assessment will form the basis for the activation of a remediation plan for areas that do not fully comply with the new
requirements.

Calendar provisioning

Work is under way on the design and implementation of the strategies of the processes and credit solutions aimed at facilitating the
management of credit exposures in light of the guidelines introduced by the regulations on prudential provisioning and the mitigation of the
Group's overall risk profile.

Corporate law
With reference to issues concerning shares and equity investments, the following measures were issued in the first half of 2020:

e Consob Resolution no. 21304 on the reduction of the initial notification threshold pursuant to Article 120, paragraph 2-bis, of the
Consolidated Law on Financial Intermediation (the “Consolidated Law”) for equity investments in listed companies with a high current
market value and a particularly extensive shareholding structure;
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o Decree Law 23 of April 8, 2020 containing provisions regarding the loss of share capital and shareholder loans granted in response
to the health emergency, the obligation to notify specific resolutions, instruments or transactions and the associated veto power
exercisable by the Government (“golden powers").

As regards corporate governance, the measures involved included:

o Decree Law 18 of March 17, 2020 containing provisions regarding the conduct of company meetings issued in response to the
health emergency;

e Decree Law 23 of April 8, 2020 regarding the loss of share capital and shareholder loans grated in response to the health
emergency;

o Law 40 of June 5, 2020 regarding the conduct of the shareholders’ meetings of cooperative corporations issued in response to the
health emergency. In this regard, the Parent Company issued guidelines for the affiliated banks concerning the new procedures for
holding shareholders’ meetings associated with the COVID health emergency;

o Legislative Decree 84 of July 14, 2020, in implementation of Article 7 of Law 117 of October 4, 2019 regarding the encouragement of
long-term shareholder commitment and the rules of the corporate governance system;

o Consob Resolutions no. 21320 and no. 21359 regarding amendments to the regulation implementing Legislative Decree 58 of
February 24, 1998 concerning the regulation of issuers in the matter of corporate transparency.

Sustainable finance

In the area of sustainable finance, on July 12, 2020, Regulation (EU) 852/2020 of the European Parliament and of the Council of June 18,
2020 on the establishment of a framework to facilitate sustainable investment and amending Regulation (EU) 2019/2088 was approved. The
regulation concerns pre-contractual disclosures and disclosures in periodic reports concerning sustainable investments, financial products
that promote environmental characteristics and other financial products and transparency regarding eco-sustainability matters in non-
financial reporting. The regulation will take effect from January 1, 2022.

Privacy

As part of the response to the COVID emergency, the Decree of the President of the Council of Ministers of April 26, 2020 was issued
containing guidelines on the processing of personal data in cases of body temperature detection.

The decree contained amendments to the shared protocol for regulating measures to combat and contain the spread of the COVID-19 virus
in the workplace", signed on March 14, 2020, which allowed the detection of body temperature, bearing in mind that this activity constituted
the processing of personal data pursuant to the GDPR. Guidelines and clarifications regarding the detection of the body temperature of
customers, suppliers, workers and visitors were issued on May 24, 2020 by the Iccrea Cooperative Banking Group in a specific operational
circular, transmitted by the Legal and Corporate Affairs unit and Data Protection Officer (DPO) unit to the affiliated mutual banks and the
companies within the direct scope of consolidation.

During the first half of 2020, the following consultations initiated by the European Data Protection Board ("EDPB") on the processing of
personal data in the context of connected vehicles and the processing of personal data through video devices were also completed:

e “Guidelines 1/2020 on processing personal data in the context of connected vehicles and mobility related applications”;
o “Guidelines 3/2019 on processing of personal data through video devices”, adopted on January 29, 2020.

The EDPB guidelines on consent pursuant to Regulation (EU) 679/2016 (the "GDPR") are currently being drafted. The Guidelines 05/2020
on consent pursuant to Regulation 2016/679", adopted on May 4, 2020, represent a slightly updated version of the guidelines previously
adopted by the "Article 29" Working Group on November 28, 2017 and amended on April 10, 2018. In particular, the innovations
(clarifications) concern:

o the validity of the consent given by users in their interaction with so-called "cookie walls";
o the possibility (denied) of associating the act of scrolling through the pages of a website with the consent of users.

On May 12, the Privacy Authority provided a number of clarifications regarding the subjective qualification of the Supervisory Body (SB)
provided for pursuant to Article 6 of Legislative Decree 231 of June 8, 2001. The authority ruled out the possibility that the SB can be
construed as an independent controller or a processor pursuant to Article 28 of the GDPR within the scope of the exercise of its functions
regarding the processing of personal data, specifying that the individual members of the SB must be designated by the controller - as part of
the technical and organizational measures to be taken in line with the principle of accountability (Article 24 of the Regulation) - as authorized
persons (Articles 4, 10, 29, and 32, paragraph 4 of the Regulation).

All the changes were promptly notified to the Territorial DPOs of the affiliated mutual banks and to the internal DPOs of the companies within
the direct scope.
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Bank of Italy regulation implementing the Mifid Il/Mifir package

On January 4, 2020 the regulation implementing Articles 4-undecies and 6, paragraph 1, letters b) and c-bis) of the Consolidated Law,
published in the Official Journal General Series no. 298 of December 20, 2019 entered force. This measure implements, at national level,
the obligations introduced with Directive 2014/65/EU ("MIFID [I"), Regulation (EU) no. 600/2014 ("MiFIR") and the respective delegated
instruments with regard to the areas of corporate governance, control functions, outsourcing, business continuity, deposit and sub-deposit,
and remuneration policies.

In particular, Part Il of the measure, taking up the provisions of the Consolidated Law governs activities relating to the deposit and sub-
deposit of customer assets and replaces, with some additions, the provisions on "deposit and sub-deposit of financial instruments and cash
belonging to clients", previously governed by the joint Consob-Bank of Italy Regulation of October 29, 2007 and by Title V of the Bank of
Italy Regulation of August 4, 2000.

The provisions apply to intermediaries that provide investment services and activities when:
o they receive customer assets (liquidity and financial instruments) on deposit;
o deposit (liquidity) or sub-deposit (financial instruments) the assets with third parties;
o are authorized to hold deposit accounts in the name of customers.

Specifically, Part Ill of the measure introduces the following main obligations:

o the preparation of adequate accounting, organizational, operational, contractual and IT safeguards to ensure the protection of
customers who deposit assets;

o the designation of a sole manager, with adequate skills, for the protection of the financial instruments and liquid assets of customers;
o the separation of the intermediary's accounts and those in which customer assets are deposited or sub-deposited;

o the authorization by customers for the sub-deposit of financial instruments with central depositories or authorized depositories and
for their possible use;

o alimitation of 20% on the deposit of liquid assets of customers with banks of the same group to which the intermediary belongs or
for the investment in units of money market funds managed by asset management companies also belonging to the same group as
the intermediary; this provision does not apply to banks. Verification of compliance with the limit and prompt notification of any
overshoots to the Bank of Italy;

o the adequate selection and monitoring of the depositories and sub-depositories with which the intermediary decides to hold
customers’ financial instruments;

o the preparation of an annual report on the measures adopted in accordance with the regulation, to be transmitted, subject to the
approval of the Board of Directors, through the entity responsible for the statutory audit to the Bank of Italy by June 30, and in any
case within 6 months of the end of the financial year. For 2020, due to the health emergency, the deadline for submitting the report
for the 2019 financial year has been extended to October 28, 2020.

In this regard, the Parent Company has begun a project to ensure compliance for all Group companies involved in the operations subject to
the provisions of the regulation.

Corporate criminal liability

At the end of July 2020, Legislative Decree 75 of July 14, 2020 implementing Directive 1371/2017/EU entered force. It makes changes to the
offenses considered within the scope of corporate criminal liability, in particular concerning the undue receipt of payments to the detriment of
the State, undue inducement to give or promise benefits and fraud.

The offenses referred to in Article 25-septies of Legislative Decree 231/01 have been supplemented with provisions adopted in the context of
the COVID emergency, i.e. Decree Law 18 of March 17, 2020, Decree of the President of the Council of Ministers of May 17, 2020 and the
Decree Law 34 of May 19, 2020.

Supervisory reporting

On March 31, 2020, the Commission Implementing Regulation (EU) 429/2020 of February 2, 2020 came into force, amending Regulation
680/2014 laying down implementing technical standards with regard to supervisory reporting of institutions in accordance with Regulation
no. 575/2013.

As from May 27, 2020, Regulation (EU) 605/2020 of the European Central Bank of April 9, 2020, amending Regulation (EU) 2015/534 on
reporting of supervisory financial information will take effect.
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On June 7, 2020, Law 40 of June 5, 2020 containing provisions on the temporary suspension of non-performing loan reports to the Central
Credit Register and credit information systems entered into force.

In the first half of 2020, guidelines on harmonized definitions and models for the funding plans of credit institutions were published in
accordance with the recommendation of the European Systemic Risk Board of December 20, 2012 (ESRB/2012/2), as were the EBA
guidelines on reporting and disclosure regarding exposures subject to the measures applied in response to the COVID crisis.

Finally, the following consultations were launched in the first half of the year:

o EBA: indicators of global systemic importance, RTS on supervisory reporting of thresholds for authorization as a credit institution,
ITS on supervisory reporting and public disclosure of IFs, ITS on specific reporting requirements for market risk;

e Bank of Italy: instructions for the observation of average global effective interest rates, 21st update of Circular no. 189/1993, 23rd
update of Circular no. 148/1991, 19th update of Circular no. 217/1996, 26th update of Circular no. 115/1990, 13th update of Circular
no. 272/2008,

e ECB: Regulation amending Regulation 1071/2013 concerning the balance sheet of the MFI sector.

The Parent Company participated in the public consultation launched by the Bank of Italy on May 20, 2020 on the proposal to amend the
"Instructions for the observation average global effective interest rates pursuant to the Usury Act’, formulating comments and proposals for
changes to the text of the regulations through the ABI. The consultation ended on July 20, 2020; publication of the definitive text of the
measure is pending.

Short selling

With Resolution no. 21303, of March 17, 2020, Consob introduced a ban on taking or increasing net short positions (short selling and other
bearish speculative transactions, including those carried out using derivatives or other financial instruments), wherever carried out and
including intraday positions, in the shares indicated in attachment 1 of the resolution. This prohibition was in force until May 17, 2020 and
was applied to transactions carried out by an intermediary on own account and to transactions carried out by customers.

In this regard, the Parent Company has provided the necessary operational guidelines to the Group companies, also in order to support the
companies involved in such transactions in meeting customer disclosure requirements.

Transparency
The decrees issued by the Government in response to the COVID emergency include provisions:

o on the signing and notification of financial and insurance contracts in a simplified manner in response to the health emergency
(Decree Law 34 of May 19, 2020);

o on simplified notifications for the signing of contracts in response to the health emergency (Decree Law 23 of April 8, 2020).

The Parent Company, together with the proprietary technical unit responsible for the IT system, has defined the activities necessary to
ensure the compliance of the Iccrea Cooperative Banking Group with these regulations.

ICT

During the first half of 2020, in addition to the application upgrading referred to earlier and the continuation of the projects already in
progress, the ICT area was significantly involved in the project for the evolution of the information system of BCC Sistemi Informatici
(SicraWeb) and the plan for the migration of affiliated mutual banks using other technical services providers to the information system of
BCC-SI.

The main project activities carried out during the period include those associated with the broader initiative in customer relationship
management (CRM) for the creation of new CRM tools (with particular regard to the Data and Reporting, Relational Front-End and
Campaign projects). The roll-out of the new CRM tools to a limited cluster of banks is being planned for the second half of 2020. Starting
from January 2021, taking advantage of the lessons learned with the 2020 release plan it will be possible to consider a large-scale migration
of the Group’s remaining mutual banks to the new application solutions.

Among digital transformation projects, major technological innovation and functional evolution initiatives have been largely completed
(PSD2, online placement services, instant payments, customer care). At the same time, a list of 2020-2021 projects to be included in the
medium-long term Digital Transformation Strategy has been proposed and agreed with the relevant units of BCC SI, the Parent Company
and the pilot mutual banks (functional enhancement from a mobile-first perspective; remote/off-site product offering; phygital evolution;
channel-CRM integration upgrading; “open credit” for individuals).
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Initiatives also involved:
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the technological evolution of the current information system architecture with a project structured into 7 macro-areas of intervention:
(Basic Framework, SICRA2 GK, Sales Network, SICRA2 JEVO, Foreign, Treasury and WEB Applications);

evolution in the data governance and data platform areas (Data Masking, Data Hub);
revision and unification in ICT Security of the models and tools for patching and hardening of systems;

securing the BCC Sistemi Informatici network in accordance with Group guidelines and strengthening security levels on the most
important and/or exposed systems;

with more general regard to security profiles, the issues addressed included (i) the definition of a process for software development,
with particular attention to the development aspects of secure software (security by design); (ii) the completion of data network
segmentation activities, implementation of tools for the management and monitoring of system vulnerability assessment activities;
(iii) the protection of all internet services through the “Web Application Firewall - WAF” technical infrastructures and protection
systems from DDOS attacks; (iv) the strengthening of system administrator access procedures; (v) raising awareness on security
issues through training programs that can also be accessed through the intranet.

initiatives - already released on schedule between May and July this year -- in the credit area, with the implementation of solutions
identified in response to priority issues highlighted in dialogue with the supervisory authorities as well. Additional measures in
progress (and in part completed) regard the strengthening of the systems for managing real estate guarantees (the Perizie 2.0
application); the review of the default propagation management process; the introduction of credit monitoring indicators; the
refinement of an early warning application (the "predictive alert system"); the creation of the ICBG customer file; and the transfer of
the Group's information assets by the ICBG legal entities to the Data Hub and the Credit Database.
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8. GROUP HUMAN RESOURCES

The workforce of the Iccrea Cooperative Banking Group totaled 22,196 employees at June 30, 2020 (21,736 FTE), distributed as follows:

Category Number of employees FTE

June 30, 2020 June 30, 2020
Mutual bank employees 18,729 18,306
Direct scope companies 3,021 2,998
Other companies 446 432
Total 22,196 21,736

The trends in new hires and terminations for the Iccrea Cooperative Banking Group in 2020 showed a net decrease of 23 (312 new hires
compared with 335 terminations). In addition, 138 intra-group transfers of staff were recorded. The following table provides a comparison of
figures at the end of 2019 and at June 30, 2020, distributed by position:

31/112/2019 30/06/2020
Position
et FE_ el e
Senior management 410 410 406 406
Middle management 6,228 6,203 6,291 6,265
Professional areas 15,581 15,148 15,499 15,065
Total 22,219 21,761 22,196 21,736

The network rationalization process continued with four mergers, which took legal effect in January 2020. The operations involved the
following Group mutual banks:

e BCC San Giuseppe di Petralia Sottana and BCC Valledolmo into BCC San Giuseppe delle Madonie;
e BCC Umbria and Banca CRAS into Banca Centro;
e BCC di Riano and Banca di Formello e Trevignano Romano CC into BCC Della Provincia Romana;
e BCC Pordenonese and Banca di Monastier e del Sile CC into BCC Pordenonese e Monsile.

The process involved 930 employees.

During 2020, a voluntary retirement incentive plan was launched, aimed at enhancing the financial sustainability of the ICBG and taking
advantage of the opportunities offered by the recent experimental regulations on pensions (so-called "Quota 100" early retirement option, the
"female option” and the freeze on the life expectancy adjustment for eligibility for the “Fornero” early retirement option). Participation is open
to all those who meet the eligibility requirements by March 31, 2022.

In the first half of the year, the companies in the direct scope had 22 employees leave through participation in the plan.

The procedure for the sale of the branches of Banca Sviluppo had already begun in 2019, governing the impact on the employment
relationship of employees of the branches involved in the sale. In the first half of 2020, the sale of the Banca Sviluppo branches led to the
exit of 99 employees, of whom 94 were transferred to other Group companies (4 to BCC Di Capaccio Paestum e Serino; 70 to Banca
Credito Cooperativo Ravennate Forlivese e Imolese ; 17 to Credito Cooperativo Romagnolo; in addition, 3 employees were transferred to
companies in the direct scope: 2 to Iccrea Banca; and 1 to BCC Creditoconsumo Spa).

The expansion of the Parent Company's workforce continued in 2020, in line with the organizational model developed to achieve the
objectives of the reform.

The Parent Company's workforce increased by a net 62 in the first six months of 2020 (106 hires and 44 terminations), mainly attributable to
additional implementations linked to the organizational needs associated with the new model defined following the establishment of the
ICBG and, as reported above, the progressive implementation of the early retirement incentive plan.

In 2020, the transfer to the Parent Company of the employees of the centralized control functions was carried out with the aim of enhancing
the efficiency of controls in the Parent Company in line with the guidance provided by the European and national supervisory authorities,
with the adoption of a centralized model in order to make the analysis, control and reporting processes as uniform as possible, and to
strengthen synergies within the functions. This operation, which had already been adopted for the affiliated mutual banks, also involved 16
employees at the companies of the direct scope in 2020.

During the first half of 2020, the procedure for the transfer of the IT operations of Iccrea Banca and Iccrea Bancalmpresa to BCC Sl was
launched, involving the transfer of employment for 193 staff, of whom 171 from Iccrea Banca and 22 from Iccrea Bancalmpresa.
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Remuneration and incentive policies

In accordance with provisions concerning remuneration and incentive policies and practices within banks and banking groups issued by the
Bank of Italy in Circular no. 285/2013, the Parent Company has adopted Group policies regarding the remuneration and incentive systems —
in line with the characteristics of the Group and of all its component parts, taking due account of the vocation of cooperation with local
communities of the Group and of the affiliated banks — in order to achieve a unified, proportional application of related legislation and to
ensure observance of the minimum applicable requirements.

The document was approved by the shareholders of the Parent Company — based on a proposal by the Board of Directors — meeting in
ordinary session on July 16, 2020 and is available on the Bank’s website.

The Group's asset management company, BCC Risparmio&Previdenza, has prepared its own remuneration and incentive policies, in
compliance with the specific sector regulations and with the Group's Remuneration and Incentive Policy.

As for the goal of ensuring standardization in the application of the principles underlying the ICBG'’s remuneration and incentives policies, a
standard was drafted to assist the affiliated banks in adoption of their own remuneration policies and incentive systems consistent with
Group policies, applicable regulations and the principle of proportionality.

Labor relations

On the labor relations front, the first half of 2019 saw the continuation of constructive dialog with trade unions, collaborating to find solutions
that are to the benefit of employees in terms of their employment, careers and remuneration, while providing constant, constructive support
throughout the reorganization of the Group’s operational and corporate functions.

In response to the significant organizational changes that affected the Parent Company, the first half of the year was characterized by
intense dialog concerning the information notified pursuant to Article 12 of the company-level supplementary bargaining agreement, as well
as the management of the conciliation procedures for incentivized terminations (the “Quota 100” program).

Also characterizing the first half of 2020, however, was the spread of the COVID-19 pandemic, which from the end of February onwards
involved the company and trade unions at all levels in an ongoing discussion to guarantee both the necessary operational continuity and the
health and safety of workers.

In this context, important agreements were signed, including: the Federcasse protocols of March 24 and May 7, which govern the
implementation of safety measures for the prevention of COVID-19 contagion and the framework agreement of June 9 governing worker
absences during the emergency period.

Numerous meetings were held by the Company and National Safety Committees aimed at preventing the spread of the disease, agreeing
company guidelines on managing the emergency and subsequent amendments, in accordance with legislative developments.

Despite the difficulties deriving from the lockdown, in March procedures were begun for the sale by Banca Sviluppo of the separate business
units consisting of: 2 branches in Campania, which were acquired by BCC Capaccio, Paestum e Serino and 21 branches in Emilia, acquired
by Credito Romagnolo, Riviera Banca and Credito Cooperativo Ravennate Forlivese e Imolese. At the same time, the 23 surplus employees
who were working at the Forlimpopoli office were relocated, in part to the aforementioned banks and in part to companies within the direct
scope.

Furthermore, on April 30 procedures were begun for the transfer of the IT operations of Iccrea Banca and Iccrea Bancalmpresa to BCC
Sistemi Informatici, involving the transfer of employment for 193 staff, of whom 171 from Iccrea Banca and 22 from Iccrea Bancalmpresa.

Discussions between the parties continued until July 2, 2020, the day on which a preliminary agreement was reached, signed by all the trade
unions represented in the Group, which sets out the impact in terms of remuneration and work rules for the employees involved in the
transfer.

Finally, the end of the lockdown made it possible to finalize additional procedures, such as the agreement on Foncoop for funded training,
which will give companies within the direct scope to access the related financing.

At the Group banks, union procedures concerning the reorganization associated with revision of the distribution model also continued (BCC
Alpi Marittime and BCC Recanati).
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9. MAIN RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES TO WHICH THE ICCREA COOPERATIVE BANKING GROUP IS EXPOSED
RISKS

The Iccrea Banking Group conducts its business in accordance with the principles of prudence and risk containment, based on the need for
stability associated with banking activity and consistent with the principles of mutual banking that it inform it and with the ultimate purpose of
its formation, namely to preserve and strengthen the historical mission of the affiliated banks (mutuality and support to local communities).

The Parent Company, Iccrea Banca, directs the Group towards business models consistent with the needs of the affiliated banks and the
distinctive features of their operations (localism, close relations with customers and local institutions). It pursues the Group’s development
objectives by ensuring, through balanced risk management, reliable and sustainable generation of value over time, adopting organizational
measures and Group structures suitable for limiting risks and seeks to ensure the solvency and liquidity of the Group and the financial
sustainability of the Guarantee Scheme in which the affiliated banks and the Parent Company are mutually committed.

The Parent Company’s management, coordination and control activities are therefore aimed at:
e pursuing sound and prudent management, defining clear long-term strategies;
o favoring the preservation of capital, income generating capacity and liquidity;
o effectively managing risks and conflicts of interest;

e ensuring compliance with applicable legislation on the protection of savers, customers, the integrity of the Group and, more
generally, the financial system;

e supporting the implementation of the mutual aims of the affiliated banks and fostering the growth of their overall competitiveness,
with particular regard to the responsible development of the territories in which they operate;

o reconciling the overall cost effectiveness of the Group, as a unitary business structure, with the interests and autonomy of the
companies within the scope of its management and coordination powers.

These activities are pursued through the Group's Risk Appetite Framework (hereinafter "RAF"), i.e. the framework with which the Parent
Company defines - in line with the maximum risk that can be assumed (Risk Capacity), the business model and the Group strategy, the
operational plan and the company incentive system - the risk objectives or risk appetite (Risk Appetite) and the tolerance thresholds (Risk
Tolerance), taking due account of possible adverse scenarios. Starting from the RAF, consistent operating limits are specified and
incorporated within overall risk governance policies. The latter in turn represent the internal rules governing risk assumption and
management and are an integral part of the risk management process.

The RAF is intended to explicate the medium/long-term vision of the desired risk profile for the Group as a whole and for each Group
company, defining the risk area within which the management functions must operate in the pursuit of corporate strategies. Within the RAF,
the capital and liquidity adequacy assessment process (ICAAP and ILAAP) represents verification of the consistency of the Risk Appetite
choices with the available capital and liquidity resources, guiding any subsequent modification of those choices and the resulting overall
strategy decisions.

The Group develops and implements its risk management process in accordance with the applicable regulations and continually adapts its
arrangements based on changes in the regulatory framework and in the market environment and internal operations.

The internal control system monitors risk management process to ensuring the comprehensiveness, suitability, functionality (by being
effective and efficient) and reliability of the Risk Policies, the framework for the organizational and process development and the systematic
execution of all operational and business activities pursued by the Group companies. This is to ensure sound and prudent management and
support the sustainable implementation of the overall risk strategy. The structure of the internal control system, which is discussed in greater
detail in a specific section, was designed in accordance with the organizational arrangements of the Group, taking account of the specific
operations and associated risk profiles of each of the companies belonging to it.

In consideration of the business model and the economic and market environment in which the Iccrea Cooperative Banking Group operates,
the risks identified as significant and subject to assessment through the internal assessment process are the following:

o credit risk: the risk of loss arising from the counterparty’s failure to perform its contractual obligations due to inability to repay interest
and/or principal (default risk). This category includes the risk arising from losses associated with the reduction in the market value of
assets due to deterioration in the counterparty’s credit rating (migration risk). One type of this risk is counterparty risk, i.e. the risk
that the counterparty to a transaction could default before final settlement of the transaction cash flows;

o market risk: risk of incurring losses arising from unexpected adverse movements in market prices of financial instruments, currencies
and goods. The following sub-categories are the most significant;
- risk on the trading book position, i.e. the risk arising from fluctuations in the price of securities;
- credit spread risk, namely the risk arising from changes in the market value of debt instruments due to fluctuations in the
relative credit spread.
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credit valuation adjustment (CVA) risk: a “credit valuation adjustment” is an adjustment of market's interim assessment of
transactions with a counterparty. That adjustment reflects the current market value of counterparty risk in respect of the entity. It
does not reflect the current market value of the entity’s credit risk in respect of the counterparty.

operational risk: the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems or from external events,
including legal risk. Operational risk includes legal risk, IT risk, compliance risk and reputational risk, i.e. types of risk that are difficult
to measure/quantify for which the level of the suitability/compliance of the relative management processes is assessed;

interest rate risk on the banking book: risk arising from changes in market interest rates that reduce the profitability and the economic
value of non-trading book assets;

concentration risk: risk arising from exposures to counterparties, groups of connected counterparties, and counterparties in the same
economic sector, geographic region or engaged in the same activity or dealing in the same goods, as well as from the application of
credit risk mitigation techniques, including in particular risks associated with indirect credit exposures such as a single issuer of
guarantees;

strategic risk: the current or prospective risk of a decline in earnings or capital arising from changes in the operating environment,
adverse business decisions, improper implementation of decisions, or lack of responsiveness to industry changes;

sovereign risk: risk of loss due to a deterioration in the credit rating or the default of a sovereign state counterparty;

real estate risk: risk of losses arising from a change in the prices of real estate held in the bank’s portfolio (investments in real estate
investment funds, other properties not used in operations;

equity risk: risk of loss arising from a change in the value of equity instruments in the banking book;

liquidity risk: risk that the bank could default on its payment obligations due to its inability to secure funding or only being able to
secure it at above-market costs (funding liquidity risk) or to the possibility of incurring capital losses on the sale of assets (market
liquidity risk);

residual risk: risk for which the recognized credit risk mitigation techniques used by the Bank prove less effective than expected.

The completion of the RAF project and its operational implementation in the various analytical dimensions (i.e. the individual RASs) led to
the definition of the Group Risk Appetite Statement, i.e. the risk strategy of the ICBG for 2020, in line with the risk profiles included in the
related framework. The ICBG risk strategy for 2020 was revised and updated in August 2020 at the same time as the review of the Group
Operational Plan to incorporate the effects of the COVID-19 scenario.

In terms of capital adequacy, work focused on:

optimizing the capital structure of the Group and the individual affiliated banks, with a view to convergence towards the levels found
at comparable peers, using subordinated Tier 2 instruments to:

- strengthen the capitalization of the affiliated banks in order to enhance their capital soundness and increase the potential for
development or consolidation in sectors, markets and territories deemed of strategic interest by the Group;

- start a gradual process of diversifying financial resources for compliance with solvency and MREL requirements;

calibrating capital indicators at levels such as to ensure compliance with the levels expected by regulators (P2G and CCB) - even
with the option of temporarily operating below these levels due to the COVID-19 emergency - preserving adequate prudential buffers
to ensure stability in the changed external environment;

continuing Group initiatives to enhance the efficiency of capital resources to allocate to the development of plan actions
(development of internal models in the credit sector, RWA optimization, improvement of CRM techniques, etc.);

undertaking actions targeted at the financial sector to increase the efficiency of financial leverage to support net interest income,
making use of the facilities available under the latest monetary policy actions, and to position the Group leverage ratio at a level
more in line with those found at comparable peers.

Similarly, with regard to liquidity adequacy, efforts sought to:
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fully implement the liquidity management mechanisms resulting from the start-up of the Group to consolidate the structural liquidity
profile through:

- substantive maintenance of the liquidity deriving from direct customer funding to finance commercial lending with a concomitant
increase in indirect funding;

- new funding characterized by the progressive extension of maturities to manage the medium/long-term liquidity gap and lower
costs;

- diversification of sources of liquidity, reconverting the medium/long-term funding of the Parent Company to different funding
channels with institutional counterparties, partly in order to satisfy the progressive MREL target;
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o foster the use of funding facilities available through the new monetary policy actions of the ECB (TLTRO Ill), consistent with the
overall risk profiles of each Group company;

o complete the initiatives involving the treasury sector through the consolidation of the operating model in support of collateralized
operations (collateralizations, intermediation with the ECB and Cassa Compensazione e Garanzia, ABACO, covered bonds) by
containing the ratio of encumbered assets to total assets.

With regard to the risks for which significant impacts for the ICBG have been identified, the main mitigation actions undertaken are indicated

below:

o credit risk:

continuing the reduction of the gross NPL stock through the operational implementation of a plan that sets clear quantitative
reduction objectives (intermediate and final), which in addition to continuing disposals through structured finance
operations - especially with GACS support — is also being pursued through:

v’ the development of a highly skilled hub and procedures for the large-scale management of NPLs dedicated exclusively to
recovery activities;

v’ the strengthening of the impaired credit management model to trigger remedial actions from the first signs of deterioration in
the position;

continuing the qualitative repositioning of the portfolio risk profile through the implementation of credit strategies with new
targeted production to:

v’ achieve a sustainable portfolio objective consistent with the Group's risk appetite through targeted strategies that combine
the customer's risk level with proportionate guarantees;

v mitigate the concentration risk of the portfolio in respect of individual borrowers (or group of connected customers) and
specific economic sectors through individually specified risk limits for Group companies that foster the diversification of the
loan portfolio;

implementing more prudent coverage policies for the impaired component of the loan portfolio, taking due account of the impact
of the COVID-19 emergency on risk parameters (ECL models).

o financial risks:

establishing a financial portfolio (the strategic portfolio) of Italian government securities to support net interest income, financed
back-to-back through the ECB or through market repos, commensurate with the facilities available under recent monetary policy
actions (TLTRO-III), with the portfolio gradually being wound down until their expiry;

dynamically managing the financial portfolio (the investment — HTCS portfolio) through:

v’ the search for extra returns from market volatility, in compliance with the risk limits and capital resources allocated to these
operations;

v' the optimization of the cost of funding through greater use of "market" forms of funding in compliance with the established
duration gap limits;

v' the gradual diversification of the portfolio with EU government assets, as well as financial and corporate assets with high
credit standing;

o efficiently managing at the Group level excess liquidity and the interest rate risk profile on the banking book in order to:

o optimize the mismatching between Group assets and liabilities and minimize the sensitivity of net interest income;

o seek alternative returns from the market (e.g. use of ECB tiered facilities, greater penetration of asset management);

e completing initiatives involving the financial segment through consolidation of the operating model and the offer of asset
management services.

UNCERTAINTIES

Impact of the economic crisis brought about by the COVID-19 pandemic

The COVID-19 pandemic is the first truly global crisis since the financial crisis of 2008. As a result of this current emergency, we are likely to
see a significant — and not short-term — contraction in GDP given the economic slowdown that was already under way prior to the epidemic.
The actual size of the contraction remains difficult to forecast, as can be seen in the variability of estimates released by leading research
institutes and national and supranational authorities and organizations.
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However, compared with the 2008 crisis, the health emergency is occurring in an environment characterized by new, structural elements,
such as (i) a more solid, more resilient banking industry, (i) a deeply rooted regulatory framework, and (iii) more timely, more appropriate
reactions by the authorities aimed at maintaining the ability of banks to support the real economy and avoid the procyclical effects triggered
by certain responses to the previous crisis of 2008.

The ICBG operates in ltaly. Due to the effects of the partial and temporary shutdown of economic activity connected to the pandemic, 2020
outlook for Italy’s economy is extremely uncertain, while national developments will certainly feel the effects that the pandemic is having on
the global economy.

At the moment, it is not possible to predict with accuracy the impact this will have of Italy’s economy, as it will depend on how long the
emergency lasts (taking account, too, of the risk of another lockdown), on the efficacy of steps taken by the authorities, on the resilience of
businesses and households and their ability to react in a timely manner, and on the role that the banking system will be able to play in
supporting the economy.

Of course, the economic measures that the Italian government and other European institutions were quick to implement, as well as any
additional steps that may be taken throughout the year should a worsening of the crisis call for them, will contribute to mitigating the
recessionary effects of the pandemic.

Given the sounder condition of Europe’s banking industry today in terms of capital and liquidity, banking oversight has also been moving
towards an approach that seeks to avoid procyclical impacts. Accordingly, in order to promote the ability of the banking system to continue
providing financial support to businesses and households, the ECB now allows for a greater use of the flexibility permitted under prudential
regulations by loosening certain restrictions and postponing supervisory initiatives that are not deemed to be of critical importance. Within
the scope of these initiatives, and with regard to the ICBG, the supervisory authorities have also announced the suspension of the definition
and transmission of the NPE strategy and has, as noted, temporarily postponed the comprehensive assessment (to mid-August 2020).

Generally speaking, the measures implemented by Italian and European authorities and organizations enable banks to support lending to
firms and households by making greater use of capital and liquidity levers and benefiting from public guarantees that will support actions
governed by national rules. We are waiting to see if these measures, together with other fiscal policy measures, are able to effectively
mitigate the impact on profitability and, in particular, on risk indicators, at least over short and medium term.

Indeed, the moratorium granted to borrowers by the Cure Italy Decree will not create additional costs for banks given that it complies with the
principal of actuarial neutrality. The moratoriums decreed by various government measures, in the light of specifications provided by
international authorities (ESMA and EBA in particular), for performing customers (i.e. those that were not already experiencing difficulties
independently of the current circumstances) in accordance with the aforementioned decree are neutral in relation to prevailing policies for
assessing credit risk and will not lead to automatic changes in the classification of these exposures.

Furthermore, during this period, the public guarantees provided through the Law 662/96 Fund and/or of Cassa Depositi e Prestiti serve to
reinforce lending to small and medium-sized enterprises. In this regard, and in consideration of the expected partial deterioration in credit
quality at the end of the moratorium, these guarantees will help to reduce the expected future losses on these exposures by improving
recovery rates (for a lower LGD compared with what would prevail for positions without guarantees).

These areas of intervention are of particular importance for the Iccrea Cooperative Banking Group and, of course, for the affiliated banks,
especially considering their business model, which is targeted at supporting households and small and medium-sized enterprises, the
customer segments on which the main support measures approved by the Italian government are focused.

That said, the high degree of uncertainty surrounding developments in the economy and the market still require that we be ready for
potential future market corrections, for a deterioration in liquidity on the financial markets and for a revaluation of existing risk management
frameworks in order to verify their capacity to take sufficient account of the unique characteristics of this crisis.

The impact of the crisis on the quality of bank assets will represent a key challenge for the future. Asset quality is expected to deteriorate
due to the growing volumes of impaired loans and the increase in the cost of risk within a scenario of potential deterioration of the economy.
Within this context, the ability to adequately assess portfolio quality will be of increasing importance, taking account, too, of the temporary
nature of the (legislative and non-legislative) moratoriums as described in detail above, as well as of any further support measures. Given
the difficult of adequately predicting the severity and duration of the crisis, strategies aimed at maintaining adequate levels of capitalization
are of even greater importance, including forward-looking assessments of capital that take account of the current uncertainties and protect
the quality and level of capital by, in part, maintaining more conservative policies of distribution and remuneration.

Monetary policy responses to the crisis have caused interest rates to decline even further. Although these lower interest rates are an
important factor in supporting economic activity, they also certainly have a negative impact on bank profitability, while contributing to the
further accumulation of valuation risks on the financial markets through investment strategies that underestimate the risks involved and
incentivizing growth in bank borrowing in the highest-risk segments. Despite the importance of continuing to lend during the crisis, it is of the
utmost importance to maintain (if not also reinforce) robust risk assessment practices during the origination process. Also essential is an
ability to manage ICT risks and digital security, while paying particularly close attention to the growing number and new forms of financial
crime that have, as the reader will be aware, characterized periods of severe economic upheaval.

These uncertainties also have an impact on the factors underlying the forward-looking models required by IFRS 9 for the calculation of
expected losses on credit positions. In this regard, and as mentioned previously, on March 20, 2020, the ECB issued a communication
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calling on banks to adopt long-term outlooks characterized by adequate stability in their scenario analyzes for the purposes of calculating the
cost of credit, in line with the implicit requirements of that financial reporting standard, in order to reduce volatility in the calculation of risk
parameters, while also stating that it could be providing banks with macroeconomic scenarios for the purpose of applying the provisioning
policies of IFRS 9. In this regard, and as mentioned previously, the Group has adapted the IFRS 9 impairment model used to calculate
adjustments to the value of performing loans and has defined a specific conditioning model for the non-performing portfolio in response to
COVID-19, which has been used for the 2020 half-year report to calculate and include an impairment add-on to the one generated by the
process envisaged under prevailing internal rules (drafted prior to the COVID-19 emergency).

Taking account of the Group’s revised budget, as approved on August 7, and the current lack of a strategic plan for the Group that also
factors in the future effects of the new macroeconomic conditions, in compliance with requirements for additional disclosure beyond the
ordinary disclosure requirements and in the presence of market trigger events that point to a potential reduction in the value of assets, as
declared by the competent authorities, especially adverse future scenarios have been used in order to verify the robustness of the probability
test for the DTAs recognized and in the measurement of equity investments and goodwill.

In this regard, it should be noted that preparation of the separate and consolidated interim financial statements for the Parent Company and
the ICBG called for a more in-depth analysis than normal, including in relation to the need to provide more information on the Group’s
circumstances, in terms of both qualitative disclosures and more detailed numbers on the robustness of the measurements of certain assets
in response to the potential impact of the spread of COVID-19 on our performance and financial position.

The Group pays constant attention to the development of tools to measure the potential impact on operations of the various risks and
uncertainties (particularly by way of sensitivity analysis and stress testing) in order to ensure the timely adaptation of strategies — in terms of
the branch network, the organization, and the management/rationalization of costs — in response to the changing environment. These risks
and uncertainties are also the subject of constant monitoring by way of the Group’s set of risk policies and rules, while also seeing to all
updates and adaptations in relation to changes in strategy, in the context of operations, and in market expectations. This monitoring and
development is aimed at verifying the adequacy of these polices and rules and their proper implementation. Therefore, the risks and
uncertainties described above have been subjected to an evaluation process aimed, in part, at underscoring the impact of changes market
parameters and conditions on the company’s performance.

More specifically, for the purposes of preparing this interim financial report, we have applied the recommendations issued by Consob in its
warning notice no. 6/20 of April 9, 20208, as mentioned above, with regard to the information to be provided on: (i) the risks related to
COVID-19 that could have an impact on performance or financial position; (i) any measures taken or planned to mitigate these risks; and (i)
an indication of a qualitative and/or quantitative nature of the potential impacts that have been considered in estimating the company's
future performance.

Also of importance are the Consob recommendations, in line with those of the public statement by the ESMA® on May 20, 2020, concerning
the implications of the COVID-19 outbreak on the half-yearly financial reports and the need to carefully assess the relevance of business
plans in order to take account of the main risks related to the pandemic that could inhibit achieving strategic objects and/or compromise
business continuity, so as to verify any impairment that may have occurred in recognized assets. In particular, Consob has underscored the
importance the determinations directors are called upon to make when preparing the interim financial reports in accordance with 1AS 36 —
Impairment of Assets and, in this regard, whether the effects of the COVID-19 epidemic are a sufficient indication of impairment to require
specific tests of the recoverability of the assets. Consob has also underscored the importance of describing the significant risks and
uncertainties related to COVID-19 and in reference to the income statement, as well as to provide information (i) on the impact of COVID-19
on strategic planning and on plan targets, on financial performance, on financial standing, and on cash flows and (ii) on the steps taken
and/or planned in order to manage and mitigate the impact of COVID-19 on assets and performance and on related progress made.

This additional information has been provided in the ICBG separate and consolidated interim financial reports as at June 30, 2020.
Of particular note is the information provided in this report and/or in the notes to the financial statements concerning:

o the procedures for calculating ECL in accordance with IFRS 9, subject to action in relation to financial reporting as at June 30, 2020,
particularly as concerns: (i) the updates to the risk models used by the former IBG and by the banks that use the BCC Sl information
system, with changes in relation to PD and LGD; (ii) the procedures for factoring in the effects of the health emergency on this
model; and (i) the model (and the procedures for factoring in the “COVID effect”) used by the banks that use non-proprietary
information systems, which is subject to re-performing by the Parent Company’s technical units;

o the measurement of impaired loans in this new market environment, including in light of the more conservative measures adopted by
the Group for the half-yearly report;

o the impairment testing of equity investments and goodwill20, which is of particular importance in light of the aforementioned Consob
recommendations and is the subject of in-depth analysis by way of the assessments made by an independent third party;

18 “Covid 19 - Richiamo di attenzione sull'informativa finanziaria”.

19 Based on which, the determinations directors are called upon to make when preparing the interim financial reports in accordance with IAS 36 — Impairment of Assets and, in
particular, whether the effects of the COVID-19 epidemic are a sufficient indication of impairment to require specific tests of the recoverability of the assets are of importance.

2 |AS 36 requires that certain types of assets undergo impairment testing at least once per year in order to verify the recoverability of their carrying value. The same standard also states that, when
preparing interim financial reports, certain qualitative and quantitative analyses are to be conducted in order to determine the existence of any (internal or external) indicators of impairment and,
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o the probability testing of DTAs on the separate financial statements of the affiliated banks and other entities of the ICBG, which - in
relation to the Consob recommendations — called for more detailed sensitivity analyses aimed at verifying robustness based on
available information, including in consideration of the fact that, as mentioned previously, the Group’s strategic planning process has
not been completed due to the pandemic.

Conversely, with regard to the portfolio of government securities, the impact on the stability of own funds and on capital ratios in this current
market environment are limited given the classification and ALM policies adopted by the Group and the guidelines provided over time by the
Parent Company. It should also be noted in this regard that prevailing prudential regulations allow the use of the recently introduced
(Regulation (EU) 2020/873) prudential filter, which temporarily allows - in decreasing percentages until 2022 — the mitigation of the impact on
CET1 of fluctuations in the value of exposures to central government measured at FVTOCI. This filter, which the Group has not yet
implemented, can be activated quickly when needed.

Comprehensive assessment

The European supervisory authority (the ECB) had decided to put the ICBG through a Comprehensive Assessment exercise in 2020, which
involves an Asset Quality Review (AQR) and a stress test based on an adverse scenario common to all European banks (EU-wide stress
test).

In the first half of 2020, the Parent Company, together with the affiliated banks and following the discussions with the Joint Supervisory
Team (JST), carried out the preparatory activities for the Comprehensive Assessment exercise. In particular, as part of the activities aimed
at conducting the Asset Quality Review during the first few months of the year, the activities necessary for the preparation of the reference
templates were completed and control tools were prepared and deployed to strengthen the data quality processes supporting the exercise.
As part of the activities associated with the stress test exercise, in March the templates for Advanced Data Collection activities were
transmitted to the supervisory authorities to test the effective operation of procedures as part of the preparatory activities for the exercise. In
the days immediately following this submission, and following the recent events connected with the spread of COVID-19, the EBA decided to
postpone the performance of the EU-wide stress test to 2021, as it is felt that banks must focus all their efforts on ensuring business
continuity in this challenging environment, guaranteeing the proper operation of their core business and all critical functions, and avoid
placing the additional burden of operations connected with the regulatory exercise on the operational structures of the banks, which are
already under strain. Accordingly, the Comprehensive Assessment exercise involving the ICBG was temporarily suspended and will begin
again at the start of the second half of this year.

Resolution planning activities and Minimum Requirement of Eligible Liabilities (MREL)

In 2020, Iccrea Banca, as Parent Company, was involved in numerous initiatives and studies as part of the activities relating to the planning
of the resolution of the Iccrea Cooperative Banking Group envisaged by the Single Resolution Board (SRB).

With reference to the MREL (Minimum Requirement of Eligible Liabilities), Iccrea Banca received from the Single Resolution Board the
decision on the minimum requirement of own funds and eligible liabilities 2020 at Group level, including subordination requirement,
intermediate requirements and target requirement that must be met by 30 June 2023.

In 2021, the Group will receive from the Single Resolution Board the new decision on the MREL requirement in the light of the new 2020
MREL SRB Policy (effective from January 1, 2021) which implements the Banking Package and the evolutions on the resolvability of the
Group.

consequently, of the conditions for conducting impairment tests more frequently than the standard of once per year.
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10. INTERNAL CAPITAL AND LIQUIDITY ADEQUACY ASSESSMENT PROCESS

Supervisory Review and Evaluation Process (SREP)

With regard to the outcome of the Supervisory Review and Evaluation Process (SREP), on December 4, 2019, the supervisory authorities
notified lccrea Banca of the findings of the SREP decision, which establishes the prudential requirements to be complied with at
consolidated level with effect from January 1, 2020 (divided into own funds requirements and quality requirements).

With this decision, which is the first assigned at a consolidated level for the Iccrea Cooperative Banking Group since its establishment, the
supervisory authorities have established own funds requirements for 2020 that include:

e an additional Pillar 2 requirement (P2R) of 2.5% to be held in the form of Common Equity Tier 1 capital, to be maintained on an
ongoing basis, in accordance with Article 16 of Regulation (EU) no. 1024/2013;

e arecommendation for Pillar 2 Guidance (P2G) of 1.25%, which should consist entirely of Common Equity Tier 1 capital and held in
addition to the Overall Capital Requirement (OCR).

Given the above, for 2020 the Iccrea Cooperative Banking Group is therefore required to meet:
o a Total SREP Capital Requirement (TSCR) of 10.5%, of which at least 7% shall consist of Common Equity Tier 1 instruments;
o an OCR equal to 13%, of which at least 9.5% shall consist of Common Equity Tier 1 instruments.

With regard to the Group’s affiliated banks, the SREP decision did not impose own funds requirements to be met on an individual basis.
Therefore, in order to comply with the aforementioned consolidated requirements, mechanisms have been provided for their allocation at
individual level within the main risk governance processes (i.e. RAF, EWS), compatibly with the capital resources of each affiliated bank,
thus ensuring that the Group’s strategies and capital constraints are also reflected at the individual level.

As already mentioned, on March 12, 2020 the ECB, having noted that the banks subject to supervision could have encountered difficulties in
ensuring continuous compliance with capital requirements as a result of the COVID-19 emergency and the related impact on their activities,
operations and capital and liquidity situation, granted significant supervised entities the possibility of using equity instruments not qualified as
Common Equity Tier 1 to meet part of the additional Pillar 2 own funds requirements. In this regard, on April 8, 2020, the ECB notified Iccrea
Banca of the decision to change the composition of the additional Pillar 2 own funds requirement notified on December 4, 2019. With this
decision, the supervisory authority amended the initial SREP decision, keeping the previous quantitative requirements unchanged but
allowing the additional Pillar 2 own funds requirement (P2R) to also be met with Additional Tier 1 and Tier 2 instruments, within the limits of
certain percentages. More specifically, at least 56.25% of the P2R shall be held in the form of Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1), with Tier 1
capital accounting for at least 75%.

In response to this new decision, the Group has conducted studies at both the consolidated and individual levels in order to identify the
complete scope of risk governance arrangements strictly connected to the SREP decision and therefore potentially impacted by these
changes, with particular regard to the issues of capital adequacy and the effects deriving from the application of capital management and
capital allocation approaches.

In greater detail, considering the special characteristics of the methodological and operating systems of the risk governance frameworks
defined and adopted by the Group, these studies concentrated:

o at the consolidated level, on the Risk Appetite Framework, the ICAAP framework and the Recovery Plan, with specific reference to
the thresholds defined for the capital adequacy indicators;

o at the individual level, on the key and unique operating mechanisms of the ICBG (the Guarantee System - GS - and the Early
Warning System), the definition of the reference thresholds for the execution of the stress test for GS purposes (the GS threshold),
the consequent quantification of the readily available funds (RAFs), the associated allotment of the funding obligation among the
participating banks and the determination of the thresholds in the EWS and RAF area.

Following the analysis, it was determined that, at the consolidated level and taking account of the structure of the Group's capital, in which
CET1 components predominate, there was no need to recalibrate the capital ratio thresholds in the context of the RAF/RAS, ICAAP and the
Recovery Plan, confirming the appropriateness of covering the P2R requirement entirely with CET1 instruments.

At the individual level, the capital structure of the affiliated banks is similar to that found at the consolidated level, with very few immaterial
exceptions. Therefore, the application of the ECB notice of April 8 would have had marginal positive impacts. In consideration of the above,
therefore, it was decided not to modify the Group's risk governance arrangements, considering that the amendment to the SREP decision
had substantially non-material impacts both on the Group as a whole and on its individual members.
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Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP) and Internal Liquidity Adequacy Assessment Process (ILAAP)

In the first half, activities concerning the application of the Internal Capital and Liquidity Adequacy Assessment Processes (ICAAP and
ILAAP) were performed and completed.

More specifically, the ICAAP and ILAAP processes were implemented on the basis of the target configuration defined by the Group,
provided for execution of all respective process phases - i.e. identification, measurement, and assessment of risks under both baseline and
adverse scenarios, etc. — and the assessment and certification of the adequacy of capital (for the Capital Adequacy Statement - CAS) and
liquidity (for the Liquidity Adequacy Statement - LAS).

The analyzes performed in assessing adequacy were conducted at both the individual and consolidated levels and were developed, in
accordance with the request of the supervisory authorities issued on April 7, 2020 in a specific communication, using a pre-COVID
macroeconomic context.

The findings of the assessments were formalized within the Group ICAAP and ILAAP package, which was submitted to the supervisory
authorities in May 2020.

At the consolidated level, the ICAAP assessments from the various perspectives considered (regulatory, internal rules and economic) found
that capital was adequate over the entire time horizon of the baseline scenario. More specifically:

e with regard to the regulatory perspective, the CET1 and TC ratios were stably above the established thresholds both at the
regulatory level and in terms of the main risk governance processes and had significant capital buffers over the time horizon
considered;

o from the economic perspective, risk-taking capacity showed that the levels of capital determined on a going-concern basis were
amply sufficient to cover potential unexpected losses in relation to the Group’s risks.

The various assessments conducted, taking account of the integrated-perspectives approach under adverse conditions, pointed to an overall
profile of capital adequacy at the consolidated level over the entire time horizon considered. Specifically, the CET1 and TC ratios were stably
above the minimum levels required under particularly adverse conditions over the time horizon considered.

The ILAAP assessments, in turn, indicated adequate overall liquidity for the ICBG over the entire time horizon, both at short term and over
the longer term, taking account of both baseline operations and the adverse scenario. In particular, the estimated evolution of the LCR and
NSFR indicators over the plan period did not reveal any critical issues in terms of the adequacy of operating and structural liquidity, as the
expected positioning in the baseline scenario is consistent with the objectives set out in the RAS and the projection in the stress scenario
exceeds not only the regulatory threshold but also the risk capacity specified in the 2020 RAS.

Liquidity waiver under Article 8 of the CRR and liquidity situation

On February 1, 2019 Iccrea Banca SpA, acting on behalf of its subsidiary Banca Mediocredito del Friuli Venezia Giulia SpA, submitted to the
ECB an application for an exemption on an individual basis to the application of the prudential liquidity requirements, as well as to the
liquidity reporting requirements set out in Part Six of Regulation (EU) no. 575/2013, previously granted by the supervisory authorities to
Iccrea Banca S.p.A and the subsidiaries lccrea Bancalmpresa SpA and Banca per lo Sviluppo della Cooperazione di Credito SpA
(constituting the so-called liquidity subgroup).

Following analysis of the application presented, the European Central Bank granted the exemption on an individual basis to the application
of prudential liquidity requirements as well as the reporting and supervisory obligations to which they are subject as a single liquidity
subgroup.

During 2019, starting with the launch of the ICBG, the Group’s liquidity position remained within the risk limits set under both internal rules
and external regulations. The RAS liquidity coverage ratio (LCR) and net stable funding ratio (NSFR) were always within their target ranges
at values far above the risk appetite thresholds set when preparing the financial plan, with their average values during the last year being
251% and 130%, respectively.

Liquidity buffers at June 30 totaled around €33 billion, of which

o 82% was in securities with a market value of €27 billion (€25.0 billion net of the haircut), of which 99% represented by Italian
government securities;

e 16% was in reserves held with central banks;
e 2% was in cash in hand.

In terms of structural liquidity, the regulatory NSFR pointed to adequate levels of stable funding to cover the financing needs generated by
the various forms of commercial lending and investment in the financial portfolio.
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Recovery Plan

The Recovery Plan is of particular strategic importance at the consolidated level and is therefore based on existing Group data, processes
and systems. In this context, the operating process underlying the preparation of the Recovery Plan was executed at the consolidated level,
under the direct responsibility of the Parent Company, which is responsible for drafting the Recovery Plan. The general responsibility for this
document lies with the Board of Directors of the Parent Company, while its implementation and management is translated into the guidelines
and principles of recovery governance, which call for the involvement of the Risk Committee and technical management units, such as the
Recovery Committee as well as the boards of directors of the subsidiaries and affiliated banks, if involved in the implementation of the
Recovery Plan.

During the second half of 2020, the activities related to the implementation of the Group's Recovery Framework were started in its target
configuration and at the same time updating of the Group's Recovery Plan was begun.

In this regard, the assessment/analysis performed in order to assess the Group’s capacity to restore the performance and financial position
of all Group companies in the event of highly adverse scenarios characterized by idiosyncratic and systemic risks also took account of the
outbreak and spread of the COVID-19 emergency.
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11. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

Structure of the Group internal control system

The structure of the internal control system (ICS) has been designed in accordance with the organizational structure of the Group and, in its
operational implementation, takes account of the specific operations and associated risk profiles of each of the Group companies.

The corporate control functions operate within the ICS. They are independent and dedicated to ensuring the correct and efficient operation of
the system, developing and implementing their control model through the set of rules, functions, structures, resources, processes and
procedures designed to pursue, in compliance with the principles of sound and prudent management, the following purposes:

o verification of the implementation of corporate strategies and policies;

o support for the development of risk management arrangements and processes;

e ongoing monitoring of the appropriateness of risk management arrangements and processes;

e ongoing monitoring of risks and their containment within the limits indicated in the risk appetite framework (RAF);
o preserving the value of assets and protecting against losses;

o the effectiveness and efficiency of business processes;

o the reliability and security of corporate information and IT procedures;

o prevention of the risk that the Group companies could be involved, even involuntarily, in illegal activities (with particular reference to
those connected with money laundering, usury and terrorist financing);

o compliance of operations with the law and supervisory regulations, as well as with internal policies, rules and procedures.

The internal control system undergoes periodic evaluation by the corporate boards to ascertain their compliance with regulatory
requirements and the principles and objectives defined in the Group policies governing the organizational structure of corporate control
functions.

It plays a central role in Group organization, as it:

o represents a key source of information the corporate boards, enabling full awareness of the reference context and effective oversight
of corporate risks and their interrelations;

e guides changes in strategic direction and company policies and enables the consistent adaptation of the organizational environment;
o oversees the functionality of management systems and compliance with prudential supervisory regulations;
e promotes the dissemination of an appropriate culture of risk, legality and corporate values.

Consistent with the foregoing, the Group’s internal control system:

o ensures the completeness, appropriateness, functionality (in terms of efficiency and effectiveness) and reliability of the risk
management process and its consistency with the RAF;

o provides for control activities at every operational and hierarchical level;

o ensures that any anomalies are promptly brought to the attention of the appropriate levels (the corporate boards, if significant)
capable of rapidly activating the appropriate corrective actions;

o provides for specific procedures to deal with any breach of operating limits.

The Group has created a model of governance for the corporate control functions based on which the Parent Company governs the
operation and primary responsibilities of the corporate control functions, while also defining the interrelationships between these functions
and the various other corporate bodies. In line with the model adopted, the Parent Company is responsible for providing the Group with a
unified internal control system that enables effective internal control of the strategic decisions of the Group as a whole and of the operational
equilibrium of its individual members.

To this end, the Group has established appropriate corporate control functions, endowed with autonomy and independence, dedicated to
ensuring the correct and efficient functioning of the internal control system, reporting directly to the Parent Company’s Board of Directors.
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In particular, the following areas have been established for each of the corporate control functions:
o the Chief Audit Executive (CAE) area for the Internal Audit function;
o the Chief Compliance Officer (CCO) area for the Compliance function;
o the Chief Risk Officer (CRO) area for the Risk Management function;
o the Chief AML Officer (CAMLO) area for the Anti-Money Laundering function.
The Internal Audit function is a third-level control body, while the other functions perform second-level controls.

The proper functioning of the internal control system rests on the effective interaction of the corporate control functions, the other corporate
bodies, and all other actors in the internal control system.

Within this context, the definition of efficient, effective mechanisms of interaction between the corporate control functions and other corporate
bodies is important to the achievement of a coordinated view of risks and the execution of a dynamic process of adapting the methods of
control to the changing internal and external landscape.

Within the scope of the Group’s internal control system, and in line with the provisions of related Group policies, the Committee for the
Coordination of the Corporate Control Functions (hereinafter also the “Coordination Committee”) allows for the proper, effective interaction
between the corporate control functions and other corporate bodies and for the maximization of synergies, while avoiding any overlaps,
redundancies, or gaps in coverage.

The Coordination Committee assesses, studies and discusses issues related to the various phases of activity of the corporate control
functions (i.e. planning, execution, reporting, and follow-up) in order to ensure the coordinated, harmonized development of the risk
management framework by establishing consistent approaches, processes, and digital support tools within the Group that respect the
specific characteristics of the various areas of business and operations of the affiliated banks and of the other companies of the Group to
which they apply.

The Group internal control system underwent a thorough review by the Parent Company as part of the activities undertaken for the
establishment of the ICBG. In 2018, the development activity performed led to the definition of the overall organizational framework.

In terms of governance and responsibility for the overall system of the internal control system, the model adopted in the ICBG hinges upon
the responsibilities of the Parent Company for defining strategies, processes and control methods, tools, mechanisms and standards for
planning and reporting activities, as well as the execution of second and third level controls.

Coordination with the Group is ensured not only by the proactive efforts of the Parent Company, but also by the ongoing relevance of the
methods of governance for the affiliated banks and for the other companies of the Group in relation to the organizational model underlying
creation of the ICBG.

In this regard, centralization of the corporate control functions can be seen operationally in the various entities of the Group in the form of a
model of operations that calls for either:

e oversight and coordination of the locally established corporate control functions, over which the Parent Company assumes functional
responsibility;

o the outsourcing of the corporate control functions to the Parent Company, governed by appropriate outsourcing agreements.

The model adopted for the companies within the direct scope

The functional model for the corporate control functions has been implemented operationally by the companies of the direct scope in the
following ways:

o for the third-level control function, by outsourcing the corporate control functions to the Parent Company;
o for the second-level control functions, by setting up local corporate control functions and centralizing functional responsibility.

Therefore, for the second-level corporate control functions, the Parent Company has a central organizational unit that is functionally
responsible at the Group level. The functions are in Parent Company units and in local units within the various subsidiaries. In order to
ensure autonomy of action, the local units are positioned within the organizational hierarchy as reporting directly to their respective boards of
directors.

As with the corporate control functions established at the Parent Company, the CCFs of the companies within the direct scope of
consolidation also have direct access to the board of directors and the board of auditors without intermediation. They can also access all
information/documentation relevant for the performance of their duties, including through direct contact with company employees, and are
not involved in the activities they are called to control.

The responsible officers within the various companies of the direct scope, as selected by the Parent Company and recommended to the
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subsidiaries (the Board of Directors of the Parent Company passes binding appointment resolutions), are formally appointed or revoked by
their respective boards of directors based on an opinion of the board of auditors. As for internal auditing, which is outsourced, also for the
second-level corporate control functions the officers appointed for these functions are ordinarily (based on autonomous decisions of the
Parent Company) employees of the Parent Company and seconded to the subsidiaries.

Given that the model described above is essentially in line with the previous arrangements within the former Iccrea Banking Group, it has
continued to be implemented in pursuit of its mission and prerogatives without any interruption caused by the creation of the ICBG.

The model adopted for the affiliated banks

The model of centralizing the corporate control functions is implemented by the affiliated banks by outsourcing the second and third-level
functions to the Parent Company under specific outsourcing agreements.

In terms of governance and responsibility for the overall system of the internal control system, the model adopted assigned responsibility to
the Parent Company for defining the processes and control methods, as well as for the tools, mechanisms and standards for planning and
reporting activities and for execution of second and third level controls. The outsourced corporate control functions of the affiliated banks are
carried out by employees of the Parent Company who possess the required qualifications.

With regard to selection of the heads of the corporate control functions, the model defined by the ICBG states that this role (and,
consequently, the related responsibilities in relation to the corporate bodies) can be assigned in relation to one or more affiliated banks, and
so of limited number based on appropriate considerations of scope, effectiveness and efficiency of the structure of the specific function. The
goal of this approach is to:

o take account of the particular traits of the ICBG, especially as concerns the organization’s size and widespread presence of the
affiliated banks throughout Italy;

e pursue the objectives of effectiveness and efficiency in the overall operation of the ICS of the Iccrea Cooperative Banking Group;

o ensure the in-depth analysis, focus and understanding of the specific needs of each the individual banks as necessary in order to
accurately exercise the control functions.

Furthermore, for the second-level control functions, this approach is necessary in order to:

o allow those responsible for taking on and managing risks and those who are responsible for their ongoing control to work closely
together, as required by applicable laws and regulations, which state that organizational solutions are to be adopted that do not
result in excessive distance from operations. For a full understanding of risks, it is critical for there to be constant interaction with the
various business units;

e enable those who are responsible for the corporate control functions of the affiliated banks to actually dedicate the time needed to
the activities related to the bank(s) for which they are responsible, while also ensuring the most effective interaction with the
corporate bodies of the individual bank(s) such that they can perform their duties as defined by applicable legislation.

Proposals for the appointment of the heads of the corporate control functions for each member bank are made (based on opinions of the
Risks Committee) by the Board of Directors of the Parent Company as recommended by the head of the corporate control functions of the
Group. Approved appointments are reported to the member bank, whose corporate bodies then proceed with the related appointment (along
with all obligations related to finalizing the outsourcing agreement).

The Internal Audit function

The Chief Audit Executive (CAE) area, working through the various coordinated organizational units, performs the third-level controls aimed
at assessing the functioning, adequacy, comprehensiveness and reliability of the internal control system, the information system, the risk
management process and the risk appetite framework, and provides recommendations aimed at improving the effectiveness and efficiency
of the Group’s organization, governance and of the risk management and control processes and policies.

The Chief Audit Executive is responsible for implementing the Internal Audit function in accordance with the model designed when creating
the ICBG, in terms of both organization and methodology, so as to fuffill the area’s duties and responsibilities in a unified, coordinated
manner for the Parent Company, the companies of the direct and indirect scopes, and for all affiliated banks.

The CAE Area is organized into the following units:

o “Audit Operational Support’, which handles operational and administrative activities in support of the CAE, the internal audit
managers of the affiliated banks and companies of the direct and indirect scopes, and the heads of the other organizational units of
the function in meeting their respective obligations;
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o “Audit Governance”, which supports the CAE in governance, defining processes, methodologies and tools and in planning and
supervising internal audit activities and remote controls, as well as in performing the quality assurance activities of the function;

e “ICT Audit”, which performs IT audits in order to provide assessments on the overall IT risk situation with regard to the Parent
Company, the companies subject to the latter's management and coordination, and any external providers;

o “Parent Company and Direct and Indirect Scope Audit “, which is responsible for performing internal audit activities for the Parent
Company and the companies within the direct and indirect scope in support of the CAE and the internal audit managers of the
companies within the direct and indirect scope, based specific outsourcing agreements, and in accordance with the processes,
methods and tools of the function. The unit also supports the CAE in coordinating consolidated audit activities or issues concerning
the entire Group;

o “Mutual Bank Audit’, which is responsible for conducting internal audits at the affiliated banks, supporting the CAE and the internal
audit managers of those banks, based on specific outsourcing agreements and in accordance with the processes, methods and
audit tools defined by the function. This unit includes not only the internal audit manager of the mutual banks but also the Internal
Audit Supervisor, who works with the Mutual Bank Audit manager in supervising, supporting and coordinating the correct application
of the audit processes, methods and tools in carrying out internal audit activities and in the management of the resources under the
responsibility of the internal audit managers of the affiliated banks;

o “Network Audit”, which is responsible for conducting internal audits of the branches of the affiliated banks of the Group and of Banca
Sviluppo in line with the processes, methodologies, and audit tools defined by the function. Within the unit, a functional position of
Internal Audit Coordinator has been established, with the responsibility for supporting the Head of Network Audit in the supervision
and coordination of Internal Audit activities at branches: (i) ensuring methodological and operational consistency with the guidelines
defined by the function; ii) providing assistance in scheduling resources; iii) supporting the performance of audit activities and related
reporting; and iv) monitoring the network audit activities in order to ensure compliance with the approved audit plans.

Audits for 2020 were determined in accordance with the guidelines set out in the "2020 Planning Guidelines" approved by the Board of
Directors of the Parent Company on December 20, 2019. However, in consideration of the emergency situation linked to the COVID-19
pandemic, the unit has partially reconsidered the guidelines also in order to ensure the balanced operational distribution of audits over the
time horizon envisaged in the plan. The "execution" period of the audit missions provides for their completion by December 31, 2020, in line
with the convergence path of the planning process towards the calendar year.

Internal Audit has prepared the "2020-2022 Group Audit Plan", approved by the Parent Company's Board of Directors on April 30, 2020,
which is divided into two sections: "PC-CDS Audit Plan" and "Mutual Bank Audit Plan". Both include consolidated audits (addressing
transversal issues involving the Parent Company and multiple ICBG banks and companies and, in the most significant cases, including ICT
audits), audits of processes, the distribution network and the ICT area.

As part of the "Group Policy on Violation Reporting Systems" (approved by the Parent Company's Board of Directors on March 20, 2020),
the CAE acts as Head of Internal Systems for Reporting Violations for the Parent Company and for the companies within the direct scope of
consolidation, while the internal audit managers of the mutual banks have been designated as Heads of the Internal Systems for Reporting
Violations for the individual affiliated banks.

The Risk Management function

The Chief Risk Officer area is responsible at the Group level for second-level control activities connected with the management of credit,
financial and operational risks, including IT risks. It is the contact for the corporate bodies of the Parent Company for matters within its scope
of responsibility, providing an integrated and composite vision of the set of risks that are being assumed and managed by the individual
entities and by the Group as a whole.

The organizational structure of the Risk Management function of the Parent Company of the Iccrea Cooperative Banking Group includes, in
addition to CRO staff and support units (e.g. Validation), the following structures:

e a “Group Risk Management” unit, which ensures the supervision and coordination of the organizational units dedicated to the
individual risk categories, which within their areas of responsibility are involved in the development and maintenance of the
methodological framework for the assumption and management of specific risks, as well as risk assessment and monitoring on a
consolidated basis and identification of any mitigation measures;

o a“Mutual Bank Risk Management” unit, which represents the “control center” for the risk profile of the individual affiliated banks, with
responsibility for controlling and activating Early Warning System processes, in addition to representing the heads of the territorial
Risk Management units and collaborating with Group Risk Management in defining the methodological and operational aspects of
the Risk Management process, with particular regard to the aspects concerning the affiliated banks;

e a “Support and Coordination of Horizontal Initiatives”, which operates within the office of the Chief Risk Officer, providing coordinated
management of the main initiatives involving the Risk Management function and the functional and interconnection mechanisms
linking the function units;
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o a*Validation” unit that validates the models developed internally to quantify the risks to which the Group is exposed.

The overall organization of the risk management units of the direct scope companies that under the governance arrangements report to the
CRO area of Iccrea Banca, is completed by:

o the Group Risk Management unit for BCC Risparmio & Previdenza, Iccrea Bancalmpresa, BCC CreditoConsumo, BCC Factoring,
BCC Lease, and Banca Mediocredito del Friuli Venezia Giulia;

o the Mutual Bank Risk Management unit for Banca Sviluppo.

Serving within the Parent Company’s “Mutual Bank Risk Management” are area coordinators (the heads of the three Mutual Bank Risk
Management Coordination units) and a “Risk Management Territorial Specialist”, representing the local Risk Management specialist. In this
context, the Risk Management (RM) Territorial Specialist, with the contribution of associates if appropriate, supports the Risk Management
units of the affiliated banks in determining and adopting strategies, policies and processes for the identification, assessment and control of
the risks specified by the Risk Management function at the Iccrea Cooperative Banking Group level.

With reference to the above model for the affiliated banks, the activities for defining and approving the documentation underlying the overall
ICS were completed, including the outsourcing contract, which describes the scope and procedures for the performance of second-level
control activities related to risk management.

In parallel, the associated on-boarding activities were carried out by the Parent Company with a view to enabling the effective
activation/implementation of the outsourcing contracts needed to ensure the performance of control services/activities.

With regard to the Risk Management function, the implementation plan of the component responsible for carrying out the outsourced
activities (the “territorial component”) had been completed.

The Compliance function

The Compliance function is the Group’s second-level control function, which adopts a risk-based approach in the management of
compliance risk. The Group Compliance function is performed within the Chief Compliance Officer area.

The manager of the Chief Compliance Officer Area is the Chief Compliance Officer. The Chief Compliance Officer directs and supervises,
with the support of the individual heads of the compliance functions of the affiliated banks and Group companies (compliance officers) and
the managers of the other organizational units of the Function, the process of managing compliance risk, directing and coordinating the
performance of compliance activities for the Group, consistent with the provisions of the Cohesion Contract, and the Function’s policies and
rules.

In this context, based on the Group’s organizational and operational model and the agreements for the outsourcing of the compliance
function of the affiliated banks, the Function identifies, evaluates and monitors the applicable regulations for the entire Group, measuring and
assessing the impact of those regulations on company processes and procedures. It also develops prevention and control policies, in
compliance with the level of risk and the limits specified in the Risk Appetite Framework.

As part of the implementation of the Compliance Function according to the model designed at the time of setting up the ICBG, in order to
take into consideration the special features of the Group, the Affiliate Bank Compliance unit was structured, with a focus on the coordination
and operational control of the second-level control model relating to the affiliated banks and the direct scope companies Banca Sviluppo and
BCC Sistemi Informatici, consistent with the compliance methods, processes and tools defined within the Function and in accordance with
the provisions of the service agreements for the outsourcing of the compliance functions of the affiliated banks. The Compliance Unit of the
affiliated banks is organized territorially through Compliance units and local DPOs, who are responsible for performing the operational
activities envisaged by the second-level control model for managing compliance risk adopted by the Parent Company, in accordance with
the outsourcing contracts referred to earlier.

The Anti-Money Laundering function

The Anti-Money Laundering function is the Group-level organization responsible for second-level activities connected with preventing and
countering money laundering and terrorist financing operations, constantly verifying that control arrangements and information systems are
capable of ensuring compliance with the applicable laws and regulations in this area.

The Group Anti-Money Laundering function is performed by the Chief AML Officer area, which responsible for the definition of guidelines,
organizational principles and policies regarding the governance of the risk of money laundering and terrorist financing and oversees their
implementation by the relevant organizational units and peripheral structures. The Chief AML Officer is responsible for the Anti-Money
Laundering function of lccrea Banca and has been granted authority for reporting suspicious transactions for Iccrea Banca by the Board of
Directors, after consulting the Board of Auditors

The implementation of the Anti-Money Laundering function in accordance with the model developed at the time the ICBG was established, in
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order to take into consideration the special features of the Group, included the structuring of:

o the Affiliated Bank AML unit, with a focus on the coordination and operational control of the anti-money laundering control model
relating to the affiliated banks. In particular, the Anti-Money Laundering function of the affiliated banks, outsourced to the Parent
Company under the outsourcing contracts and mainly deployed through the local offices of the Parent Company, is subject to the
coordination and monitoring of the Affiliated Bank AML unit. To this end, the so-called Local AML units have been created to report
to the Affiliated Bank AML unit. These local units represent the anti-money laundering structures of the local offices, which under the
outsourcing contracts are responsible for performing the support activities envisaged by the second-level control model for the
management of money laundering and terrorist financing risk.

o With reference to the model outlined above and adopted for the affiliated banks, during the first half of 2020 the refinement of the
internal rules underlying the outsourcing agreement (revision of Know-Your-Customer Policy for the affiliated banks, revision of
Controls Manual, etc.) was finalized, while other provided for in the agreement and in the Parent Company AML Model were begun
(new self-assessment model) and major projects for the unit were completed (release of new customer file) and other new projects
were launched.

o the AML Direct Scope unit, which handles the coordination and operational supervision of the anti-money laundering control model
for the Parent Company and the Group subsidiaries, who are subject to the regulatory obligations in question, that have established
an anti-money laundering function. In particular, the anti-money laundering functions of the individual companies involved is subject
to coordination and monitoring by the AML Direct Scope unit through functional reporting, while maintaining their hierarchical
reporting line to their respective boards of directors. For the Parent Company, Iccrea Banca, the function coincides with the AML
Direct Scope unit.

Within the scope of the above model, the first half of 2020 was characterized by the following developments:

- the completion of the organizational/IT activities necessary to enable the progressive adoption of a uniform procedure for all the
companies within the direct scope to support anti-money laundering, with the selection of the “Gianos® 4D” IT system. This will
standardize the processes for customer profiling and the identification/evaluation/reporting of potentially suspicious transactions;

- the definition of the new structure of the CAMLO area for the companies in the direct scope, with the creation of the Institutional
& Retail AML and Lending AML units, which will be completed in the second half of 2020 with the centralization with the Parent
Company of the head of AML and the STR delegate for the companies within the direct scope as well;

- the definition and approval of internal rules, mainly regarding to the Due Diligence Policy for the direct scope companies, the
operating rules for the Institutional & Retail and Lending area and the consequent update of the AML function rules.

During the first half of 2020, the audit of the Group's AML process/function started at the end of 2019/early 2020 was completed, during
which the AML function offered effective collaboration. The final assessment was “partially satisfactory” and remedial actions have already
been implemented or are being completed.

Director responsible for the Internal Control System

In accordance with the provisions of the Cohesion Contract (pursuant to Article 37-bis of the Consolidated Banking Act and Bank of Italy
Circular No. 285/2013, Part Three, Chapter 5), in the second quarter of 2019 the affiliated banks appointed from among their directors a
director responsible for the internal control system, in order to facilitate the effective exercise of its responsibilities in this area. This director
supports the Board of Directors on issues pertaining to risk management and the control systems of the individual affiliated banks, promoting
compliance with the principles defined within the Group control system and fostering awareness among the members of the administrative
and control bodies of the affiliated banks of the risk management policies and processes adopted within the Group.

As envisaged by the Group policy on the structure of the corporate control functions, issued by the Parent Company in April 2019 and
implemented by the boards of directors of all the affiliated banks, the director responsible for the internal control system:

e provides opinions to the Board of Directors concerning proposed appointments of the heads of the corporate control functions and
the Suspicious Transaction Report (STR) delegates;

e interacts directly with the heads of the corporate control functions of their entity and monitors their activities and their results on an
ongoing basis;

e monitors the execution of the guidelines established by the Board of Directors and the corporate bodies of the Parent Company,
drawing on the assistance of the corporate control functions, constantly evaluating the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal
control system;

e examines in advance activity plans, annual reports and any additional reporting relating to the control activities performed by the
corporate control functions for the Board of Directors;

e provides assessments and recommendations to the Board of Directors concerning compliance with the principles that must guide the
internal control system and company organization.

17



ICCREA BANCA S.P.A. - 2020 REPORT AND CONSOLIDATED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Given the need to ensure that the directors responsible for the control systems of the affiliated banks can develop appropriate understanding
of and experience in these issues, specific training activities were launched within the broader context of the corporate governance training
plan for the directors. These activities will involve the CHRO, CAE, CRO, CCO and CAMLO areas, each in their operational areas of
responsibility.
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12. OTHER SIGNIFICANT INFORMATION
Iccrea rating

Following the recent volatility experienced in the markets and Italy in general, the rating agencies revised their ratings of the main banks.
More specifically, for the Group:

e on March 24, 2020, Fitch Ratings lowered its rating of the medium/long-term debt of Iccrea Banca and Iccrea Bancalmpresa from
“BB” with a “stable” outlook to “BB-" with a “negative” outlook;

e on March 26, 2020, S&P Global Rating confirmed its rating of the medium/long-term debt of Iccrea Banca and Iccrea Bancalmpresa
at “BB”, with a revision of the outlook from “stable” to “negative”;

o on April 2, 2020, DBRS Morningstar confirmed its rating of the medium/long-term debt of Iccrea Banca at “BBB (low)”, with a revision
of the outlook from “stable” to “negative.

Treasury shares

At June 30, 2020, Iccrea Banca SpA held 87,267 shares with a par value of €51.65, repurchased at €52.80 a share, for a total of
€4,607,697.60.

Main characteristics of the risk management and internal control systems with regard to the financial reporting process (article
123-bis, paragraph 2, letter b) of the Consolidated Law on Financial Intermediation (TUF)

The control activities and processes relating to the generation of the information required for the preparation of the financial reports (annual
and interim financial statements) are an integral part of the Bank’s general control system for managing risks. While noting that no internal
control system can entirely eliminate the risks of error or fraud, but can only measure those risks and lessen the likelihood of occurrence and
mitigate the effects, these features seek to provide a reasonable guarantee of the veracity, accuracy, reliability and timeliness of financial
reporting.

The control system is based upon two primary guidelines.

¢ information is entered into the accounting system automatically, semi-automatically and manually by a large number of units within
the bank, whose transactions are handled by different subsystems. The line control processes are therefore incorporated either into
IT and management procedures for transactions or assigned to specially-formed units. Organizational procedures assign the duties
of verifying the accounting records to the heads of the organizational units. Second-level controls are performed by the
organizational unit responsible for managing the general accounts and preparing the annual and interim reports. Controls are
performed daily, weekly or monthly depending upon the type and frequency of the transactions processed.

o the valuation components that have the greatest impact on the financial statements are delegated to specialized structures. The data
relating to the fair value of balance sheet items, in addition to those for hedging relationships and the related effectiveness tests, are
supplied by specialized structures equipped with appropriate calculation tools. The data are then re-examined by the Risk
Management unit and the Administration unit of the Parent Company. Data concerning the classification and measurement of non-
performing loans are provided by highly specialized, appropriately separated structures that operate on the basis of detailed
procedures approved by the Board of Directors.

The annual consolidated and interim financial statements undergo auditing by EY SpA, which also conducted an accounting review pursuant
to Article 14 of Legislative Decree 39/2010.

Regarding the “Transparency Directive”, the Parent Company has elected Luxembourg as its home Member State, since most of its
securities have been issued on that country’s exchange. For this reason, given that the relevant legislation does not require it, no Financial
Reporting Officer (as provided for in the Consolidated Law on Financial Intermediation) has been appointed.

Transactions with related parties

In April 2019, Iccrea Banca adopted a Group Policy for the management of conflicts of interest and transactions with related parties. The
Policy is aimed at ensuring the uniform management of transactions involving a conflict of interest for all ICBG entities, identifying the areas
of competence and responsibilities of the subsidiaries and the Parent Company, creating management arrangements consistent with the
regulations established by the Bank of Italy while at the same time serving the Group’s articulated organizational and corporate structure.

The cases governed by the new policy are those falling under the provisions of Article 2391 of the Civil Code, the resolutions referred to in
Article 136 of the Consolidated Banking Act, any situations of conflict of interest regarding guarantee agreements and intervention systems
for affiliated banks and transactions with connected parties.
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With particular reference to this latter case, the document in question refers to the obligation to comply with the limits on exposures to
connected parties established in prudential supervisory regulations and lays down specific evaluation, decision-making and reporting
procedures that involve, where necessary, the TCP committees set up within the companies of the banking group.

In addition, decision-making procedures have been tailored to the risk level of the transactions involved. Since the materiality threshold
envisaged under supervisory regulations is 5% of consolidated own funds, a lower threshold, equal to 5% of the individual own funds of the
Bank, has been established to identify significant-value transactions of lesser importance for which the enhanced decision-making process
should be activated.

In order to streamline the procedures for low-risk transactions, the Policy fully exempts certain operations from the decision-making and
disclosure procedures, including the low-value transactions, transactions connected with guarantee interventions, the centralization
agreements between the affiliate banks and the Parent Company and the intercompany service agreements governed by the Group rules if
their value classifies them as being of lesser importance.

Although the materiality threshold would be €1 million on the basis of the applicable legislation for all entities of the ICBG, lower thresholds
have been set in relation to the type of company and the amount of own funds.

The Policy has been implemented by all Group companies and is published on the Iccrea Banca website.

In order to strengthen the oversight of this type of transaction and ensure the continuous monitoring of developments and the total value of
exposures in relation to the limits established by the Parent Company, during the first half - on the occasion of the annual update of the
Group Risk Appetite Statement - the scope of the indicators included therein was expanded by introducing, among others, an indicator
measuring exposures to related parties and connected parties, operationally implemented at both a consolidated level and the individual
level of the Group banks.

The results of the monitoring activities are included in the periodic reporting to the corporate bodies produced for RAF/RAS purposes on a
quarterly basis.

As far as transactions with related parties are concerned, during the period no positions associated with atypical or unusual transactions
emerged whose significance or scale might have raised concerns about the integrity of the company’s financial position.

Part H - “Transactions with related parties” in the notes to the financial statements provides information on the remuneration paid to
directors, members of the Board of Auditors, the General Manager and key management personnel and loans and guarantees granted, in
compliance with Article 136 of the Consolidated Banking Act.

Mutual banks under administration

o At June 30, 2020, 14 of the 136 affiliated banks were under administration (compared with 12 out of 140 at December 31, 2019). Of
the 12 affiliated banks that as of December 31, 2019 had been in a situation of "critical" risk, three were already involved in mergers
implemented in the initial months of 2020, thereby resolving the issues. Two affiliated banks received capital support through the
Group's cross-guarantee scheme.

e The risk class migrations that occurred during the period that also involved a change in management status (from ordinary to
coordinated or administration) are mainly attributable to the following factors:

e imbalances in profitability as at June 2020, with the situation deteriorating compared with that recorded at December 2019,
accompanied by the impact of the pandemic on operating results, which has also been reflected in the assessment of cost of risk in
the half-year report;

o the application of new, more restrictive standard thresholds concerning critical aspects.

The Parent Company, in compliance with the provisions of the Cohesion Contract and the Group policy on the Early Warning System,
performed functional technical analyzes to identify a path for overcoming critical problems and define the consequent corrective measures,
to be implemented in certain cases through mergers;

Inspections performed/planned by supervisory authorities

The supervisory authorities conducted an inspection at Iccrea Banca SpA that was completed in December 2019 concerning the operation of
Group governance at the consolidated level, with particular regard to the conflict of interest management system, as well as the adequacy
and effective implementation of the risk management framework.

Of the issues under examination, the authorities positively assessed efforts to build an adequate organizational framework for the Iccrea
Cooperative Banking Group, although the implementation of certain specific areas of the Group’s internal rules is still ongoing and inherently
connected with the development and activation of the new Group internal regulatory arrangements and the implementation of the related
tools and processes.
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In the first half of 2020, a Bank of Italy inspection of the Group's AML function was also completed, the results of which were notified on
August 4, 2020. In this regard, despite the substantial compliance with the new organizational and AML risk governance models adopted by
the Parent Company and implemented by the Board of Directors, the authorities formally noted critical management issues but did not find
substantive instances of sanctionable non-compliance, reflecting the need for the Parent Company to continue to pay keen attention to
developments that that have affected, including recently, the governance and management of a number of mutual banks, and to take swift
action to complete the actions already correctly launched in order to make them fully operational, with particular regard to the refinement and
strengthening of processes and procedures, including applications.

The Comprehensive Assessment for the Group in was begun in August 2020 and is still under way.
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13. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Definitive exit from ICBP

On August 7, 2020, in line with the strategy of rationalizing equity investments in non-strategic companies, the sale to Equinova of the
shares held by Iccrea Banca in Depobank, representing approximately 0.5% of the Company's capital, was finalized for a total of about €1.4
million, with a positive impact on the performance and the financial position of the Group linked to the capital gain recognized (equal to about
€0.6 million before tax).

With this transaction, Iccrea Banca has definitively exited the capital of the former ICBPI, also due to the sale of Nexi shares carried out in
2019.

NPE reduction

Continuing with the implementation of the de-risking program aimed at achieving a significant reduction in the Group's NPEs, in the first half
of 2020 the ICBG initiated the structuring of a further multi-originator securitization involving a number of portfolios of receivables in respect
of mortgage loans and unsecured loans to debtors classified as bad loans (the GACS IV operation), whose senior class is eligible for
admission to the GACS state guarantee on the liabilities issued. In line with the market best practice for such transactions and with the
previous "BCC NPLs 2018", "BCC NPLs 2018-2" and "BCC NPLs 2019" operations, the transaction provides for the assignment without
recourse of the exposures to a securitization vehicle company established pursuant to Law 130/1999. The vehicle will finance the price of
the sale through the issue of asset-backed securities.

The Parent Company will participate in the transaction both as transferor and as promoter and joint arranger (together with JP Morgan
Securities Limited). The receivables were originated by about 90 banks of the ICBG as well as from a number of non-Group banks, with an
estimated gross exposure of over €2 billion being assigned.

For the purpose of complying with the obligation to retain a net financial interest in the operation of 5%, as per Article 6 of Regulation (EU)
2017/2402 of the European Parliament and of the Council of December 12, 2017 laying down a general framework for securitization and
creating a specific framework for simple, transparent and standardized securitization, and amending Directives 2009/65/EC, 2009/138/EC
and 2011/61/EU, Regulation (EC) No. 1060/2009 and Regulation (EU) No. 648/2012, the banks have subscribed — and undertake to retain
for the entire duration of the operation — a share of at least 5% in the nominal value of each tranche of securities issued within the scope of
the operation (the “vertical slice” approach). In order to meet the requirements for the accounting and prudential deconsolidation of the bad
loans at the individual transferor and consolidated levels, the mezzanine and junior securities will be placed with third-party investors
independent of the ICBG (without prejudice to the requirement to retain a share equal to at least 5% of the nominal value for the purposes of
compliance with the retention rule).

The closing of the transaction which, depending on the target specified by the Parent Company, could involve non-performing exposures
with a total value of about €1.7 billion, is expected to occur by the end of 2020, taking account of prevailing market conditions, making it
possible to further reduce the Group risk levels thanks to the further decline in the NPL ratio.

Covered bond transaction

In light of the establishment of the ICBG and in the context of the planning of activities functional to it, the creation of a Covered Bank Bond
Program was identified as a major additional funding channel that had previously not been available due to the capital requirements imposed
on mutual bank issuers and the lack of adequate amounts of eligible loans on the part of Iccrea Banca.

In addition to reducing funding costs, the main benefits of the establishment of the program include the optimization of ICBG assets and
structural liquidity profiles, the possibility, as a centralized treasury instrument, to distribute new funding in accordance with the needs of the
affiliated banks and the possibility of improving the correlation between the maturity profiles of loans and funding.

The Parent Company will participate in the transactions as both the issuer and as promoter and joint arranger (together with Barclays).

Given the above, a specific project was launched to set up the first ICBG Covered Bond program, divided into the following phases:

identification of the main counterparties of the program and its main characteristics;

definition and implementation of the organizational and IT process supporting the operation;

definition of the legal and financial structure of the operation and of the first group of assignor mutual banks;

program implementation and first issue.

The conclusion of the program and the first issue are expected to occur by the end of 2020, taking account of prevailing market conditions.
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ATTACHMENT - RECONCILIATION OF EQUITY AND NET PROFIT OF THE PARENT COMPANY WITH GROUP EQUITY AND NET
PROFIT

SHAREHOLDERS’
€lthousands SHARE CAPITAL RESERVES VoLl O sTRUVENTS  NETPROFIT EQUITY
30/6/2020
Iccrea Banca SpA financial statements 1,401,045 253,996 45,330 - (6,207) 1,694,164
Net profit of consolidated companies 913,305 8,324,694 183,315 30,139 174,954 9,626,407
Elimination of Group company dividends 45,215 (45,215) -
Net profit of companies accounted for usin:
equi{’y ethod P 9 (36,846) 4,308 193 (32,345)
Adjustmgnt of intercompany writedowns (26,534) 26,534 )
(revaluations)
Goodwill 15,564 15,564
Other consolidation adjustments (1,047,984) (9,159) (28,135) (1,085,279)
Consolidated shareholders’ equity 2,381,260 7,528,137 223,809 30,139 126,626 10,289,970
Non-controlling interests 66,911 32 15 4,502 71,459
Group shareholders’ equity 2,314,349 7,528,105 223,794 30,139 122,124 10,218,510
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

Assets 30/6/2020 311212019
10. Cash and cash equivalents 709,125 956,482
20. Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss 2,058,398 1,940,080
a) financial assets held for trading 345,863 205,225

b) financial assets designated as at fair value 388,025 367,476

c) other financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value 1,324,510 1,367,379

30. Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 9,352,081 9,109,726
40. Financial assets measured at amortized cost 148,767,792 135,869,471
a) due from banks 8,984,233 8,405,860

b) loans to customers 139,783,559 127,463,611

50. Hedging derivatives 16,437 17,816
60. Value adjustments of financial assets hedged generically (+/-) 227,683 139,945
70. Equity investments 107,492 88,893
90. Property, plant and equipment 2,798,679 2,842,541
100.  Intangible assets 150,459 146,462
- goodwill 25,611 25,868

110.  Tax assets 2,099,718 2,135,149
a) current 434,117 432,725

b) deferred 1,665,601 1,702,424

120.  Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale 28,175 33,856
130.  Otherassets 2,146,687 2,250,045
Total assets 168,462,726 155,530,466

129



ICCREA BANCA S.P.A. - 2020 REPORT AND CONSOLIDATED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Liabilities and shareholders’ equity 30/6/2020 31/12/2019
10. Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost 152,889,943 140,832,997
a) due to banks 29,832,621 18,873,746

b) due to customers 108,461,986 105,581,113

c) securities issued 14,595,336 16,378,138

20. Financial liabilities held for trading 305,106 163,728
30. Financial liabilities designated as at fair value 7,393 11,461
40. Hedging derivatives 446,689 321,431
50. Value adjustments of financial liabilities hedged generically (+/-) (1,298) (825)
60. Tax liabilities 103,975 105,945
a) current 26,899 19,113

b) deferred 77,076 86,832

80. Other liabilities 3,620,672 3,111,184
90. Employee termination benefits 299,320 306,254
100. Provisions for risks and charges 500,957 445,700
a) commitments and guarantees issued 206,513 205,309

c) other provisions for risk and charges 294,444 240,391

120. Valuation reserves 223,794 254,511
140. Equity instruments 30,139 30,139
150. Reserves 8,592,318 8,390,589
160. Share premium reserves 148,039 146,702
170. Share capital 2,314,349 2,313,691
180. Treasury shares (-) (1,212,252) (1,212,256)
190. Non-controlling interests (+/-) 71,459 70,737
200. Net profit (loss) for the period (+/-) 122,123 238,478
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 168,462,726 155,530,466
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

30/6/2020 30/6/2019

10. Interest and similar income 1,459,401 1,525,819
20. Interest and similar expense (248,434) (307,646)
30. Net interest income 1,210,967 1,218,173
40. Fee and commission income 664,777 701,256
50. Fee and commission expense (60,596) (95,233)
60. Net fee and commission income (expense) 604,181 606,023
70. Dividends and similar income 4,967 3,582
80. Net gain (loss) on trading activities 9,473 10,763
90. Net gain (loss) on hedging activities (2,167) (1,059)
100. Net gain (loss) on the disposal or repurchase of: 219,039 91,786

a) financial assets measured at amortized cost 166,127 61,529

b) financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 52,634 29,268

c) financial liabilities 278 989
110. Net gain (loss) of other financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss (12,925) 30,784

a) financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (1,707) 4,427

b) other financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value (11,218) 26,357
120. Gross income 2,033,535 1,960,051
130. Net losses/recoveries for credit risk in respect of: (387,495) (261,307)

a) financial assets measured at amortized cost (377,813) (263,657)

b) financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (9,682) 2,350
140. Gains/losses from contractual modifications without derecognition (2,010) (649)
150. Net income (loss) from financial operations 1,644,030 1,698,095
180. Net income (loss) from financial and insurance operations 1,644,030 1,698,095
190. Administrative expenses: (1,472,317)  (1,522,098)

a) personnel expenses (833,691) (826,810)

b) other administrative expenses (638,626) (695,288)
200. Net provisions for risks and charges (48,053) (1,486)

a) commitments and guarantees issued (3,970) 9,697

b) other net provisions (44,083) (11,183)
210. Net adjustments of property, plant and equipment (93,393) (84,802)
220. Net adjustments of intangible assets (9,783) (8,442)
230. Other operating expenses/income 165,747 158,412
240. Operating costs (1,457,799)  (1,458,416)
250. Profit (loss) from equity investments 193 2,948
260. Net gain (loss) from valuation at fair value of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (10,775) (13,888)
270. Goodwill impairment (259) -
280. Profit (loss) from disposal of investments (310) 3,180
290. Profit (loss) before tax on continuing operations 175,080 231,919
300. Income tax expense from continuing operations (48,455) (50,540)
310. Profit (loss) after tax on continuing operations 126,625 181,379
320. Profit (loss) after tax on discontinued operations - -
330. Net profit (loss) for the period 126,625 181,379
340. Net profit (loss) for the period — non-controlling interests 4,502 2,760
350. Net profit (loss) for the period - shareholders of the Parent Company 122,123 178,619
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STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

30/6/2020 30/6/2019

10. Net profit (loss) for the period 126,625 181,379
Other comprehensive income net of taxes not recyclable to profit or loss (1,694) (17,242)

20. Equity securities designated as at fair through other comprehensive income (1,438) 1,787
70. Defined-benefit plans (256) (19,023)
Other comprehensive income net of taxes recyclable to profit or loss (30,377) 226,983

120. Cash-flow hedges (5,160) 430
140. Financial assets (other than equity investments) measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (24,701) 224131
160. Share of valuation reserves of equity investments accounted for with equity method (516) 2,447
170. Total other comprehensive income net of taxes (32,071) 209,741
180. Comprehensive income (ltem 10+170) 94,553 391,120
190. Comprehensive income pertaining to non-controlling interests 4,045 3,452
200. Comprehensive income pertaining to shareholders of the Parent Company 90,508 387,668
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN CONSOLIDATED SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AT JUNE 30, 2020

of net profit Change in the period

of previous period
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Share capital:
a) ordinary shares 2,380,125 2,380,125 4138  (3,988) 2,380,275 2,314,349 65,926
b) other shares 985 985 985 985
Share premium reserve 151,077 151,077 (331) (55) 1,686 152,377 148,039 4,338
Reserves:
a) earnings 8,418,939 8418939 211,698 (6,892) 8,623,746 8619488 4,256
b) other (36,360) (36,360) 626 (35,734) (27,172)  (8,562)
Valuation reserves 254,982 254,982 898 (32,071) 223,809 223,794 15
Equity instruments 30,139 30,139 30,139 30,139
Treasury shares (1,212,256) (1,212,256) 1587 (1,583) (1212252)  (1,212,252)
Net profit (loss) for the period 244,963 244963  (211,367) (33,596) 126,625 126,625 122,123 4,502
Total shareholders’ equity 10,232,594 10,232,594 (33,596) (5423) 7411  (5571) 94,553 10,289,969 10,218,510 71,459
Shareholders’ equity pertaining to
shareholders of Parent C 10,161,857 10,161,857 (29,787)  (6,416) 7,918  (5571) 90,508 10,218,510
Sharcholdetsieauriy/penainaliolic s 70737 70,737 (3,809) 993 (508) 4,045 71,459

controlling interests
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN CONSOLIDATED SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AT JUNE 30, 2019

Allocation of net

Change in the period
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Share capital:
a) ordinary shares 1,257,242 1,257,242 892,309 255336 (7,832) 2,397,055 2,315,758 81,297
b) other shares 985 985 985 - 985
Share premium reserve 10,753 10,753 142003 (2338) 150418 146,014 4404
Reserves:
a) eamings 315,855 315855 4,739 8,054,448 (646) 8,374,397 8376453  (2,056)
b) other (24,435) 5,869 (18,566) (9,963) (8,603)
Valuation reserves 44,064 44,064 (88,163) 5,055 209,741 170,697 171,453 (756)
Equity instruments 30,139 30,139 30,139 -
Treasury shares (4,608) (4,608) (836,531) (250,201) (1,091,340) (1,091,340) -
Net profit (loss) for the period 7,502 7502 (4739)  (2,763) 181,379 181,379 178,619 2,760
Total shareholders’ equity 1,631,794 1,631,794 (2,763) 8,169,769 7,940 255,336  (258,033) 391,120 10,195,164 10,117,133 78,031
Shareholders’ equity
pertaining to shareholders of 1,538,916 1,538,916 (2,763) 8,188,319 7,690 255,336  (258,033) 387,668 10,117,133
Parent Company
Shareholders’ equity
pertaining to non-controlling 92,878 92,878 (18,549) 250 3,452 78,031
interests

The columns “As at 31/12/2018", “As at 1/1/2019” and “Allocation of net profit of previous period” refer to the former Iccrea Banking Group. The balance sheet figures at
January 1, 2019 of the mutual banks and the other entities of the Iccrea Cooperative Banking Group are reported in the column “Effect of formation of ICBG at 1/1/2019".
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS: INDIRECT METHOD

30/6/2020 30/6/2019
A. OPERATING ACTIVITIES
1. Operations 671,034 363,104
- net profit (loss) for the period (+/-) 126,625 181,379
- gains (losses) on financial assets held for trading and on financial assets/liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (-/+) 2,254 (12,415)
- gains (losses) on hedging activities (-/+) 5,389 1,519
- net losses/recoveries on impairment (+/-) 354,948 261,307
- net adjustments of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (+/-) 103,435 93,243
- net provisions for risks and charges and other costs/revenues (+/-) 44,195 13,116
- taxes, duties and tax credits to be settled (+/-) 45,129 36,699
- other adjustments (+/-) (10,939) (211,744)
2. Net cash flows from/used in financial assets (13,481,107) (1,109,861)
- financial assets held for trading (130,545) (96,976)
- financial assets measured at fair value (20,548) (426,952)
- other assets mandatorily measured at fair value 30,522 5,793
- financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (276,395) 5,215,186
- financial assets measured at amortized cost (13,122,049) (5,097,945)
- other assets 37,907 (708,967)
3. Net cash flows from/used in financial liabilities 12,662,859 726,592
- financial liabilities measured at amortized cost 12,056,945 1,127,752
- financial liabilities held for trading 141,379 71,031
- financial liabilities designated as at fair value (4,068) (21,853)
- other liabilities 468,603 (450,338)
Net cash flows from/used in operating activities (147,213) (20,165)
B. INVESTING ACTIVITIES
1. Cash flow from 35,894 31,100
- sales of equity investments 509 -
- dividends on equity investments 4,967 3,582
- sales of property, plant and equipment 21,804 27,518
- sales of intangible assets 8,614 -
2. Cash flow used in (102,445) (115,364)
- purchase of equity investments (16,019) -
- purchases of property, plant and equipment (66,915) (94,296)
- purchases of intangible assets (19,511) (21,069)
Net cash flows from/used in investing activities (66,551) (84,264)
C. FINANCING ACTIVITIES
- issues/purchases of own shares 4 (250,201)
- issues/purchases of equity instruments - 226,917
- dividend distribution and other (33,596) (2,763)
Net cash flows from/used in investing activities (33,592) (26,047)
NET INCREASE/DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (247,357) (130,476)
ﬁe)ygenerated
(-) used in
RECONCILIATION
30/6/2020 30/6/2019
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 956,482 129,087
Effect of formation of ICBG at 1/1/2019 808,044
Net increase/decrease in cash and cash equivalents (247,357) (130,476)
Cash and cash equivalents: effect of exchange rate changes - -
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 709,125 806,655
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PART A-ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A.1 - GENERAL INFORMATION

SECTION 1 - DECLARATION OF CONFORMITY WITH INTERNATIONAL ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In compliance with the provisions of Legislative Decree 38 of February 28, 2005, the consolidated interim financial statements of the Iccrea
Cooperative Banking Group have been prepared in condensed form and in accordance with the recognition and measurement criteria of the
International Accounting Standards (IASs) and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB), and the related interpretations of the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRS - IC),
endorsed by the European Commission and in force as of the reporting date.

The 1ASs/IFRSs have also been applied in accordance with the “Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting” (the Framework), with
particular regard to the key principle of the prevalence of substance over form, as well as the concepts of relevance and materiality of
information.

These financial statements are in conformity with the provisions of IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting and have been prepared using the
format and main schedules provided for in Circular no. 262 of December 22, 2005 - 6th update of November 30, 2018 — issued by the Bank
of Italy in the exercise of the powers established by Article 43 of Legislative Decree 136/2015.

The consolidated interim financial statements were prepared using the same accounting standards as those used for the financial
statements at December 31, 2019.

The following table sets out the new international accounting standards and amendments to existing accounting standards, with the related
endorsement regulations of the European Commission, that took effect that took effect, either on a mandatory basis or with the option of
early adoption, as from January 1, 2020:

ENDORSEMENT REGULATION IAS/IFRS AND SHORT DESCRIPTION ENTRY INTO
FORCE
Amendments to the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting Aan(JjaI tr)epgrtlpg
eriods beginnin
2075/2019 The main amendments regard a new chapter on measurement, improved definitions and guidance, clarification of g)n or after \?anua?y
concepts such as stewardship, prudence and uncertainty in measurement. 1.2020.
Amendments to IFRS 3: Business Combinations
The main changes are intended to resolve the issues that arise when an entity determines whether it has acquired
a business or a group of assets. More specifically, the changes:
— clarify that to be considered a business, an acquired set of activities and assets must include, at a minimum,
an input and a substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs;
— remove the assessment of whether market participants are capable of replacing any missing inputs or | Annual reporting
551/2020 processes and continuing to produce outputs; periods beginning
i ) ) B ) on or after January
— add guidance and illustrative examples to help entities assess whether a substantive process has been 1,2020
acquired;
— narrow the definitions of a business and of outputs by focusing on goods and services provided to customers
and by removing the reference to an ability to reduce costs;
—add an optional concentration test that permits a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business.
Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8: Definition of materiality )
) i _— . ) Annual reporting
The amendments are intended to align the definition of “material” with that used in the Conceptual Framework and periods beginning
2104/2020 the standards themselves. Information is material if omiting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be | o1 oy after January
expected to influence decisions that the primary users of financial statements make on the basis of those financial 1.2020
statements. '
Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7
The amendments concern the requirements for hedge accounting and also have an impact for entities that have
elected to continue applying the hedge accounting model under IAS 39. The IASB has amended the specific
accounting requirements so that entities apply these requirements assuming that the benchmark interest rate on
which the hedged cash flows and the cash flows of the hedging instrument are based does not change due to the Annual reporting
uncertainties associated with the benchmark interest rate reform. The changes apply to all hedging relationships | periods beginning
34/2020 ) )
that are directly affected by the benchmark interest rate reform. on or after January
The amendments seek to avoid the interruption of existing cash flow and fair value hedging relationships directly 1,2020
impacted by the reform, which in the absence of this relief would give rise to hedge ineffectiveness and potential
hedge accounting failures following the replacement of IBOR with alternative benchmarks. These issues could
have given rise to large reclassifications to profit or loss of cash flow hedge reserves and to the termination of
hedge accounting for fair value hedges of fixed-rate debt.

The amendments and additions provided for in the endorsement regulations have not had a material impact on the financial position or

performance of the Group.
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The following table reports new international accounting standards and amendments to existing standards issued by the IASB that have not
yet entered force:

ENDORSEMENT IAS/IFRS AND SHORT DESCRIPTION ENTRY INTO FORCE
REGULATION

Amendment to IFRS 16 Leases — COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions

The amendments seek to provide lessees relief from the application of IFRS 16 guidelines on accounting for
lease modifications with regard to rent concessions granted as a direct consequence of the COVID-19
pandemic.

As a practical expedient, a lessee may elect not to assess whether a rent concession granted by a lessor in
connection with COVID-19 is a lease modification. A lessee that makes this election shall account for any
change in lease payments resulting from the rent concession connected with COVID-19 the same way it would

account for the change applying IFRS 16 if the change were not a lease modification. Annual reporting periods

beginning on or after June 1,
The practical expedient applies only to rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 2020. Early application is
pandemic and only if all of the following conditions are met: permitted.

To be determined

— the change in lease payments results in revised consideration for the lease that is substantially the same
as, or less than, the consideration for the lease immediately preceding the change;

— any reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due on or before June 30, 2021 (for
example, a rent concession would meet this condition if it results in reduced lease payments on or before
June 30, 2021 and increased lease payments that extend beyond June 30, 2021); and

— there is no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease.

Amendments to IAS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements: classification of liabilities as current or
non-current

The amendments are intended to clarify one of the criteria of IAS 1 for the classification of liabilities as non-
current, namely the requirement that an entity have the right to defer settlement of the liabilities for at least 12

months after the end of the reporting period. The amendments include: ) .
o ) } ) ) Annual reporting periods
To be determined — an indication that the right to defer settlement must exist at the end of the reporting per